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1B CFFICE OF
- HEALTH CARE ACCESS

YALE-NEW HAVEN HOSPITAL/
SAINT RAPHAEL MAGNETIC
- RESONANCE CENTER

- Transfer of Ownership of

- Saint Raphael -
Magnetic Resonance Center
to Yale-New Haven Hospital

January 25, 2013




" YALE NEwW HAVEN
HEALTH

5' Janwary 25, 2013

Ms. Kimberly Martonie
" Director of Operations
Office of Healthcare Access
410 Capitol Avenue
MS #13HCA
" P.O. Box 340308
Hartfmd CT 06106

HEALTHGAF%EACESS -y

Re:  Yale-New Haven Hospltal (YNI-IH) & Saint Raphael Magnetm Resonance Center
(SRMRC) _
. Transfer of Ownership of Saint Raphael Magnenc Resonance
-+ Center to Yale- New Haven Hospital '

Dear Ms. Martone:

Enclosed please find the original, four (4) hard copies and ah electfonic copy on CD of the |
" Certificate of Need (CON) application for YNHI to purchase Medical Imagmg Associates, P.C

(MIA) ownership interest in SRMRC. YNHI alveady owns 50% of SRMRC. -

~ Please do not hesitate to contact me with any questlons OT COnCerns. I can be reached at (203)
863-3908.

Thank you for you_r time and support of this project.

Smcerely,

K el
Nancy “2& e

Senior Vice President — Health Systems Development

Enclosures
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 AFFIDAVITS



AFFIDAVIT

Applicant: _ Yale-New Haven Hospital/Yale-New Haven Ambulatory Services Corp.

Project Title: Transfer of Ownership of Saint Raphael Magnetic Resonance Imaging Center
to Yale-New Haven Hospital , _ '

I, James Staten ~_Chief Financial Oﬂ'icér
(Individual’s Name) (Position Title - CEO or CFO)
of __Yale-New Haven Hospital being duly sworn, deiaose-and state that

(Hospital or Facility Nate)

Yale-New Haven I-Iospifal’s information submitted- in this Certificate éf 7
(Hospital or Facility Name)

Need Application is accurate and coriect to the best of my knowledge.

s

" Date
Subscribed and sworn to before me on / / v //_3
A7 ¢ = .
resies (ANt B
- Notary Public/Commissiotier of Superior Court . ROSE ARMINIO
' NoTary PusLic
- My commission expires: State of Connecticut

Wy Commission Expires
Febroeary 28, 2015




/O
AFFIDAVIT

Applicant: Medical Imaging Assomatesl Saint Raphael Maganetic Resonance Imaging

(SRMRC)

Project Title: Transfer of Ownership of Saint Raphael Magnetic Resonance Center to
Yale-New Haven Hospltal

I, Zenon Protopapas, MD Managing Partner/Medical Director

(Individual's Name) (Position Title — CEO or CFO)
of SRMRC _ ‘ being duly sworn, depose and state that

(Hospital or Facility Name)

__SRMRC's information submitted in this Certificate of.
(Hospital or Facility Name)

Need Application is accurate and cbrfect to the best of my knowledge.

,(,/2\/@ ‘ loy]202

Slgnature Date

- Subscribed and sworn to before me on f./ 2 If/ R0/ 3

(// wm\.ﬂf—ﬁ'\d
ROSE ARMIRIO
Nortary Pueuc

Notary Public/Commissioner of Superior Court State of Connecticut
My Commission Expires
o . February 28, 2013
My commission expires:
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.~ Application Checklist
Instructions:
1. Please check each box below, as appropriate, and
2. The completed checklist must be submiited as the first page of the
CON application. '
X Attached is the CON application filing fee in the form of a'
certified, cashier or business check made out to the "Treasurer
‘State of Connecticut” in the amount of $500.

For OHCA Use Only:

Docket No.: | Check No.:

OHCA Verified by: : . Date: .
: A ]
<] Attached is evidence demonstrating that public notice has been ‘

published in a suitable newspaper that relates to the location of
the proposal, 3 days in a row, at least 20 days prior to the
‘submission of the CON application to OHCA. (OHCA requests
. that the Applicant fax a courtesy copy Lo OHCA (. 860) 418~ |
- 7053, at the time of the pubhcatton) . T i

X Aitached is a paginated hard copy of the CON appln‘:atmn
including a completed affidavit, signed and notarized by the
approprlate individuals. _

X Attached are completed Financial Attachments I and Ix.
X Submission includes one (1) original and four {4) hard

© copies with each set placed in 3-ring binders.

' Note: A CON application may be filed with OHCA electronically
through email, if the total number of pages submitted is 50
pages or less, In this case, the CON Application must be

emailed to gchca@ct.gov.

Important: For CON applications(less than 50 pages) filed
© electronically through email, the singed affidavit and the check
in the amount of $500 must be delivered to OHCA in hardcopy.

< The following have been submitted on a CD

" 1. Ascanned copy of each submission in its entirety, including
all attachments in Adobe {.pdf) format.
2. An electronic copy of the documents in MS Word and M5
Excel as appropriate.
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- State of Connecticut |
Office of Health Care Access
Certificate of Need Application
Instructions: Please complete all sections of the Certificate of Need (“CON™)
application. If any section or question is not relevant to your project, a response of “Not
Applicable” may be deemed an acceptable answer. If there is more than one applicant,
identify the name and all contact information for each applicant. OHCA will assign a
Docket Number to the CON application once the application is received by OHCA.,
Doék_et Number: 1BD
Applicant 1: B Yale-New Haven Hospitai
- Contact Pg:rs'on: Nancy Rosénthal

Contact Person’s  Senior Vice President — Health Systems Development
Title: ’

Contact Person’s Department of Planning & Business D.evelopmeht
Address: 2 Howe Street, New Haven, CT 06510

ContactPerson’s  203-863-3008
Phone Number:

Contact Person’s: . 203-863-4736
Fax Number: ‘

* Contact Person’s Nancy.Rosenthal@greenwichhospital.org
- Email Address: =
Applicant 2: Saint Raphael Magnetic Resonance Center (SRMRC)

Contact Person: | Managing Péu‘tner, Medical Imaging Associates, P.C. (MIAY
- ' Zenon Protopapas, MD, President, MIA

Contact Person’s  President, Managing Partner of SRMRC



Title:

‘Contact Person’s
Address:

Contact Person’s
Phone Number:

Contact Person’s -

Fax Number:.

: Cohtacf Peréon’s
Email Address:
Applicani:

Project Town:

Project Name:

Medical Director, SRMRC

330 Orchard Street, Suite 10B
New Haven, CT 06511

(203) 789-4120

(203) 789-5183

zprotopapas @nhrad.ql‘ g

~New Haven, CT

Transfer of Ownérship of Saint Raphael Magnetic Resonance

Center to Yale-New Haven Hospital

‘Statute Reference: Section 19a-638, C.G.S.

Estimated Total

. Capital Expenditure: $4,200,000

16



17

o 1. Project Deseription and Need: Change of Ownership or Conirol
a. Please provide a narrative detailing the proposal.

_ Saint Raphael Magnetic Resonance Center (“SRMRC”) was established in
1988 as a parinership between Medical Imaging Associates, P.C. (“MIA”), an
affiliate of New Haven Radiology Assoeciates, P.C., and DePaul Health
Servieces Corporation (“DePaul”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Saint
Raphael Healtheare System, to own and operate MRIs. As per Docket
Number 12-31759-CON, Yale-New Haven Hospital (“YNHH”) through its
affiliate, Yale-New Haven Ambulatory Services Corporation (“YNHASC?),
acquired DePaul’s ownership interest in SRMRC on Sepiember 12, 2012 as
part of YNHIs acquisition of Saint Raphael Healthcare System and the
Hospltal of Saint Raphael (DN 12-31759-CON),. :

SRIV[RC owns and operates two MRI scanners: one is a 3 T esla and the other
- a 1.5 Tesla. These two magnets are located at 330 Orchard Street, New
Haven at the Saint Raphael campus of YNHH. SRMRC provides outpatient
MRI services and also leases the MRIs to YNHH for use on YNHHs
inpatient and emérgency patient populatlons seeking care at the Samt
. Raphael campus location. -

At this time, YNHASC 'desires to purchase from MYA and MIA desires to sell
to YNHASC, its partnership interest in SRMRC. Following the purchase,
YNHASC will transfer the assets of SRMRC to YNHH and YNHH will
operate the MRIs as YNII provider-based services. "

- b. Explain how each Applicant determined need for the prolsosal and discuss the
benefits of this proposal for each Apphcant (ChSCLlSS each Applicant separately in -
" separate paragraphs). :

This proposal is being pursued for several reasons:

o As aresult of YNHH’s acquisition of Saint Raphael’s, all radiology
professional sexvices on the Saint Raphael Campus must be
transitioned to Yale School of Medicine (YSM). YSM policies
prohibit physician ownership of facilities such as SRMRC.
Accordingly, MIA and its physicians will need io divest of their
interest in SRMRC.

¢ Incorporating the two MRI scanners at the Saint Raphael campus
into YNHH’s Diagnostic Imaging Department will result in a number
of enhancements and improvements such as:

o Consistent policies and procedures for MRI services provided
on hoth campuses;




o Streamlined accredltatlon process;

- o More competitive purchasing contracts for contrast and othel ‘ |

related supplies; 7

o Staffing flexibility and efficiencies; and

o Elimination of duplicative functmns such as reulstratmn and
billing. :

¢. Provide a history and timeline of the proposal (e.g.,- When did discussions begiﬁ
between the Applicants? What have the Applicants accomplished so far?).

The applicants began to discuss the proposed ownership transfer prior to the
closing of YNHH’s acquisition of Saint Raphael in the summer of 2012.
Effective September 12, 2012, the applicants signed a Partnership Interest
Purchase Agreement outlining the terms of this ownership transfer.

Consistent with ﬂle Partnership Interest Purchase Agreement, the closing is
~ planued for the one yeal anniversary date of the Purchase Acrreement
- (September 11, 2013).

The CON is being pursued now so that regulatory appr: oval will be in place
prior to lnltlatlon of the closmg

d. Tist any changes to the clinical services offered by the Appllcanis that result from
this ploposal and p10v1de an explanation.

Not applicable. There will be no changes to the clinical services offered as a

result of this proposal.

e. Describe the existing population served by the facility changing ownership or -
control, and how the proposal will impact these populations. Include demographic
,'111101'mat1011 as appr opriate.

_The existing population served by the facility includes inpatients, outpatients
and emergency patients who seek care at the Saint Raphael campus.

During the past four years (2009 — 2012), scah volume-has ra'ncreél'l::vetweeli _
approximately 8,500 and 9,900 annually at SRMRC and both scannerxs are
operating at high utlllzatlon levels (>85 %).

Following completion of the pmposed change in ownership, the patient
population is not expeected to-change significantly. YNHH patienis who
receive inpatient, outpatient or emergency care at the Saint Raphael campus
will access the MRI services provided by these two scanners.

£ Describe the transition plan and how the Applicants will ensure continuity of
services. Provide a copy of a transition plan, if available.

18
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Several transition steIJs have already occurred and others will take place -
following this CON application. Steps taken to date include: '
e A meeting was held with staff from SRMRC to discuss the planned
change of ownership.
¢ A public notice regarding this CON application was placed in the New
Haven Register on November 1, 2, and 3, 2012.

'Followin_g completion of the CON application, written notification regarding
the change in ownership will be provided to patients at the SRMRC location
. prior to the transfer of ownership..

For each Appliéant (and any new entities to be created as a result of the proposal),
provide the following prior to and after this proposal:

'U:Q

1. Legal chart of'corporate or entity structure including all affiliates.
it. List of owners and the % ownership and shares of each.

There will not be any new enfities created as a result of the proposal
SRMRC will be dissolved and the MRI scanners will be transferred to
YNHH and operated as hospital-based scanuers.

A Iegal chart of corporate structure for YNH_H is included as Appendix 1.

h. Provide copies of all signed written agreements or memorandum of 7
understanding, including all exhibits/attachments, between the Applicants related
to the proposal. Note: If a final version is not available, provide a draft with an -

‘estimated date by which the final agreement will be available.

A ,copy-of the Pérfmership Interesi Purchase Agreement signed by the
applicanis and dated September 11, 2012 (with an effective date of
- September 12, 2012), has been included in Appendix IL.

2. Quality Mecasures

a. Submit a list of all key professional, administrative, c_ﬁnical, and direct serviée
personnel related to the proposal. Attach a copy of their Curriculum Vitae.

Key personnel related to the proposal include the following individuals who
are members of SRMRC’s management commitiee.
. ® Gayle L. Capozzalo, Executive Vice President, Strategy & System
" Development at YNHH
" Vincent Tammmaro, Vice President, Finance ait YNHH
e Denise Fiore, Vice President, Clinical Support Services at YNHH




a.
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e Zenon Protopappas, MD
+ Diego Nunez, MD
~ e  William Zucconi, MD

Cdpies of the CV’S are provided in Appendii 1.

Explaln how the ploposal contributes to the quallty of health care delivery in the
regmn

Consistent clinical standards, policies, procedures and acereditation efforts
help to ensure that the same high quality patient eare is delivered throughout
YNHH, regardless of location of services. This proposal will ensure that all
MRI serviees, including outpatient MRI services, delivered on the Saint
Raphael campus are consistent with those delivered on the York Street
campus, ‘

3. Or gamzatmnal and Financial Informatlon _

Identify the Apphcant s ownelshlp type(s) (e.g. C01p01at10n PC LLC ete.).”
YNHH s a non—pro_fit, S01(e) 3) corporation._ Medical Imaging Associates,
P.C. is a for-profit professional corporation. SRMRC is a Connecticut

general parinership.

Does the Applicant have non-profit status?

X Yes (Provide do cumentation) No

YNHH has ]10]1—1')1 oﬁt status. Medlcal Imagmg Assoaates P C. does not.

Pr 0V1de a copy of the State of Connechcut Depaltmem of Public Health
license(s) curently held by the Applicant and indicate any add1t1ona1 hcensme
categories being sought in relation to the proposal.

A copy of YNHIPs State of Connectlcut Department of Public Health llcense
is included in Appendix IV.

Financial Statements

i. Iithe Applicant is a Connecticut hospital: Pursuant to Section 19a-644,
€.G.8,, each hospital licensed by the Department of Public Health is required
to file with OHCA copies of the hospital’s aundited financial statements. If the
hospital has filed its most recently completed fiscal year audited financial
statements, the hospital may reference that filing for this proposal.

Included in Appendix V are YNHIPs FY 2012 audited financial
statements which were recently completed,
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ii. - If the Applicant is not a Connecticut hospital (other health care facilities):
Audited financial statements for the most recently completed fiscal year, It
audited financial statements do not exist, in licu of audited financial
statements, provide other financial documentation (e.g. unaudited balance

. shéet, statement of operations, tax return, or other set of books.)* '

A copy of SRMRC’s FY 12 financial statements is included in Appendix

¢. Submita ﬁnal'veréion of all capiteil expendifures/costs as follows:

Table 2: Proposed Capital Expendltures/Costs -

{Medical Equipment Purchase 5 g - - §
Imaging Equipment Purchase - _ $1,100,200
Non-Medical Equipment Purchase e ' ' '
Land/Building Purchase *

Construction/Renovation * : ' : $540,200
Other Non-Construction (Spemfy) Goodwﬂl : - §2,559.600
Total Capital Expenditure (TCE) ' : 5 $
Medical Equipment Lease (Fair Market Value) #** - $

Imaging Equipment Lease (Fair Market Valug) ***
Non-Medical Equipment Lease (Fan Market Value) **
Fair Market Value of Space **

Toial Capital Cost (TCC) : . 54,200,000
Total Project Cost (TCE + TCC) ' : $4,200,000
Capitalized Financing Costs (Informational Purpose Only) : s

Total Capital Expenditure with Cap. Fin. Costs g ) ' $

Note: YNHACS will transfer the assets fo YNHH.

# If the proposal involves a land/building pulchase attach a real estate property appraisal mcludmg the
amount; the useful life of the building; and a schedule of depreciation.

*# Tf the proposal involves constr uction/renovations, attach a description of the pmposed building work,
including the gross square feet; existing and proposed floor plans; commencement date for the
' constmction/ renovation; completion date of the construction/renovation; 2nd commencement of operations
date.
%% If the proposal involves a capital or operating equlpment lease and/or purchase, attach a vendm quote
or invoice; schedule of depreciation; useful life of the equipment; and anticipated 1esxdua1 value at the end
of the lease or loan term. :

f List all funding or financing sources for the proposal and the dollar amount of
each. Provide applicable details such as interest rate; term; monthly payment;
pledges and funds received to date; letter of interest or approval from a lendmg
institution. - :

The funding source for the proposal will be an equity payment from YNHE
and any distributions from SRMRC.



g. Demonstr ate how this proposal will affect the ﬁnanc1a1 strength of the state’s

health care system.

By incorporating the operation of the two MRIs in SRMRC into YNHH’s
Radiology Department, a number of staffing efficiencies and cost savings will
" be achieved. Specifically, marketing, billing and management funciions ean
be streamlined and incorporated into existing departments/personnel at
YNHH. As previously noted, YNHH’s contracts will permit the purchase of

contrast and other related supplies at lower costs. In addition, accreditation

processes by the American College of Radiology will be sireamlined under
YNHH and will not require a separate accreditation process as is currently

required.

4. Patient Population Mix; Current and Projéctéd

a. Provide the current and p10jected patient population mix (based on the number of
patients, not based on revenue) with the CON proposal for the proposed program.

Table 3: Patient Population Mix — for MRI Patients

Year 2

Year3

_ Current®* Year1
. FY 2012 FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2015
Medicare* 23% 23% 23% - 23%
Medicaid* 21% 21% 21% 21%
CHAMPUS & TriCare - 1% 1% 1% 1%
Total Government 45% 45%- 45% 45%
Commercial Insurers* 53% 53% 533% 53%
Uninsured 2% 2% 2% 2%
Workers Compensation 1% 19% | 1% 1%
Total Non-Government 55% 55% 55% 55%
Total Payer Mix " 100% 100% 100% 100%

# Includes managed care activity.
** New programs may leave the “current” column blank.

*#% Fill in years. Ensure the period covered by this table cor;asponds to the pertod covered in the

projections provided:

b. Providethe basis for/assumptions used to project the patient population mix. A

The patient population mix is based on YNHH’s current MRI payor mix.
With approval of this CON application, the two MRI scanners at the Saint
Raphael campus will be incorporated info YNHHs existing MRI service and

therefore serve the same population. No changes in payor mix are

anticipated.

22
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5. Financial Attachmcnts T&IT

a. Provide 4 summary of revenue, expense, and volume statistics, without the CON
project, incremental to the CON project, and with the CON project. Complete
Financial Attachment 1. (Note that the actual results for the fiscal year reported
in the first column must agree with the Applicant’s audited financial statements.)
The projections must include the ﬁrst three full fiscal years of the project.

Fmanclal Attachment Lis 1ncluded as Appendlx VII

b. Provide the assmnptmns utilized in developing Financial Attachment I(e.g,
full-time equivalents, volume statistics, other expenses, revenue and expense %
increases, project commencement of operation date, etc.).,

Financial Attachment I assumptions are included in Appendix VIIL
C. Identlfy the entity that will be b1111nc for the ploposed service(s).

YNHH will be the entlty that will be billing for MRI sexvices followmg the - _
transfer of ownershlp ' ' ' :

d. Asaresult of the proposal, will there be any chancre to existing reimbursement
~ contracts between the Applicants and payers (e g. Medicare, Medicaid,
commereial)? Explain.

" Following completion of the acquisition of MIA’s ownership shave, YN
will own and operate the two MRI scanners as part of its Hospital license.
Reimbursement contracts between YN and payors will apply to the MRI
services provided at the Saint Raphael campus as they do at the York Street -
campus. :

e. Provide the minimum number of units required to show an incrémental gain from
operations for each fiscal year.

The minimum number of units required to show an incremental gain from
operations for each fiscal year is shown in the table below.

H'u'llmmumNumberufUnltsrequlred e

T o0i3 | 2014 2016 | 2016
Expenses from operaticns i NA i $4,377,330 1 $4,475,551 $4,568,336
Cases N Needed to show |ncremental gam from operatmnsl NA | 4,666 | 4,721 43800
Awerage Re\.e e per case by year o i NA 7 38381 $948 $951
Volime ™" T T T T NAL L 8B9ST 9230 9345
Rewenua 7 ’ : NA 13 B3454811% 87503371 % 8,800,342

f. Explain any ploj ected incremental losses from operations contained in the
financial projections that result from the implementation and oper ation of the
CON proposal.



0

24

Not 'applieablé There are no projected incremental-o'perating losses '
contained in the financial projections that result from the 1mplementatlon
and operation of the CON proposal.

Describe how this proposal is cost effectlve

The proposed acquisition by YNHASC/YNHH of MIA’s ownership interest

~ in SRMRC will permit the two MRI scanners on the Saint Raphael campus

to be incorporated into the MRI service currently operated by YNHIL This
will allow for staffing flexibility and efficiencies and will reduce duplicative
functions that eurrently exist including registration, scheduling, and billing.
This proposal will also permit the purchase of contrast, medical and non-

- medical supplies under YNHII’s current pur chasmg confracts which will

result in cost savings:



~ APPENDIX |

ORGANIZATION CHART
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Execution Copy

PARTNERSHIP INTEREST PURCHASE AGREEMENT

THIS PARTNERSHIP INTEREST PURCHASE AGREEMENT (this “Agreement™)
is dated September 11, 2012 and effective as of the Effective Time (as defined below), by and
between Medical Imaging Associates, P.C., a Connecticut professional corporation (“MFA4”) and

Yale-New Haven Ambulatory Servmes Corporation, a Connectlcut nonstock corporation
(“YNIL4SC”’)

BACKGROUND

WHEREAS, effective as of the effective time of the closing of the acquisition of certain
assets of the Hospital of Saint Raphael (“HSR™) by Yale-New Haven Hospital, Inc. (“YNHH")
pursuant to that certain Asset Purchase Agreement dated September 26, 2011 by and among
HSR, YNHH and certain other parties (as such agreement has or may be amended) (the
“Effective Time”), each of MIA and YNHASC owns fifty percent (50%) of the partnership
- interests of Saint Raphael Magnetic Resonance Center (“SRMRC™), a Connecticut general
parinership govermed by a certain Partnership Agreement dated September 29, 1987 by and
between MIA and DePaul Health Services Corpmatmn (the predecessor in interest to YNHASC)
. (the “Parmeisth Agreement™); and -

' WHEREAS YNHASC desntes to pmchase ﬂom MIA, and MIA desires to sell to
YNHASC, all of MIA’s partnership interest in SRMRC (the “Portnership Interest’) inreturn for

the Purchase Price (as defined below) on the terms and subject to the conditions set forth herein;
a.nd :

WHER]]AS following the purchase, YNHASC intends to lease or transfer the assets of

SRMRC to YNHH which will operate the assets as part of a provider-based department of
YNHH under 42 C.F.R. § 413.65.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the mutual promises herein
made, and in consideration of the representations, warranties and covenants herein contained, the
parties, intending to be legally bound, hereby agree as follows:

1. Purchase and Sale of Partnership Interest.

1.1 Puwrchase. On and subject to the terms of this Agreement and the Partnership
Agreement, at the Closing (as defined in Section 1.2) YNHASC (or, at its election, an affiliate of
YNIIASC) shall purchase from MIA, and MIA shall sell, transfer, assign and convey to
YNHASC (or such affiliate), all of MIA’s right, title and interest in and io the Partnership
Interest for the consideration of fifty percent (50%) of the fair market value of SRMRC as
determined by Regeuts Health Resources, Inc. (“Regenss”), adjusted as set forth below {(such
adjusted amount, the “Purchase Price”). The Purchase Price shall be paid by YNHASC to MIA
by check or wire transfer on the Closing Date (as hereinafter defined).

29




The parties acknowledge and agree to the determination by Regents of the fair market

value of SRMRC at Eight Million Four Hundred Thousand Dollars ($8 400,000). Accordingly,

the Purchase Price shall be calculated as fol]ows

(2) $8,400,00 shall be reduced by (i) Net Accounts Receivable (as hereinafter -

dcfmcd) and (ii) the amount required to satisfy all liabilities of SRMRC due with respect to the
period ending on the Closing Date (adjusted to reflect any amounts prepaid).

(b)  The amount obtained from the calculation outlined in (a) above shall be -

- muitiplied by fifty percent (50%).

For purposes of calculating thc Purchase Price, thc parties shall cause an
independent auditor (the “Audifor”) to prepare ycar-to-date audited financial stalements of

SRMRC through the end of the month preceding the Closing Date (as defined in Section 1.2) -

consistent with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). The Auditor shall be selected
by 'YNHASC, subject to MIA’s consent, which consent shall not be unteasonably withheld;
provided, however, that the parties agree that the Auditor shall not be an audit -firm currently
engaged by YNHASC (which firms are Ernst & Young and Marcum LLP). For purposes hereof,
“Net Acconnis Receivable” shall mean the estimated amount of receivables of SRMRC as of the
Closing Date for technical MRI services, net of billing or administrative fees, adjustments for
contractual allowances, and bad debt, all as determined by the Auditor consistent with GAAP.

The determination of thc Auditor shall be final. All expenses of the Auditor shall be paid: by
YNHASC,

SRMRC shall hold all cash {including rcstnctcd cash) and cash equivalents as of
the Clcsmg Date for a period of up to sixty (60) days following the Closing Date pending
completion of the audit referred to in the preceding paragraph. Promptly following completion
of the audit, SRMRC will distribute cash (including restricted cash) and cash equivalents
available for distribution in accordance with the audit. Such distribution shall be made in
~ proportion to the parties’ partnership interests in SRMRC as they existed immediately preceding
" the Closing Date; provided, however, that to the extent that SRMRC has made any capital

. expense following the Effective Time and prior to the Closing Date, which individually or in the

aggregate i3 in excess of $50,000 (the incurence of which expense shall be approved by both
- MIA and YNIIASC), an equitable adjustment shall be made to represent the unamortized portion

of such expenditure, with the purchascd capital 1tcms amortized on a stra1ght line basis over a

period of sixty (60} months.

: Accounts receivable of SRMRC shall be collected for 2 period of one hundred
eighty (180) days following the Closing in the ordinary course by New Haven Radiology
Associates, P.C. (“VHRA”) in accordance with the terms of the Billing Services Agreement
dated January 1, 2007 by and between SRMRC and NHRA, as such agreement has or may be
- amended (the “Billing Services Agreement”). All amounts collected, less the billing fee payable
to NHRA in accordance with the Billing Services Agreement and any payments for professional
or administrative services due to NHRA or MIA in aceordance with agreements between such
parties and SRMRC, shall be distributed to the parties on a monthly basis (within thirty (30) days
after the end of each month that accounts receivable are to be collected in accordance with this
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Section 1.1) in proportion to the parties’ partnership interests in SRMRC as they existed
immediately preceding the Closing Date, Notwithstanding the foregoing, collection activities
may cease prior to expiration of the one hundred cighty (180) day period referred to in this
paragraph at any time with the consent of both parties. In addition, the parties may agree to
engage a third party collection agency acceptable to each party to perform such coflection

activities, in which case NHRA will no longer be entitled to billing fees under the Billing™

Services Agreement,

1.2 = Closing; Clesing Date. The closmg of the transactions contemplated by this
Agreement (the “Closing”) shall take place at such date, time and place as the parties to this
Agreement mutually agree in writing following satisfaction or waiver of the closing conditions
set forth in Section 4 hereof, provided that, except as set forth in the following sentence, such
date shall be no earlier than the one year anniversary of the date hereof and no later than thirty
days following such anniversary date (the “Closing Date™). Notwithstanding anything herein. to
the contrary, the parties agree to effectuate the Closing contemporancously with the orderly
transition of professional radiology setvices at YNHH’s campus located at 1450 Chapel Street
(known as the Saint Raphael: Campus) to Yale School of Medicine; the process of such transition

~shatl oceur in consultation with NHRA.

1.3 Pre-Closing Cooperation.

(a)  The parties Shall cooperate to obtam any certificate of need reqmred tobe -

obtamed from the State of Connecticut Department of Public Health (the “Certificate of Need™).
MIA shall provide YNHASC with any information necessary or desirable in connection with the

Certificate of Need approval process. The parties shall use their reasonable best effoits to file an’

~ application for Certificate of Need‘approval on or before December 31, 2012,

(b) - The parties shall canse SRMRC o complete a year-end audit of its-

business as of September 30, 2012, which audit shall be performed by an independent auditor
(who shall be chosen by YNHASC, subject to MIA’s consent, which consent shall not be

unreasonably ‘withheld) and completed by November 30, 2012. All expenses of such audit shall

be paid by YNHASC,

1.4 . Effect of Purchase.

(a)  Immediately upon Closing, MIA shall have no further rights or obligations

a5 a partner of SRMRC, including without limitation any rights to participate in management or -

to receive distributions from SRMRC with respect to their ownership of the Partnership Interest
prior to the Closing, except that rights or obligations that, by the terms of the Partnership
Agreement survive withdrawal or termination of a partner shall survive in accordance with the
terms thereof other than Section 6.05 thereof.

(b) YNHASC agrees, upon Closing, to lease ar transfer the assets of SRMRC
to YNHH which will operate the assets as part of a provider~based department of YNHI under
42 C.F.R. § 413.65; the technical component of all services provided using such asseis following
the Closing will be bﬂled as a service of YNHI, using its provider numbers
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{c¢)  The parties will cooperate to ensure that billing for all services provided

by SRMRC prior to the Closing Date is billed under SRMRC’s provider number. To the extent

- that any payments are misdirected, the parties will cooperate to reconcile payments to the
approptiate parties. .

2. Representations and Warranties.

2.1 Representations and Warranties of MIA. MIA hereby represents and warrants 1o
YNHASC that the statements contained in this Section 2.1 are and will be correct and complete
as of the date of this Agreement, as of the Effective Time and as of the Closing Date.

(a) Organization and Good Standing. MIA is a professional . corporation

validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the State of Connecticut with fiull power -

and authority to own, lease and operate its properties and to carry on the business as now belng
and as heretofore conducted

(b)  Authorization of Transactions. MIA has the requisite corporate power and

“capacity, and has taken all action necessary or appropriate, to execute and deliver this Agreement

and to perform its obligations hereunder. This Agreement constitutes the valid and legally

binding obligation of MIA, enforceable in accordance with its terms and conditions. MIA has

the requisite corporate power and capacity to execute and deliver any notice to, make any filing

“with, or obtain any authorization, consent, or approval of, any governmental authority in: order to
consummate the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.

(c) Noncontravention.  Neither the execution and the delivery of this-

~ Agreement, nor the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby, will (i) violate any
provision of the Certificate of Incorporation, Bylaws or other governing document of MIA, (11)
violate any constitution, statute, regulation, rule, injunction, -judgment, order, decree, ruling,
charge or other restriction of any governtmental authority to which MIA is subject, or (iii) conflict
with, result in a breach of, constitute a default under, result in the acceleration of, create in any
party the right to accelerate, terminate, modify or cancel, or require any notice or consent under,
~-any agreement; coniract, lease, license, instrument or anangement to which I\/,[IA is a party or by
Wthh it is bound.

(d)  Brokers’ Fees. MIA has no liability or obligation to pay any fees or
commissions to any broker, finder or agent with respect to the transactions contemplated by this
Agreement for which YNHASC could become liable or obligated.

()  Litigation. There is not now any action, suit, investigation or proceeding
pending, or to the best knowledge of MIA, threatened against, involving or affecting MIA, the
Partnership Interest or SRMRC before any court or arbitrator or any governmental body, agency
or official, including a tax authorlty, and, to- the best knowledge of MIA there is no basis therefor
at this time.
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(f)  Partnership Interest. MIA holds of record and owns beneficially the-

* Partnership Interest, free and clear of any restrictions on transfer (except as described in the
Partnership Apreement), security interests, options, warrants, purchasc rights, puts, calls,
contracts, commifments, equities, claims or demands. MIA is not a party to any option, warrant,
purchase right or other contract or commitment that could require it to sell, transfer or otherwise
dispose of any portion of the Partnership Interest.

22  Representations and Warranties of YNHASC. YNHASC hereby represents and
warrants to MIA that the statements. contained in this Section 2.2 are and will be correct and
.complete as of the date of this Agreement, as of the Effective Time and as of tHe Closing Date.

) (a) Organization and Good Standing. YNHASC is a nonstock corporation

. Vahdly existing and in good standing under the laws of the State of Conmecticut with full power
and authority to own, lease and operate its properues and o camry on the busmess as now being
and as heretofore conducted. -

(b) Authorization of Transactions. YNHASC has the requisite corporate
power and capacity, and has taken all action necessary or appropriate, to execute and deliver this
Agreement and to perform its obligations hereunder. This Agreement constitutes the valid and
legally binding obligation of YNHASC, enforceable in accordance with its terms and conditions,
YNHASC has the requisite corporate power and capacity to execute and deliver any notice to,
make any filing with, or obtain any authorization, consent, or approval of, any governmental
authority in order to consummate the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.

(¢)  Nonconiravention. Neither the execution and the delivety of this
Agreement nor the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby, will (i) violate any
. provision of the certificate of iticorpotation, bylaws or other governing document of YNHASC,
(i) violate any constitution, statute, regulation, rule, injunction, judgment, order, decree, ruling,
charge or other resiriction of any governmental authority to which YNHASC is subject, or (iii)
confliet with, result in'a breach of, constitute a default under, result in the acceleration of] create
in any party the right fo accelerate, terminate, modify or cancel, or require any notice or consent
under, any agreement, contract, lease, license, instrument or arrangement to which YNHASC is a
party or by which it is bound., '

‘ (d) Brokers Fees. YNHASC has no hab111ty or obligation to pay any fees or
commissions to any broker, finder or agent with respect to the transactions contemplated by this
Agreement for which MIA could become liable or obligated.

(e)  Litigation. There is not now any action, suit, investigation or proceeding
pending, or.to the best knowledge of YNHASC, threatened against, invelving or affecting
YNHASC before any court or arbiirator or any governmental body, agency or official which in
any manner challenges or seeks to prevent, enjoin, alter or delay the consummation of the
transactions contemplated by this Agreement and, to the best knowledge of YNHASC, there is
no basis therefor at this time, '
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3. Further Assurances. In the event that at any time after execntion and delivery of this
Agreement any further action is necessary or desirable fo carry out the purposes of this
© Agreement in a manner consistent with this Agreement, each of the parties will take such futther
action (including the execntion and delivery of such further instruments and documents) as the
oother patty may reasonably request, all at the sole cost and expense of the requesting party.

4, Conditions tb Obligation to Close.

41  Conditions to Obligation of YNHASC. The obligation of YNHASC to
consummate the transaction to be performed by it in connection with the Closing is subject to
satisfaction of the following conditions:

{a) .MIA shall have conveyed to YNHASC the Partnership Interest free and

clear of all claims, liens and encumbrances, pursuant to an assignment agreement reasonably .

satisfactory to both parties; and

(b) The partles shall have received a favorable Certificate of Need authorizing

“the purchase by YNHASC (or, at its electlon an afﬁhate of YNHASC) of the Partnership-

Interest.

42 Conditions to Obligation of MIA. The obligation of MJA to consummate the
transaction to be performed by it in connection with the Closing is subject to receipt of the
Purchase Price at Closing by check or wire transfer.

- 5, Indemnification and Insurance.

51  Swrvival. All of the representations, warranties and covenanis of the parties
contained in this Agreement will survive indefinitely.

- 5.2 Indemnification by MIA. MIA shall indemnify. and hold YNHASC and its

. affiliates, employees, agents, predecessors, sueccessors, representatives, heirs and assigns -

harmless from and against (a) any and all liability (including interest and penaliies), damages,
losses, -taxes and expenses (including reasonable attorneys’ fees and expenses) (“Losses™)
suffered or incurted by them and relating to or arising from. any breach of any representation,
warranty or covenant made by MIA under this Agreement or any other document delivered in
- connection herewith, and (b) fifty percent (50%) of any and all Losses suffered. or incurred by
SRMRC and relating to or arising from the operations of SRMRC prior to the Closing Date,
other then trade payables and other expenses arising in the normal course of SRMRC’s
operatlons

53  Indemnification by YNHASC. YNHASC shall indemnify and hold MIA and its
affiliates, employees, agents, predecessors, successors, representatives, heirs and assigns
harmless from and against (2) any and all Losses suffered or incurred by them and relating to or
arising from any breach of any representation, warranty or covenant made by YNHASC under
this Agreement or any other document delivered connection herewith, and , and (b) fifty percent
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(50%) of any and all Losses suffered or incurred by SRMRC and relating to or arising from the
operations of SRMRC from the date of this Agreement to the Closing Date, other than trade
payables and other expenses arising in the normal course of SRMRC’s operations.

54  Procedure, In the event any claim, action, investigation, proceeding or other
matter is commenced or asserted in writing by a third party that may give rise to a Loss subject to
indemnification hereunder (each a “Third-Party Claim™), the party with a potential right to
indemnification hereunder shall give mnotice to the indemnifying party with reasonable
promptuess after it gains actual knowledge of the Third-Party Claim, including all relevant
particulars. thereof, provided, that failure to comply with this provision shall not affect a party’s
right to indemmnification hereunder except to the extent such failure materially prejudices the
indemnifying party’s liability for the Tosses. The indemnifying party shall have to right to
defend against the Third-Party Claim with counsel of its-choosing but reasonably satisfactory o
the indemnified party. The indemnified party shall be entitled to participate in such defense with
its own counsel at its own expense. Both parties shall provide to the other and its counsel all
reasonable cooperation necessary or appropriate in connection with defending against the Third-
~-Party Claim. The indemnifying party may not agree to settle any Third-Party Claim without the
written consent of the indemnified party, unless such settlement involves only the payment of
money by the indemnifying party and no imposition of obligations on, or 11ab111ty or admissions
by, thie indemnified party or its afﬁllates

- 5.5  Limitations. = Written notice of any claim for indemnification hereunder must be
given no later than two (2) years after the Closing Date. The aggregate amount of all sums
payable by cither party in discharge of {ts indemnification obligations hereunder shall be limited
to eighty percent (80%) of the Purchase Price. The foregoing limitation shall not apply to any
indemnification claim based on the fraudulent conduct or 1ntent10nal misconduct of the
mdemmfym g party

5.6 Exclusive Remedy. Each of the parties agrees that its sole and exclusive remedy
after the Closing with respect to any and all claims relating to this Agreement, the events giving
rise to this Agreement and the transactions provided for herein or contemplated hereby, shall be
pursuant to the: indemnification provisions contained in this Section 5. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, the limifations set forth in this Section 5.6 shall not apply to any claim of a Party
against another Party (i) based on the actual fraud of such other Party, (ii) asserted under the
Partnership Agreement, or (iii) asserted under any other agreement between the parties.

5.7  Insurance. The parties shall cause SRMRC to maintain insurance during the term
of this Agreement consistent with Section 9.01 of the Partnership Agreement. To the extent that
any such policies of insurance provide for coverage on a “claims-made™ basis, on or before the
Closing Date, the parties shall cause SRMRC to purchase a reporting endorsement or “tail”
coverage covering a period of two (2) years post-Closing or as required by applicable law.

0. Termination and Dissolution. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, in the
event that the parties have not received a favorable Certificate of Need authorizing the purchase
by YNHASC (or, at its election, an affiliate of YNIASC) of the Parinership Interest on or before

488\093\2733235.20 7

35




the one year anniversary of the date hereof (the “Qutside Date”), the parties shall take all such
actions as may be necessary to dissolve SRMRC, consistent with the terms of the Partnership
Agreement, within thirty (30) days after the Outside Date.

7. Miscellaneous, .

7.1  Tax Periods Ending on or After Closing Date. SRMRC shall prepare and file or

cause to be prepared and filed all tax returns for all periods ending on or after the Closing Date
which are required to be filed after the Closing Date. MIA, YNHASC and SRMRC shall
cooperate in connection with the filing of such tax returns and any audit, litigation or other
proceedings with respect to such taxes. To the extent permitted by applicable law, MIA shall
include any income, gain, loss, deduction or other tax items for such periods on its tax returns in
a manner consistent with applicable law and the Schedule K-1s furnished by SRMRC for such

periods. Unless otherwise required by law, the parties agree that SRMRC shall elect to use the
interim closing of the books method for allocating items of income, losses or other partnershlp '

items between MIA and YNHASC as if SRMRC’s tax year ended on the Closing Date.

72 No Thlrél—Parw Beneficiaries. ~This Agreement will not confer any rights or
remedies upon any person other than the. partics and their respective successors and permrtted
assigns. :

73  Entire Acreement. This Agreement (includjng the documents referred to herein -

and the schedules attached hereto) constitutes the entire agreement between the parties, and
supersedes any prior understandings, agreements, or representations by or between the parties,
written or oral, to the extent they related in any way to the subject matter hereof.

7.4 Succession and Assignment. This Agreement will be binding upon and inure to

the benefit of the parties and their respective successors and permitted assigns, No party rriay

assign either this Agreement or any of its rights, interests ot obligations hereunder w1thout the

prior written approval of the other party.

_ 7.5 Ceuntemaﬂs. This Agreement may- be executed and delivered (including by
electronic or facsimile transmission) in several counterparts, each of which shall be an original,
so that all of which taken together shall constitute one and the same instrument.

7.6  Headings. The Section headings contained in this Agreement are inserted for

convenience only and will not affect in any way the meaning or interpretation of this Agreement,

7.7 - Notices, Any nofice, request or other communication hereunder (each, a

“Notiee”) shall be delivered to a party at its address set forth below. All Notices shall be in
- writing, sent by first class mail or by private or commercial courier, and deemed to have been
duly given upon proper delivery to the proper address. Either party may change the address to
which Notices hereunder are to be delivered by giving the other party notice in the manner herein
set forth.
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If to MIA: ' If to YNHASC:

Med.ical Imaging Associates, P.C. Yale-New Haven An{bula‘rory Services -
11 Lunar Drive : Corporation

Woodbridge, CT 06525 20 York Street

Attention: Zenon Protopapas, M.D. New Haven, CT 06510
Attention: President

With a copy to: . " 'With a copy to:

Day Pitney LLP . Yale-New Haven Hospital

242 Trumbull Street Legal and Risk Services Department
Hartford, CT 06103 © 789 Howard Avenue, CB 230

Atto: Robert G. Siegel, Esq. New Haven, CT 06510
: Attention: General Counsel

7.8 Governihg Law. This Agreement Willrbe governed by, and constited and . -

__enforced in accordance Wﬁh, the laws of the State of Connecticut, without piving effect to its
conflict of laws principles. '

7.9 Amendments and Waivers. No .amendment of any provision of this Agreement
will be valid unless the same is in writing and signed by YNHASC and MIA. No waiver by
either party of any default, misrepresentation or breach of warranty or covenant hereunder,
whether intentional or not, will be deemed to extend to any prior or subsequent defauit,
misrepresentation or breach of warranty or covenant herennder, or affect in any way any rights
arising by virtue of any prior or subsequent such cccurrence.

- 7.10 Severabﬂig., Any term or provision of this. Agreement that is invalid or
unenforeeable in any situation in any jurisdiction will not affect the validity or enforceability of -
the remaining terms and provisions hereof or the validity or enforceability of the offending term

or provision in amy other sitwation or in any other jurisdiction,

7.11  Consiruction. The parties have participated jointly in the negotiation and drafiing

. of this Agreement. In the event an ambiguity or question of intent or interpretation arises, this

~ Agreement will be construed as if drafted jointly by the parties, and no presumption or burden of
proof will arise favoring or disfavoring either party by virfue of the authorship of any of the
provisions of this Agreement. Any reference to any federal, state or local statute or law will be
deemed also to refer to all rules and regulations promulgated thereunder, unless the contexi
requires otherwise. The word “including” will mean including without Himitation. The parties
infend that cach representation, warranty and covenant contained herein will have independent

significance. If any party has breached any representation, warranty or covenant contained herein -

in any respect, the fact that there exists another representation, warranty or covenant relating to
the same subject matter (regardless of the relative levels of specificity) that the party has not
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breached will not detract from or mitigate the fact that the party is in breach of the'ﬁl_‘st'
representation, warranty or covenant. ' :

[Signature page follows.]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, the parties hereto have executed this Partnership Interest

Purchase Agreement as of the date first above written to be effective on and after the Effective

Time.

4881409312733235.20 .

MEDICAL IMAGING ASSOCIATES, P.C. '

By: L \\\W .

‘Name: Zenon P\foyﬁ'apas, M.D.
Title:  President

YALE-NEW HAVEN AMBULATORY
SERVICES CORPORATION

. By:. @M/g/%z |

Name: %{je_s M. Staten
Tiile: asurer
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ADDRESS
Office:

41

 GAYLE L. CAPOZZALQ, FACHE

Yale New Haven Health o ' - Home: 110 Lower Road
789 Howard Avenua : Guilford, CT 06437
New Haven, CT 08519 (203) 453-9758

(203) 688-2605

HEALTH SERVICES EXPERIENCE

1997_ -Present

Executive Vice President. Strateav & System Development, Yale Mew Haven
Health System (YNHHS), New Haven, Connecticut. Major regional multi-hospital
system in Connecticut with assets and annual revenues in excess of $2 billion.
Report to YNHHS President/CEO; a member of the System senior leadership team
consisting of: The President/CEO of YNHHS/YNHH, Chief Operating Officers of Yale-
New Haven Hospital the CEOs of Greenwich Hospital and Bridgeport Hospital and
~ Chief Financial Officer of YNHHS. Respansible for leading and directing the growth,
-diversification, clinical and operational-integration, strategy, petformance
management and annual performance measurement process for the System. Direct
shared and corporate services, including performance management, human
resources, legal, leadership development, training and education, clinical quality,
patient safety, operational measurement and improvement, corporate compliance and
privacy, strategic planning, government relations, emergency preparedness, grant
developmenti, and business development

Member of the following YNHHS Boards of Directors:

= Greenwich Hospital and related corporations, Greenwich, CT

= Bridgeport Hospital and related corporations, Bridgeport, CT

*  Ambulatory Services Corporatron — provides radiology, surgery. and recovery
services in southern CT

= Shoreline Surgical Corporation — a joint venture with physicians (chair)
= Physician practice foundation for physician employment (chair)

Accom'pﬁshmentsf

« Established, developed and led non-profit physician foundation to emp'[oy
physicians across the System

~w Led the transition of a $40 million Ambula’[ory Servrces Corporatlon through. -

furnaround and restructuring.

®  Continued the expansion of the System by addmg hospitals and ambutatory
centers and physician pracfices

» Created and directed the development of statewide service llnes in Oncology,
Cardiology and Pediatrics

»  Facilitated the establishment and sirategic direction of Yale-New Haven Hospital
service lines In eight specialiies

= | ed the development of a full-service 80,000 square foot ambulatory care center,
including ambulatory surgery, radiation therapy, satellite emergency services,
lahoratory services, physician offices and radiology services.

* Instrumental in the design and implementation of a Systemwide performance
management strategy and structure to enhance clinical quality, patient safety and
operations performance, The strategy included the development of a performance
management infrastructure, full-time performance management coordinators, an
electronic balanced scorecard to provide managers with timely, detailed
information to monitor, communicate and improve performance and an Institute for



1993 — 1997

- Quality Improvement and Quality Assurance, System Strategic Planning and System

™ [nstrumental in the design and implementation of a regionalization strategy for

» Lead the transition of the Sisters of Charity of the Incarnate Word to

42 -

Excellence to develop leadership for the future. Responsible for directing and ‘
managing the effort.
=  Created and direct the Institute for Excellence, Systemwide management
development, succession planning and corporate leadership, training and
education function.

. = Led the integration and standardization of clinical and adminisfrative services

across the System.
» led the development of a Systemwide three-year standardization project that
standardized 365 operational and administrative processes.across the System.
= Created and manage Systemwide Office of Emergency Preparedness,
Systemwide corporate compliance, Systemwide compensation and benefit
management, and Systemwide strategic planning process to enhance
collaboration, improve performance and create economies of scale.

Senior Vice President. Organizational Development. Sisters of Charity of the -
Incarnate Word Health Care System (SCH), Houston, Texas. Major Catholic
multi-hospital system (14th largest health care system - $2 hillion in assets) (3932
acute beds, 620 long-term care and residential beds and numerous health businesses
and programs). Report to System President/CEO; a member of the senior leadership
feam of the System; interact regularly with System governance and member of Board
Commitiees. Responsible for leading and directing Systemwide Leadership
Development, System Organizational Development, Growth and Diversification of the
Ministry, System Managed Care, System Human Resources, System Continuous

Communications functions including staffs. Responsible for leading the System
efforts in the development and operation of integrated community health networks
(ICHN) and mergers and acquisitions.

Accomplishments:

(SCHY), health care centers and services in Southeast Texas.
» Instrumental in the design and implementation of a regionalization strategy for
(SCH), healih care centers and services in the state of Louisiana.

co-sponsorship of Catholic Healthcare West, including the fransition of two (SCH),
health care centers to CHW. '

= | ead the development, implementation and governance of a statewide joint venture
triple option insurance product in Louisiana with Ochsner Clinic. The HMO graw
from 70,000 io 130,000 [ives in one year.

= Instrumental in the development, implementation and governance of a $100 miltion

joint veniure health network in Houston, Texas between (SCH), and Memorial
Health System, the largest not for profit health care sysiem in Houston. The $100
million health network includes physician practices, group practices, management
seryices organization, clinics, home health, wellness services, and a PPO, TPA,
HMO and indemnity insurance product

"®  |ead the development, implementation and managerment of numerous physwlan

hospital organizations (PHO) in Louisiana and Texas.
= | ead the development, implementation, governance and management of a

Louisiana statewide MSO, emplaying 75 physicians and managing 35 physician
practices.

= | ead the development, implementation, governance and management of a risk
insurance joint venture with Arkansas Blue Cross/Blue Shield.
= Directed a 25,000 enrollee Depaitment of Defense HMO until ifs integrafion into the

2



1982 - 1993

1986 — 1993

1982 - 1986

1981 -1982

Memonal SCH Healih Network.

»  Member of governing board of two HMOs, PPOs and i insurance companies.

Member of governing board and officer of a 75~physmlan management searvices
organization (MSO). '

» |nstrumental in the development and implementation of the reengineering of (SCH),

corporate office resulting in a reduction of hierarchy, initiation of process work
feams, reduction of costs and focus on strategic Ieadershtp and creating the
System's future.

= [niifated and administered Systemwide leadership development program including

education, succession planning, competency based behavicr performance
evaluations, eic. o

= | ead the development and administration of a systemwide initiative to fast track

qualified women to senior leadership.

* [nstrumenial in the reductlon of costs per we[ghted dlscharge by 25% in a three-

year period.

Strateqm Dovelopment. SSM Health Care System.  St. Louis, Missouri. Major

Catholic multi-hospital system (4,000 acute beds, 500 long term care and residential

. beds and numerous health busmesses and programs)

~ Senior Vice President Reported to System President/CEQ; a member of the senior

leadership of the System; interacted regularly with System governance; directed
Corporate Strategic Planning, Corporate Communications, Corporate Managed Care,
Physician/Hospital Organization Directors and staiffs. Member of Board of Directors for

all System for profit corporations. Responsibilities included organizing and directing the

System strategic planning process; developing sirategic planning policies and
marketing strategies for the System; directing research and development function of
the System; directing managed care activities of the System; directing networking
activities of the System, e.g., collaboration, acquisition and affiliation; directing
communication function of the System including advertising and public relations.

Instrumental in implementing- Clinical Quality Improvement. Responsible for leading.

System cross functional feams in implementing a new System-wide strategic and

financial planning process which incorporates Continuous Quality Improvement -

principles, implementing patient-focused care, developing integrated delivery networks
in specific geographical areas and esiablishing Sysiem-wide customer feedback
mechanisms for physicians. Responsible for managing andfor consulting in
Continuous - Quality Improvement, sfrategic planning, marketing, delivery system

integraticn and managed care at fweniy-four member institutions and programs. -

Responsibilittes also included developing Continuous Quality [mprovement
implementation plans, cumriculum and teaching Continuous Quality [mprovement
courses throughout the System. Lead the system efforis to reglonallze all hea[’[h cara
centers and .services in the greater St. Louis area

Corporate Birector of PlannianMarketinq. Reported to Presideni of the Gaverning
Board of the System. Supervised corporate planning, marketing and managed care
staffs. Responsibiliiies inciuded organizing and directing the first system planning
process and development of a new structure for the system. Responsibilities also
included directing the marketing research, product development, marketing strategy

“development and alternative delivery activity of the system.

Principal, Health Studies Institute. Inc., Columbia, Missouri. Consultant and Project
Director for ptanning, managemeni and education to health care organizations.




1980-1981 - - Business Development Staff. 8t. Louis University Hospital and Clinics, St. Louis,

Missouri. Major responsibility included the development of an education subsidiary
corporation. Reported to the Chief Operating Officer of the hospital.

¢
I

1978 - 1980 - Faculty Member. Universitv of Missouri-Columbia. Graduate Studies in Health

Services Management. Major responsibilities included developing and coordinating a
baccalaureaie degree program in Health Services Management; developing and:
teaching courses in health care delivery, management and planning. Other
responsibilities included student advisement and curriculum design.

- EDUCATION

- 2002 - . Post-Master studies: St. Louis University, Center for Health Services Education and
: Research, St. Louis, Missouri, specialized in Health Services Marketing and
Administration. Doctoral comprehensive examinations completed. (Grade point 3.95 on
4.0 scale.) Fifteen graduate credit hours in marketing.
1978 ~ Master of Science in Public Health (MSPH) with a concentration in Health Planning;

University of Missouri-Columbia, Department of Health Services Management, May
1978. (Grade point 4.0 on 4.0 scale.) Program accredited by Accrediting Commission
on Education for Health Services Administration. Stuart A. Wesbury, Jr. Award for
Academic Excellenice. Class Prasident.

Bachelor of Ars; University'of Maryland, College Park, Maryland. Graduated in
Political Science and Histary. Dean's list; Mortar Board; VWhe's Who Among Students
in Colleges and Universities; President, Associated Women Students Umversnty of
Maryland Alumni Outstandmg Leadership Award.

APPOINTMENTS

~ Professional

Chair-Elect, American College of Healthcare Executives (ACHE) (2011}
Board Member, VHA Northeast (2001-Present); Chair (2010 —2013)

Board Member, Secretary, Past Chair, Connect:cut Association of Healihcare Executives (2004—-7

Present)

Board Member, Greenwich Health Care Services. (1997-Present)

Board Member, Biidgeport Hospital & Healthcare Services. (1997-Present)

Alumni Board, University of Missouri-Columbia (2003—Present) :
American College of Healthcare Executives (ACHE) Regents Advisory Council- CT. (1999 Presant)
Co-Chair, The Leadership Institute (2008—2010)Board Member, Board of Governors, American College
to Healthcare Executives (2007-2010) _

Board Member, Board of Overseers, Malcolm Baldrige National Quality Award (2006— 2009)

Regent, American College of Healthcare Executives (Connecticut) (2004—-2007)

Program Committee, European Forum on Quality Improvement in Health Care. (1995-1999)

Member, Review Board, Quality Management in Health Care Magazine. (1993-2006)

Board Member, Institute for Healthcare Improvement. (1993-2001)

Co-Chair, National Forum on Quality Improvemeni in Healthcare, sponsored by the Institute for
Healthcare Improvement. (1992,1993,1994)

Vice Chairperson, Execufive Commiitee, Healthcare Quality Management Network, Institute for
Healthcare Improvement. (1991-1994)

Member, Holy Cross Health System, Board of Directors, Mission & Planning Commlttee (1990- 1994)
President, Catholic Health System Planners and Marketers. (1988-1989)
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= Member, Strategic Planning Committee, Society of Healthcare Planning and Marketing (AMA)
(1988-1989) ,

»  Co-Chairperson, Membership Committee, Society of Healthcare Planning and Marketing (19851987}

»  Chairperson, St. Louis Association of Women in Health Administration. (1984-1986) -

x  Vice Chairperson, ACHE Ad Hoc Committee of Women in Health Administration. (1982-1984)

Community ' ‘ ' :

Board Member/Chair, Connecticut Public Broadcasting. (1999-Present)

Board Member, International Festival of Arts & Ideas. (2008-Present)

Board Member/Sacretary, New Haven Symphony Orchestra. (1999-2007) ,

Member, Executive Commitiee, National Migrant Worker Council, Inc. (1993-1995)

Board Member, National Migrant Worker Council, Inc. (1992-1995)

Education Faculty

» Faculty Member, Yale University, Department of Epidemiology and Public Health. (2000-Present)

»  Preceptor, University of Missouri-Columbia, Health Services Management (June 2003 — Presenf)

= Faculty Member, Institute for Healthcare Improvement, Bosten, MA. (1992-Present)

*  Adjunct Faculty Member, St. Louis University, Center for Health Services Educatton and Research St
Louis, MO. (1985- Present)

PROFESSIONAL MEMBERSHIPS

. Fellotvv, American College of Hea]thcare' Executives (ACHE)
Member, Society of Healthcare Planning and Marketing (AHA).
» Member, American College of Health Care Marketmg

PRESENTATIONS AND PUBLICATIONS
2011

Presentation, Long Island Universily, Westchester Campus
" THE HEALTHCARE REFORM FALL-OUT: STRATEGIC CHOICES FOR
HEALTHCARE LEADERS

Presentation, Amer[can College of Healthcare Executives
FORCES OF CHANGE: NEW LEADERSHIP TO IMPROVE HEALTHCARE IN
AMERICA

2010
Presentation, Institute for Healthcare Improvement
ACHIEVING COMPREHENSIVE, SAFE PATIENT FLOW IN AN ACADEMIC
MEDICAL, CENTER

Presentation, Columbia University
MANAGEMENT CHALLENGES IN THE EVOLVING HEALTHCARE
AND INSURANCE SYSTEM

Presentation, The Leadership Institute
YALE NEW HAVEN HEALTH AND EMERGING SOCIAL MEDIA

‘Presentation, American CoHegé of Healthcare Executives
' ACHE, NEW JERSEY REGENT BREAKFAST -

Presentatton American College of Healthcare Executives Rhode Island Chapter
THE CASE FOR ACHE IN 2010 AND BEYOND
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2003

Presentation, The Leadership Institute
PERFORMANCE EXCELLENCE

Presentation, Yale School of Public Health
. YALE HEALTHCARE MANAGEMENT PROGRAM

Presentation, Yale University Schocl of Public Heal’th, Class of '54 Reunion
HEALTHCARE REFORM

Presentation, American College of Healthcare Executives
~ ACHE REFLECTIONS ON LEADERSHIP

Presentation, Institute for Healthcare lmprovemenc
"USING MEASUREMENT TO GUIDE IMPROVEMENT

Presentation, Institute for Healthcare Improvement
USING MEASURENMENT TO GUIDE IMPROVEMENT

Presentation, The Leadership [nstitute
HOSPITALS NOT FOR PROFIT STATUS

Presentation, University of Columbia-Missouri Alumni Meeting
HEALTHCARE IN THE 2000s

Presentation, The Leadershlp Institute
YALE NEW HAVEN HEALTH HEART INSTITUTE

Presentatlon SG2
' TECHNOLOGY EVALUATION AND ADOPTION PLANNING

Presentation, Better Management LIVE WorldWIde
ACHIEVING PERFORMANCE EXCELLENCE IN A COMPLEX
HEALTHCARE DELIVERY SYSTEM

Presentation, The Leadership [nstitute
STRATEGY ORGANIZATION AND STAFFING
LEADERSHIP INSTITUTE STRATEGISTS’ FORUM

Presentation, [nstitute for Héa[’thcarellmpmVement National Forum on Quality Management
A PERFORMANCE MANAGENMENT INITIATIVE:
YALE NEW HAVEN HEALTH SYSTEM'S STRATEGY

Presentation, Institute for Healthcare Improvement National Forum on Quality Improvement
STAYING AHEAD OF EMERGING SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY

46
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Presentation, National Committee for Quality- Healthcare
USING TECHNOLOGY TO DELIVER QUALITY HEALTHCARE

F’resentatlon Institute for Hea[’thcare Improvement National Forum on Quality Improvement
" MEDICAL SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY: OPPORTUNITY OR THREAT

Presentat[on Institute for Heaﬁhcare Improvement National Forum on Quahty Improvement
WOMEN EXECUTIVES AND THE GLASS CEIL[NG

Presentation, The Leadership Institute o
LEVERAGING  CLINICAL DEVELOPMENT TO CREATE AN
ENTREPRENEURIAL ENVIRONMENT . :

Presentatton Modem Healthcare 2001 Healthcare 1T Quisourcing Summit
LEVERAGING THE INTERNET TO ENHANCE CUSTOMER RELATIONSHIPS

Presentation, American College of Healthcare Executives

2020 VISION: USING SCIENCE AS THE BASIS FOR HEALTH SYSTEM
STRATEGY

Presentation, Institute for Healthcare Improvement National Forum on Quality Imprevement
WOMEN IN LEADERSHIP IN THE NEXT CENTURY

F’resentatlon VHA Northeast
TRENDS IN HEALTH SYSTEM DEVELOPNIENT

Presentation, Institute for Heaithcare Improvement Nationral Forum on Quality Improvement
WOMEN IN LEADERSHIP IN THE NEXT CENTURY

Presentation, Yale University, Epidemiology and Public Health
THE STRATEGIC APPLICATION OF INFORMATION
TECHNOLCGY IN AN INTEGRATED DELIVERY SYSTEM:
CHALLENGES & CONSIDERATIONS

Preéentaﬁon, American College of Healthcare Executives
HEALTHCARE MERGERS, ACQUISITIONS & AFFILIATIONS:
EMERGING TRENDS IN THE INDUSTRY

Presentation, Yale University, Epidemiology -and Public Health
EVALUATING HORIZONTAL, VERTICAL &% VIRTUAL SYSTEM
PERFORMANCE

Presentation, Institute for Healthcare improvement’s Tenth Annual National Forum on
CQuality Improvement in Healthcare {Ortando, FL)
TAKING LEADERSHIP INTO ACTION
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‘Presentation, Second European Forum on Quality Improvement in Health Care (Vienna))

STRATEGIC QUALITY PLANNING: THE WAY TO FOCUS
YOUR IMPROVEMENT EFFORTS

Presentatlon Institute for Healthcare lmprovement's Ninth Annual National Forum on
Quality Improvement in Healthcare (Orlando, FL)
TAKING LEADERSHIP INTO ACTION

. Presentation, Visiting Nurses Association Annual Meeting

TAKING LEADERSHIP INTO ACTION

Presen{ation, Second European Forum on Quality Improvement in Health Care (Paris)
' STRATEGIC QUALITY PLANNING: THE WAY TO FOCU3
YOUR IMPROVEMENT EFFORTS

Presentation, First European Forum on Quality Improvement in Health Care (London)
STRATEGIC QUALITY PLANNING: THE WAY TO F’OCUS
YOUR IMPROVEMENT EFFORTS

Capozzalo, Gayle; Bisognano, Maureen; Gaucher, BSN, MSN, Ellen; Ryan, FSM, Sr
Mary Jean "The Glass Ceiling in Health Care: A Roundtable Dlscussmn " Qual:t
Connection,

Presentation, Institute for Mealthcare Improvement's Seventh Annual National Forum on
Quality Improvement in Healthcare (Orlando, FL)
FOCUSING YOUR IMPROVEMENT EFFORTS

' Symposium, [nstitute for Healthcare Improvement's 7th Annual Naticnal Forum on Quality

Improvement in Health Care (Orlando, FL)
WHERE'S THE FEMALE LEADERSHIP?

Presentation, National Association for Healthcare Quality 20th Annual Educational

‘Conference (Minneapolis, MN)

STRATEGIC QUALITY PLANNING: THE'WAY TO FOCUS
YOUR IMPROVEMENT EFFORTS

Presentation, Lovelace Health System's Dreams and Nightmares: Designs for Integrated

. Healthcare System (Santa Fe, NM)

Presentation, Baltimore Medic_él System Annual Meeting (Baltimore, MD)
INTEGRATED HEALTH SYSTEMS

Capozzalo (Gayle, IVlcCorkle Vincent J.; Roberts Curtis S. "Inventlng the Future Health
Progress, ‘

‘Presentation, Quality Managemen’f Nefwork

DEVELOPING INTEGRATED COMNMUNITY HEALTH NETWORKS

' Course, Institute for Healthcare Improvement

DEVELOPING AND MANAGING AN INTEGRATED HEALTH SYSTEM
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Presentation, Institute for Healthcare Improvement Sixth Annual National Forum on Quallty

Improvement in Health Care (San Diego, CA)
STRATEGIC QUALITY PLANNING: THE WAY TO FOCUS YOUR
IMPROVEMENT EFFORTS

Presentation, Catholic: Health Sys{em Planners & Marketers (Houston, TX):
INTEGRATED COMMUNITY HEALTH NETWORK DEVELOPMENT
IN THE (5CH), HEALTH CARE SYSTEM

Presentation, Texas Gulf Coast Associaﬁon for Health Care Quality (Houston, TX):
THE AFFECTS GF MERGER MANIA ON REAL PEOPLE

Capozzale, Gayfe Hiywak, Jr., FHFMA, John W.; Kenny, MBA, Barbara; Krivenko, MD
Charles A. "Experts Discuss How Benchmarkmg Improves the Healthcare Industry.”,

' Hea[thcare Financial Manaqemeni

Presentation, Texas Association of Homes for the Aging 35th Annual Meeting (Dallas, TX):
PREPARING FOR A MANAGED CARE ENVIRONMENT

Presentation, Texas Society for Healthcare Quality Annual Meeting (Dallas, TX):
WILL QUALITY BE A STRATEGY OF HEALTHCARE REFORM?

Presentatioﬁ SouthWeéL Saciety for Healihcare Ma-rkeling-(Houstoh, TR
INTEGRATION OF CQl WITH STRATEGIC AND
FINANCIAL PLANNING

,F’resentatton lnstltute for Healthcare Improvement Fifth Annual National Forum on Quality

Improvement in Healih Care (Orlando FL):
APPLYING THE PRINCIPLES QF CQI TO ORGANIZATION-W[DE
-~ STRATEGIC PLANNING

Presentation, Texas Guli Coast Assoctation for Health Care Quality (Houston, TX):
WILL QUALITY BE A STRATEGY OF HEALTH CARE REFORM?

Presentation, American Academy of Medical Admmlstrators 36th Annual Conference (San

. . Antonio, TX):

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS OF INTEGRATED COMMUNITY
HEALTH NETWORKS

Capozzalo, Gayle. "Quallty Improvement Principles Power New Strategic and Financial
Planning Process,” The Quality Letter for Healthc:are Leaders
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Presentafion, Managmg and Maintaining Continuous Quallty in Health Care, Institute for -

~ International Studies, (Toronto, CA):

STRATEGIC PLANNING FOR QUAL!TY IMPROVEMENT :

Presentation, Benchmarking Conference, Healthcare Forum (Chlcago, IL):
BENCHMARKING: A NEW STRATEGIC PLANNING PROCESS
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Presentation, Sisters of Metcy Health Care System (Pdnﬁac, Mly:
A NEW STRATEGIC PLANNING MODEL

Presentaﬁbn, Healthcare Forum, Power of Quality Conference (San Diego, CA):
INTEGRATING CQI PRINCIPLES INTO STRATEGIC PLANNING

Presenfation_, Quatity Management Network,'.lnstitute of Healthcare Improvement ('Boston,
MA):  MAKING LEARNING FUN

" Two-day course, Ochsner Medical Clinic (New Orleans, LA):

PRINCIPLES OF CONTINUOUS QUALITY IMPROVEMENT
IN HEALTH CARE :

CaApozzalo, Gayle. "Letting Values Define Quality," case study presented in CQIl: A

- Self-Instruction Guide for Hospital Leaders. Joint Commission on Accraditation of

Healihcare Organizations, 1993.

Minicourse, [nstitute for. Healthcare Improvement Fourth Annual Forum on Quality
Improvement in Healthcare, sponsored by the Institute for Healthcare Improvement

* (Orlando, FL):

APPLYING THE PRINCIPLES OF CQl TO ORGANIZATION-WIDE
STRATEGIC PLANNING

Praesentation, Americaﬁ Health Care Association Executive Forum (San Francisco, CA)
QUALITY IMPROVEMENT PROCESS IN LONG TERM CARE

Presentation, Cathdlic H-eélth Association's System Communicators ~orum {St.Louis, MO):
TOTAL QUALITY MANAGEMENT & THE COMMUNICATOR‘
FUNCTION

Kéynote speaker, Holy Cross Health System annual [eadership retreat (Hilton Head, SC):

LESSONS LEARNED IN IMPLEMENTATION OF CQI IN HEALTH CARE

Preseniation, Kaiser Permanenie 7th Inter-Regional Middle Management Pragram
(Washmgton DC):
WHAT IS cQI?

‘Panel member, “implementing TQM in Health Care: A Ten Element Approach."

teleconference sponsored by GOAL/QPC, broadcast from University of Notre Dame MSA
Program thraugh the Health and Science Network (filmed in Scuth Bend, IN):
CASE STUDY: INTEGRATING TQM IN A MULTIPLE HOSPITAL SYSTEM

Panel member, Amencan Hospital Assoc:[atlon teleconference (filmed in Chicago):
CONTINUCUS QUALITY IMPROVEMENT: CAN IT WORK
IN HOSPITALS?

Medical Group Management Association 10th Annual CRAHCA Conference. Co-presented

with Andrew Kosseff, MD (Denver, CO).
JOINT HOSPITAL/MEDICAL GROUP TQI PROJE_CTS

10
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Ryan, FSM, Sr. Mary Jean and Capdzzalo, Gayle. "New Way of Working: A System
Transforms ltself Through Continuous Quality Improvement,” Health Pregress, 1992

Presentation, InnSSMed spansored by the SSM Health Care System {San Antonio, TX)
THE $SM HEALTH CARE SYSTEM QUALITY JOURNEY

Capozzalo, Gayle. "Collaboration: A Source of Strength,” Health Proqress, 1991

Presentation, Fourth Annual National Forum on Healthcara Quality, sponsored by the Joint

Commission on Accreditation of Healthcare Organizations {Chicago, 1L):

THE BENEFITS OF CQI NETWORK MEMBERSHIP -

Workshop, Institute for Healthcare Improvement Third Annual National Forum on Quality
Improvement in Health Care, sponsored by the National Demonsiration Project for Quality
Improvement in Health Care (Atlanta, GA):
' IMPLEMENTING TOTAL QUALITY MANAGEMENT IN A
HEALTH CARE SYSTEM: CASE STUDIES

Mihicourse, Institute for Healthcare Improvement«Third Annual National. Forum on
Quality Improvement in Health Care, sponsored by the National Demonstration Project for

- Quality Improvement in Health Care (Atlanta, GA).

PRINCIPLES OF QUALITY IMPROVENENT IN HEALTH CARE

Capozzale, Gayle. “Hands-on Healers” - Healih Proqressl, 1991

Presentation, Regional Hot Topics Series, The Health Care Quality Challenge,
sponsored by the St. Louis Chapter of Clinical Lab Managers Association (SI Louis, MO):
WHAT IS CQi? ,

Two-day course, Four Comers Workshop, sponsored by the Colorado Med:cal Records
Association (Durango, CO):
~ IMPLENMENTATION OF CONTINUOUS QUALITY IMPRDVEMENT

Presentation, Sisters of Providence Health System'(Seatﬂe WA
QUALITY IMPROVEMENT IN A CATHOLIC MULTI-FACILITY
ENVIRONMENT

Institute for Healthcare Improvement Second Annual Naiional Forum on Quality
Improvement in Heaith Care, sponsored by the National Demonstration Project for Quality
Improvement in Health Care (Boston, MA):
QUALITY IMPROVEMENT IN A CATHOLIC MULTI FACILITY
ENVIRONMENT

Dolan, Thomas and Lane, Gayle. "The Politics of Health Care Delivery." Medical Group
Management. 26 (56-69).

Dolan, Thomas and Lane, Gayle. "The Regulation of Health Care Delivery." Medical
Group Management. 26 29-31. :

' Dolan Thomas and Lane, Gayle. "The Planning of Heaith Care Delivery." Medical Group

Management 26 3640
11



Vincent Tammaro
215 Union Avenue, Harrison New York 10528
Home: (914) 548-5675, Business: (203) 688-3926
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PROFILE

A Knowledgeable Healtheare Professional - Executive with 17 yeé.rsr of i)l'ogreésive 1'esp0115ibi1ify, including
strong financidl and accounting knowledge base, providing financial leadership, creativity and strategic vision.

' AccompliShe'd Business Record - Major milestones include implementation of internal control initiatives,
integrating various delivery networks of a major health system into a cohesive unit, providing strategic business
leadership over clinical service lines and managmg/completmg jOIl]f. strategic 1111t1at1ves with major business
partners.

Emphasis on High-Performance Teams — A distinguished record of building high-performance teams,
development of sustainable competence and “bench stlength” and ploIessmnal networks within the organization

and the industry.

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE -

Yale—New Ilaven Health System ) ' | New Haven, CT
Senior Vice President, Corporaté Finémt:e o Nov. 2012 - Present
Vice President, Corporate Finance - | . : Jan. 2009 — Nov. 2012
System Director, Corporate Finance , , 20052008
Director of Financial Reporting -_ - o N o ‘ 2002-2005

Emphasis on High- = Provide leadership, strategic vision and executive communication for -

Performance Teams the Finance and Financial Reporting department;

" le Directly oversee the activities of the following Health System areas:
Corporate Finance, Tax Compliance, Payroll, Accounts Payable and
Internal Control functions and the Revenue Cyele Process;

e Maintain a customer-service focused depariment to ensure that

customer’s financial information needs are met; in addition ensure

that the financial staff understands the scope of service provided by
each department and primary business relationships;

Financial Reporting and » Communicate and present certain financial reporting highlights and
Comnunication topics to various Finance and Audit Committees of the Boards;

» Provide consistent and accurate realization/reporting of revenue, third
party reimbursement activity, cash receipts, accounts receivable,
insuring that applicable internal controls are present;

s Manage the Health System external audit function, involving the
interaction with Ernst & Young in the audits of approximately 20
eniities across the Health System. Additionally, interpret and
communicate all significant accounting pronouncements;
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- Vincent Tammaro ‘
215 Union Avenue, Harrison, New York 10528
Home: (914) 548-5675, Business (203) 6088-3926

Corporate Governance and | Participate in the annual budget process, strategic planning, risk
Strategic Leadership management, debt offering processes;
: * Coordinate the outsourced internal audit function, . including
involvement in developing the risk assessment and audit plan;
# Develop policies and procedures and provide ongoing support for
staff functions in accordance with applicable laws and regulations,
and industry best practices.

Integrated Financial o Assigned financial OVGISIght responsibilities for the Y-NHH Internal
- Leadership in Operations Medicine Service Lines Saint Raphael Campus;
e Participate on various Health System steering and .management
coammittees including Revenue. Cycle, Infolmation Systems,. Supply
Chain, Self Insured Malpractice Program, Benefit Plans and other
strategic committees;

Ermnst & Young — Manager (February 1997 — December 2(01)

Planning, coordinating and supervising the execution of audit and non—audlt engagements Tor varicus healthcare
organizations in Metro New York Area. Such activities included preparation of certified financial statements,
evaluation of internal control environments and assessing policies and . procedures with resulting
recommendations for improvement, due diligence engagements resulting from planned/finalized healthcare
provider mergers and preparation of offering document associated with issuance of public debt.

* Provider Experience:
Provider clients include Montefiore Medical Center, Yale New Haven Health System, Saint Vincents Hospital
and Medical Center, St. Barnabas Hospital and Affiliated Organizations, Brookdale University Hospital and
Medical Center, Vassar Blothels Hospital and Affiliated Orgamzatlons and Riverside Health Systems Tne.

Sound Shore Medieal Center - Semor Accountant (Mav 1995 — February 1997)

Senior Accountant responsibilities included account analysis and preparation of monthly financial
reporting package; supervised payroll and accounts payable clerks in their day-to-day operating tasks.
EDUCATION

s Pace Univérsity, School of Bllsineés, New York, New York

Bachelor of Business Administration, May 1996
Major: Public Accounting

PROFESSIONAL CERTIFICATIONS

s Certified Public Accountant, New York State, October 1999 (non practicing)

o
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Vincent Tammaro '
215 Union Avenue, Harrison, New York 10528
Home: (914) 548-5675, Busmess (203) 688-3926

| - PRESENTATIONS AND PUBLICATIONS

- & Implementation Guidance for FASB 136 Transfers of Assets to a Not-for-Profit Organization or Charitable
Trust That Raises or Holds Coniributions for Others. Presentation provided to Ernst & Young Regional
Healthicare Industry Practice Audit and Assurance Group, 2000. ‘

e Valuation of Hospital Accounts Recezvable Utilizing Audit Command Language (AC’L) Software,

- Presentation provided to Ernst & Young New York Healthcaue Industry- Group Senior and Staff Audit
Group, 1999.

= Regular contributor to Ernst & Young on-line “best practice” Audit and Accounting guide.

AFFILIATIONS AND INTERESTS

York Enterprises o . New Haven, CT

President and Board Memb_er S - -‘ January 2011 - Current
Board Member - _ ‘ © July 2005

e Actively participate in oversight activities of local New Haven business, affiliated with Yale New Haven
Health System, that operates a chain of local phauna01es Whlch p1 ovide affordable p1es<:11pt10n drugs to the
commumty

* Provide management with appropriate oversight and direction on strategic decmons capital and operating
+ budgets and other significant transactions;

Harrison YMCA _ o . Harrison, NY
Youth Basketball Coach S - 2008-Current
St. Gregory Catholic Church | ' : o " Harrison, NY
Activity Organizer '  2009-Curcent
_Serve as the Treasurer of the Catholic Youth Or cramzaﬂon : 2012
Boy Sconts of America, Harrison Chapter 7 ' Harrison, NY
Den Assistant Leader ‘ 2010-Current

References will be furnished upon request.

[¥¥]



EXPERIENCE:

1978 - present

- 2010~ Present

2004 - 2010

2001 ~ Present
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Denise J. Fiore
8 Spencer Court
Clinton, CT 06413
203-688-3929 (W)
860-669-0139 (H)
203-815-4324 (C)
Denise.fiore@ynhh.org

Ya{e—New Haven Hospital New Haven, CT

Yale-New Haven Hospital is a voluntary, non-profit teaching hospital and serves as the primary
leading affiliate of the Yale University School of Medicine. The hospital has an operating budget
in excess of $2,236.8 billion and is currently licensed for 1,541 beds. With approximately 13,500
employees, the hospital is dedicated to state-of-the-art medical care, effective employee

-engagement, sound financial performance and progressive management. Yale-New Haven

Hospital is the leadmg hospital of the Yale-New Haven Health System, WhICh is a multi hospital
system with revenue in excess of one billion dollars.

Vice President, Clinical Supporz‘ Services

Responsible for the strategic development, operational activities, clinical quality and financial
results for areas of accountability to include Diagnostic Radiology, Laboratory Medicine,.
Rehabilitation Services, Respiratory Care and Patient Transport. Develops long and short term
strategies for respective areas that are consistent with the hospitals’ business and operating plans.
Directly accountable for $125 million of operating budget expense and $1,175 full time’
equivalents to include 49 manapers. Responsible for analysis and implemeutation of process
improvement, to ensure efficient and coordinated flow of clinical support services, to optimize

"patient care needs.

Executive Director, Radiology, Labomtmy'Servfces and Patient T ransport

Responsibilities are diverse to include administrative and clinical lidgison duties. Directly
accountable for 80 million expense budget and 710 full time equivalents to include 30 managers.
Clinical liaison for the Department.of Diagnostic Radiology and Laboratory Medicine. Works
with chiel's of these services to promote quality patient care service excellence, strategic
management and effective utilization of hospital resources. Has a direct administrative
responsibility for the Diagnostic Radiology, Laboratory Medicine and- Patient Transport
departments. Actively participates in strategic and operational planning of these departments
Responsible tor Diagnostic Radiology and Laboratory Medicine support to hospital service line
operating plans. Responsible for hospital wide employee engagement initiative to reduce
expenses, remove waste and improve efficiency and performance.

Six Sigma Bluck Beld

Responsible for oversight to key hospital personnel, in a data driven statistical approach to
performance improvement, in order to improve profitability along with the enhancement quality
and efficiency. Provides oversight for performance quality personnel. Responsible for leading
the deployment of Lean/Six Sigma throughout the hospital since 2007.




1992 - 2004

. 1990 - 1992

1978 - 1990

EDUCATION: .

1991

1974 - 1978

PROFESSIONAL
MEMBERSHIPS:
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- Operations Director, Department of Laboratory Medicine

Responsible for day to day administrative management of the clinical Iaboratories.
Administrative management functions include monitoring aud control of operating budget
(25 million dollars), development of strategic business planning, effective employee relations,
capital budget planning, and adherence to regulatory compliance. Responsible for direct
supexvision of 5 full time equivalents and indirectly for 205 full time equivalents. Administrative
liaison for contracted laboratory services provided by Yale Umvelslty School of Medicine to.
Yale-New Haven Hospital.

‘Buyer, Head of Laboratory Medicine Purchasing Office
ReSponsiblé for overall purchasing needs for ten cost centers fo include negotiation of laboratory
supply contracts. Primarily responsible for establishment of a computerized order/inventory

control system. Responsible for direct supervision of one full time equivalent.

Medical Technologist, Clinical Chemzsny Laboratory

7 Responsuble Tor various specialized areas to include dally clinical operations. Responsible for 8-

10 for full time equivalents.

Cuinnipiac University, Hamden, CT

- Master of Business Administration, Concentration in Health Care Management

Quinm'piac Univer.s‘ily; Hamden, CT
Bachelor of Science, Medical Technology, Cum Laude

American College of Healthcare Executives
Associate Member

New England Consortium for Clinical Laboratory Scientist Recruifinent anc Retention
- Vice President, 2001 - present

Connecticut Women in Healthcare Management
President, 2000 :
Board of Directors, 1995 - 2000

Clinical Laboratory Management Association
Membership Advisory Council, 2000 - present

Connecticut Women in Healthcare Management, Inc.
- Board of Directors 1995 - 2000

- President, 2000

- Program Chair, 1999

- Treasurer, 1995 - 1998

American Sbcz'ery Jor Clinical Laboratory Science
- Member since 1982




COMMUNITY
ACTIVITIES:

- AWARDS:

PRESENTATIONS:
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North Haver: Art Guild
Member

Quinnipiac University
‘Mentorship to MBA Business Students

American Red Cross — Connecticut Chapter,
New Haven Board of Directors —since 2009

Quinnipiac University
School of Health Sciences Advisory Beard —since 2010

Quirmipiac University Outstanding Business Alwmmi Award, 2008

“Clinical Laboratory Facility Design”, Healthcare Design Conference, Phoenix, Arizona,
November 5, 2012

“Women in Business”, Panel Discussion. Quinnipiac University MBA Program, Hamden,
CT April 3, 2012 ' '

“Leadership Key Take Always”, Quinnipiac Unzverszty MBA Program, Hamden CT,
November 9, 201 I

“Where are They Now’? Where are We Now'?” No: th Easz‘ Labomt‘ory Conﬁrence Poriland,
Maine, October 19 2006.

"Laboratory Recruitiment and Retention: Effective Régional Stlategies Clinical Laboratory
Management Association/American Society of Clinical Pathologists 2004 Co:y’erence cmd
Exhibition, Atlanta, Georgia, March 30 2004,

"Six Sigma - The Next Generation of Quality Improvement in Home Care". Northeast Home
Health Leadership Sunimit, Boston, Massachusetts, January 23, 2004.

"Six Sigma in Healthcare". Panel Discussion, The Quality Colloquium at Harvard University,
Cambridge, Massachusetts, August 26, 2003.

"Financial Management for the Clinical Laboratory". Yale-New Haven Department of
Laboratory Medicine Residency Conference, May 15, 2003,

"Yale-New Haven Hospital Six Sigma Initiative". Leadership Transformations, Successful
Strategies in Healthcare, Thibodaux Regional Medical Center, Quorum Health Resources and
GE Medical Systems Conference, New Orleans, Louisiana, April 11, 2003.

"Vale-New Haven Hospital Six Sigma Initiative". Comnecticut Hospital Association, Six Sigma
Jor Hedlthcare Symposia, GE Medical Systems, Wallingford, Connecticut, April 8, 2003.

"Six Sigma: Beyond Performance Tmprovement”. Panel Discussion, University HealthSysten
Consortium Conference - "Leadership to Transform the Clinical Enterprise: Successfully
Navigating Change and Complexity", Baltimore, Maryland, October 3, 2002.




PUBLICATION:

REFERENCES:

5
"Six Sigma at Yale-New Haven Hospital, A Case Study". Yale-New Haven Hospital Departmeit
of Laboratory Medicine Continuing Education lecture series, September 25, 2002.

"Administrative Challenges in an Academic Medical Center." V. L Technologies, Inc. Yale
School of Medicine/Yale-New Haven Hospital, June 21, 2001.

"Recruitment and Retention Issues in the Northeast." Parnel Discussion, Nbrfheasi Regional
Conference sponsored by Clinical Laboratory Management Association and Ameriean
Association of Clinical Chemistry, Boxborough, Massachusetts, April 24, 2001.

"Laboratory Management Skills for the Millenniwmn." Quirmipiac University Class on Health
Seience Management, April 23, 2001. : ‘

"A New Paladiglh for Delivering Laboratory Services." "The Yale-New Haven/Path Lab Madel."
Clinical Laboratory Management Association and American Annual Meefmg Dallas, Texas,
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Cross sectional anatomy of the pericardial recesses.
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Reviewer: Radiology (RSNA)
o " American Journal of Neuroradiology (ASNR)
Emergency Radiology (ASER)
- Radiographics
American Journal of Roentgenology (AJR)
Member of the Editorial Board: Emergency Radiology. Feb 2000 to present

Associate Editor of Revista Interamericana Radiologia (Jowrnal of the
Interamerican College of Radiology). 1984-1989,

Editorial Advisory Board: Diagnostic Imaging 1995-1999.
International Editorial Board: Revista Mexicana de Radiolooia 1996 to pl'esént

International Advisory B0a1d Radlologla— Revista Espanola de Radlologla
1996 to present.

Editorial Advisory Board of Radiolog - Continuing Professional Education
Center, Inc. Princeton, NJ 1978-1983.

Professional and Honorary Oi‘ganizatioils:
Member Scientific Program.Committee ARRS 2007 to present

Chairman RSNA. Scientific Ploglam Subcommlﬁee in Emergency Radlology 2007-

- 2010

Chairman Education Committee American Society Emergency Radiology 2006

Coordinator of Instructional Courses, Bmergeéncy Radiology.Track. Ametican

Roentgen Ray Society - 2004-2009.

Wri iter Task Force in Neuroradxolo gy (Emergency Radiolo gy) American Board of
Radiology. 2004-2006 ‘

~ Oral Boards Examiner in Neuroradiology. American Board of Radiology 20 05;

2008

Member of Scientific Program Committee. Radiological Society of North America
2004-2007. '
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Chairman By—Lé_WS Committee American Society Emergency Radiology 2003

Member NominaﬁngICmnmittee American Society Emergency Radiology 2003
Vice-President New En-gland Roentgen Ray Society 2002-2003

President Ameﬁcan Society Emergency Radiology 1999-2000 -

Presid‘eht—Eiect American Society Emergency Radiology 199 8-1999 |

Refresher Course Faculty- Radiclogical Scciety of North America, 1997 1998,
1999, 2000, 2002, 2003 2004, 2006 2007, 2008.

Member of Commitiee on Standards and Accreditation of the Ameﬁcan College of
~ Radiology -Member of the Sub-committee on Cervical Spine Radloglaphy, 1998-
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Director-at-large American Society of Emergency Radiolo gy‘1997—1998
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President-Elect Interamerican College of Radiolo gy 1994-1996
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1994-1995
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imaging findings in hypelextensmn injuries of the
neck

Exhibited at RSNA‘,Chlcago, IL 2003

Certificate of Merit
Nufiez Jr. D, Zuluaga A, Fuentes D, Rivas L,

Becerra JL. “Cervical spine trauma series: how much

more do we learn by routinely using helical CT?”

"~ Exhibited at RSNA, Chicago, IL 1996
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Head and Neck Emergencies: Keynote lecture New England Roentgen Ray Society
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Frequent Errors in Emer gent Neu101mag1ng, U111vers1ty of Mlall’ll CME Comse Palm
Beach FL Feb 2011

Head and neck infections: 'University of Miami CME Course, Palm Beach F1 Feb
2011 . -

Easily missed findings in Emergency Radiology: Skull base and neck, RSNA
Chicago 2010 ,

Imaging of spine trauma. San Marino Italy, Sept 2010
Imaging acute myelopathies. ASER, Seattle WA, Aug 2010
MDCT of Spine Injures: ASNR, Boston MA, May 2010

Managing your Emergency Radiology pr.actice. Special series moderation and
Presiding Officer. RSNA Chicago IL Nov 2009 -

Common mistakes in emergent neuroimaging, Head and neck emer roent infections
and MDCT of cervical spine trauma. Musculoskeletal Neuro and Body Imaging in
the ER. Miami,Fl Nov 2009 :

Cervical spine trauma imaging: Implications for management Emd Imaging head and
1leck Infectlons ARRS, Boston May 2009 :

Emm gent cervmofamal Jimaging: Rachology Grand Rounds. University of Maryland.
 April 2009
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Con‘uovelsles in Emergency Radiology: Ser eenmg cervical vasculal 111_]u1les
Chicago 2008 RSNA

Founders lecture ASER- Reflections on the practice of emergency neurcimaging.
Houston, Tx Oct 2008 '

Pitfalls in Trauma Radiology and hllaging asséssment of the multitrauma victim at
the National Congress of Radiology Seville, Spain May 2008

Emergent Infectious of the Head and Ne_ck. ARRS, Washington DC April 2008
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2007
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Nontraumatic emergencies of the Head and Neck, ARRS, Orlando Fl, May 2007

Moderator Scientific session in emergency care, ARRS Orlando Fl May 2007

Neuroimaging of Emer gencles (4 lectures) Head and neck infections, What we

frequenily miss in the ED, Cervical Spine Trauma, .
Imaging Cetebrovascular injuries. RSNA sponsored symposmm in Mexico City,

Feb 2007
Frequently missed findings in emergent brain imaging RSNA, Chicago, Dec 2006

Presiding Ofﬁcer/Mode1ato1 Scientific session in Trauma imaging and emer gency
care, RSNA Chicago Dec 2006

Neuronnagmg of the Emel gency Department patient. ARRS, Vancouver C May
2006

Visiting Professor at Med ical University of South Carolina, Charleston SC.
Lectures: Imaging Head and Neck Emergencies and Contemporary imaging of
suspected spine {rauma March 2006

Ples1d1ncr ofﬁcellModelatm Sc1ent1ﬁc Session A24 Emergency RadmIogy CTin

trauma.
RSNA Chicagoe 11, Deé 2005

Postgréduaté course in Emergency and Trauma Radiology (6 Lectures)
Annual Symposium Hospital 12 de Octubre Madrid, Spain

MDCT in Emergency Neuroradiology: A case-based presentation -
Annual meeting ARRS, New Orleans LA, May 2005

Traumatic emergencies of the brain, head and neck:
- SERAM Annual Symposium- Madrid Spain, Feb-2005

Applications of MDCT: Spine trauma
- Annual Assembly of RSNA, Chicago, IL Dec 2004

Visitng Professor- Néuloradidlégy Case presentation
Winthrob University Hospitaf, Mineola NY
‘ Gland Rounds lecture: Imaging Spme Trauma, Oct. 2004

Moderator Emergency Radiology Case Panel, New England ray society, Boston
MA, Qct 2004 ,
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Thoracic Vascular Injuﬂes :
International Congress of Radiology, Montreal Canada, June 2004

MDCT of Spine Trauma: Post processing and 3D rendering
American Society of NeuroRadioIogy, Seattle WA. May 2004

MDCT of Craniocervical Trauma Hosp1ta1 Carda1 elli, Univei s1ty of Naples Italy,
May 2004

MDCT/Post Processing and benefits of 3D rendering for Spine Tranma
: American Society of Spine Radiology, Miami Beach, FI February 2004

Essentials of Trauma CT: Spme _
Anuual Assembly of the RSNA Chicago 11, December 2003

" Qverview of Trauma Imagmg: A look into the future
Annual assembly of the RSNA, Chicago 1L, December 2003

Cervical Spine Trauma: Imagmg the unevaluable patlent
American Socwty of Emergency Radiology, Las Vegas NV Sept. 2003

Cervical Spine Trauma: Imaging the neurolo gically impaired
American Society of Emergency Radiology, Las Vegas NV Sept. 2003

Visiting Plofcssm— :

Grand Rounds: Vascular and soft tissue i [11]111‘163 of the neck
Neuroradiclogy Board Review

Department of Radiology. University of Connecticut
Farmington CT, April 2003

Visiting Professor- Neuroradiology Board review

Radiology Grand Rounds lecturer: How to image the spine in the
high risk trauma patient.

Department of Radiology McGill University

Montreal Canada, March 2003

Imaging the patient with suspected spine trauma,
Abdominal trauma. University of Miami Winter Symposium, Coral Gables Mal ch
2003

Brain Trauma, Cervical Spine Injuries and Facial Fractures: Lectures at Harvard
University Radiology Cowrse. Hyannis MA, Feb 2003
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Imaging suspected spine trauma..
Radiology Grand Rounds. Yale University School of Medicine, Dec 2002

Bssentials of Trauma CT: Spine
Amnual Assembly of the RSNA, Chicago I1., December 2002

Thoracio vascular trauma, US and CT of abdominal irauma, and Cervical Spine
Injuries at Peruvian Congress of Radiology, Nov. 2002

‘Initial imaging assessiment of the traumatized abdomen. Surgical Grand Rounds at
Hospital of St. Raphael New Haven CT, Sept. 2002

Brain Trauma, Cervical Spine Injuries, Facial Fractures: Harvard Umvelsﬂ:y
Radiology Course. Hyannis MA, August 2002

Cervical Spine Trauma: Mechamstm approach and

Head and Neclc Vascular Injuries:

Visiting Professor University of Washington Emergeucy Radlology Course. Scaitle
WA, August 2002

- Tranma Imaging Course (Brian injuries, Facial fractures, Spine Trauma, Abdominal
trauma, Vascular Injuries) in Salvador, Brasil, August 2002

 Ultrasound in Abdominal Trauma, Aortic injuries, Spine frauma.
International Congress of Radiology. Cancun Mexico, July 2002,

Multideféctcn CT of vascular injuries.
- American Roentgen Ray Scciety, Atlanta Ga., April 2002

Multidetector CT in spine tranma: American Society Emergency Radiology, Orlando
Fl, March 2002 :

Lecturer in annual Radiology Course: RSNA and Mexican Federation of Radiology
(4 lectures), Mexico City Mexico, February 2002

Moderator: Panel of unknown cases, New England Roentgen Ray Societ_',}
Boston, MA. Nov. 2001

J.Hodak lecturer and Visiting Professor in Neuroradiology, the Barrow Neurolo gical
Institute and St. Joseph Medical Center. Phoenix, AZ. Oct. 2001

Instructional Course: ;
ARRS- Helical and Multidetector CT in Neuro Emergencies , '
Seattle, Washington May 2001 '




‘Head and Neck emergencies- 12 annual meeting, American Society of Emergency
Radiology, San Francisco, California March 2001.

Refresher Course: RSNA- Helical CT of Abdominal Treuma, Nov 2000

Guest Speaker: Venezuelan Congress of Radiology- Cervical spine injuries, vascular
thoracic injuries and abdominal trauma. Caracas, Venezuela. October 2000

Imaging of Lower Cervical Spine Injuries- in Emergency and Trauma Radiology
Categorical Course, American Roentgen Ray Society, Washington DC. May 2000

New trends in the dlagnosIs and management of stroke in the Emergency Room
Focus Session moderator, 11™ annual meeting, American 8001ety of Emergency
Radiology, Orlando Florida. March 2000

Radiotogy Grand Rounds- Imaging of cervical spine injuries, Boston Medical |
Center, Boston University School of Medicine, February 2000.

Guess Facnlty Johns Hopkins Medlcal School CT Symposmm The cutting
, edge February 2000.

" Guest speakel at the Interamerican Congress of Trauma Su1 gery. Aortle Injuues
- Spine Trauma, Abdominal Trauma. Venezuela, Nov 1999 .

‘Emergency NeuroRadioIogy: Sti'ategiee for successtul implementation.
- American Society of NeuroRadiology. San Diego May 1999

Spine Trauma -
American Society of NeuroRadlology San Diego May 1999

Helical CT in Spine Trauma: Appllcatlons, p1.otocols and pitfalls
Annual Meeting American Society Emergency Radiology. Las Vegas- March, 1999.

“Ultrasound and Helical CT of Abdominal Trauma: initial assessment” and

“Abdominal trauma: beyond the liver and the spleen”

Annual Meeting- Department of Radiology, UlllVﬁlSlty of Clueago Mawh 1969,

Helical CT of Abdominal Trauma: Refresher Course RSNA- November 1998.

Guest speaker for Radiology Grand Rounds at Harvard Medical
School/Massachusetts General Hospital. The Role Helical CT in the Evaluation of
‘Cervical Spine Trauma, September 1998.

Guest speaker at the Sociedad de Radiologia del Peru, Lima, July, 1998.
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- Visiting Profes-sor to the Hospital Naval, Lﬁna, Peru, July, 1998.

© Visiting Professor University of Cordoba/Argentina. Conferences on Abdominal
Trauma, Initial Assessment and new Observations. May 1998.

Categorlcal course in Trauma Radiology in the Venezuelan Congress of Radiology.
May 1998.

Visiting Professor/Universidad Veracruzana. . Conference on Cranial Cerebral
Trauma and Spine Trauma, Veracruz, Mexico. April 1998,

Coordinator and Speaker in the Interactive Workshop on Vascular Injuries/Annual
Meeting of the American Society of Emergency Radiology, St. Pe‘telsbul e, F1011da
April 1998.

“Ultrasound and Helical Screening of the Traumatized Abdomen”, “Cervical Spine:

Initial Assessment”, “Diagnosis and Treatment, Part T and II", “Facial ‘Trauma”,

Common Intracraneal Injuries — The international Institute for Continuing Medical
Education, Inc. — Imaging in the Acute Care Setting. Cancun, Mexwo Febluary
1998.

Emergent US and Helical CT: Options in trauma imaging. Refresher 'Course,'—
RSNA, Chicago December 1997.

“Traumatismo Tordcico”, “Traumatismo Vascular”, “Traumatismo Cexebral”,
““Traumatismo del. euello” “IX Symposivm Intemacmnal de Aetuahzaemn en.

Diagnostico por la Imagen Zznagoza Spain, November, 1997.

“Interventional Rad1ology in the Traumatized Patient”, “Blunt and Penetrating Neck
Trauma”, 1997, presented i Ce11t1al American Cong1ess of Radiology, Guatemala,
October 1997

“Helical CT Evaluation of Abdominal Trauma”, “Course and Diagnostic Iniaging”,
organized by the Asociacion Colombiana de Radiologia, Medellin, August 1997

“The Role of the Radiologist in the Emergency Room”. Lecture to the Pueito Rican
Assaciation of Radiology in August, 1997 '

“The radiologist in the emergency room” - Nationdl Meeting of Residency in
- Radiology, Caracas; Venezuela, July 1997.

“Selected topics in trauma radiology” - International Course in Diagnostic Imaging,
Tucuman, Argentina, June 1997. : '
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“Imaging of blunt and penetrating neck injuries” - Curso de Imagenologia en
Fspafiol, Miami, May 1997. : '

“Clearing the cervical spine with helical CT” - Trauma Symposium Ammerican
Roentgen Ray Society Meeting, Boston, Massachusetis, May 1997.

“Cranio cerebral trauma, Abdominal trauma”. - “Radiology Course in Trauma” in
Malaga, Spain, February 1997. '

“Helical CT and angiography for mediastinal trauma, initial evaluation of blunt

abdominal trauma, abdominal trauma beyond the liver and the spleen, cervical spine
~ trauma” - XXI Annual Couise in Diagnostic Imaging, Umvelslty of Florida, Mexico
- City, Mexico, February | 1997 .

“Abdominal trauma imaging” - Interamerican Congi‘ess of Radiology, CancTin,
Mexico, October 1996.

“CT Helicoidal en urgencias” - Curso de Imagenologla en Espanol University of
Miami, Miami, Florida, July 1996.

* “Blunt and penetrating cervical injuries” Radiological Congréss— Radiological
Association of Guatemala- November 1995.

“Imaging of neurologic emergencies” Radlologlcal Congless Radiological
Assomatlon of Guatemala— November 1995. '

_ Visiting Professor Umvensty of San Luis Potosi, Mexico,“Topics in emergency ~

radiology”: Head trauma, abdominal injuries, helical CT in trauma imaging, vascular -

interventions in the traumatized patient, October 1995.

“Monographic Course in Trauma Radiology”: Brain trauma, Cervical spine injuries,
Ahdominal Trauma, Vascular injuries and Interventional Radiology in trauma,
Imaging protocols in the trauma patient. Dictated at annual meeting of the
Radiclogical Society of Spain, Sept. 1995.

“Vascular trauma - diagnosis and intervention”. Radiological Society of Panama,
Panama August 1995,

“Helical CT in trauma”. Radiological Society of Panama, Panama
August 1995.

“Pepetrating neck injuries”. Radiological Society of Panama, Panama , 1995




“Imagenologia de emergencia neurologica” and “Problemas dlagnostlcos en trauma
abdominal”. Curso de Imagenologia en Espauol University of Miami, Miami, July
1995.

“Peripheral vascular trauma”. Venezuelen Congress of Surgery, Caracas, Venezuela,
March 1995. '

“Imaging of thoracic vascular injuries”. Venezuelan Cong1ess of Surgery, Caracas,
Venezuela, March 1995.

“CT of acute inflammatory diseases of the abdomen™. Venezuelan Congress of
Surgery, Caracas, Venezuela, Ma.reh 1995.

“Update in trauma radiology”. The Robert Shapn o Memorial Lecture, Miami Beaeh
March 1995.

“The 1ad1010g1st in the emergeney room: The value of ultrasound, Helical CT and
Interventional procedures. Interamerican Congress of Radiology, Buenos Alres,
Argentina, September 1994. '

- "TAC Helicoidal: Aspectos Generales y Aplicaciones en Trauma”. Curso de
Imagenologia en Espafiol: Miami 1994. Miami, Florida, June 1994

"Fvaluacion Radiologica del Traumatismo Craneo-Encefalico y Facial". Curso de
- Imagenologia en Espafiol: Miami 1994. Miami, Florida, June 1994

"Diagnostic dilemmas in emergency radiolo gy“_. V1 Jornadasnternacionales de
Actualizacion en Diagnostico por Imagenes. Cordoba, Argentina, May 1994.

L 'fhlterventionelradiolo gy in the emergency room". VI Jornadas Internacionales de .
Actunalizacion en Diagnostico por Imagenes. Cordoba, Argentina, May 1994.

"Craneo-facial frauma". VI Jornadas Internacionales de Actualizacion en
Diagnostico por Imagenes. Cordoba, Argentina, May 1994.

- "Imaging of cel"vieal spine trauma”. VI Jornadas Internacionales de Actualizacion en
Diagnostico por Imagenes. Cordoba, Argentina, May 1994.

"Tmaging protocols in frauma patients”. VI Jornadas Internaeioﬁales de
Actualizacion en Diagnostico por Imagenes. Cordoba, Argeniina, May 1994,

"Brain and Facial Trauma". Congreso Centroamericano de Radiologia. Managua,
Nicaragua, December 1993. ’
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"Imaging of thoracic emergencies". Congreso Centroamericano de Radiologia.
Managua, Nicaraguna, December 1993.

"Radiologic anatomy of the face and paranasél sinuses ". COngreso Centroamericano
de Radiologia. Managua, Nicaragua, December 1993.

_ "Inﬂammatdry diseases of the CNS " Congreso Centroamericano de Radiologia.
Managua, Nicaragua, December 1993. ' :

"Brain tumors". Congreso Centroamericano de Radiologia. Managua, Nicaragua,
December 1993

"Radiologia Intervenmmnsta en Trauma: Aphcacmnes Vasculares y No Vasculares.
Curso de Imagenologia en Espanol Miami 1993. Miami, FL, June 1993.

“Interventmns in the Chest and Abdomen" Congress of Radiology, Sao Pau]o
Brazil, April 1991.

"Interventional CT and US of the Abdomen". Review Course in Diagnostic Imaging,
. Cordoba, Argentina, May 1990.

"Pulmonary Nedule: Imaging Guided biopsies”. Review Course in D.iagnostic
Imaging, Cordoba, Argentina, May 1990.

"The Thoracic Wall". Rev1ew Course in Dlagnosuc Imaging, Cordoba, Argentina,
May 1990.

"The Palmonary Nodule". Interamerican Congress of Radiology, Caracas,
Venezuela February 1990.

“Radlology of Urinary Infectlons" Radlology Seminar, San Juan, Puerto Rico, May

1989,
: “Radiolo-gy of Hematuria”". Radiology Seminar, San fuan, PR, May 1989

"Renal and Peripheral Angloplasty Radiology Review Course, Quito, Ecuador,
November 1988.

"Transcatheter Angioplasty™. Radiology Review Course, Quito, Ecuador, November
1988.

"CT Guided Biopsies". Radiology Review Course, Quito, Ecuador, November 1988.

"Hepatobiliary Interventions". Radiology Review Course, Quito, Ecuador,

November 1988,
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- "Transrenal Intelventwns Radiology. Review Course, Quito, Ecuador, November
1988 ‘ '

"“Thoracic Interventional Radiology”. International Congless of Radlology of the
Radiological Seciety of Peru, Lima, Peru, November 1988. '

"Interventional Ultrasound”. Intenational Congress of Radiology of the -
Radiological Society of Peru, Lima, Peru, November 1988.

“Intewentmnal Computed Tomography”. International Congress of Radlology of the
Radlologlcal Society of Peru, Lima, Pery, Novembel 1988.

“Interventional Techniques in Hepato—Blhary Diseases". International Congress of
Radiology of the Radiological Society of Peru, Lima, Peru, November 1988.

"Illferventi011al CT: Chest Lesions". Postgraduate Course of the Tnteramerican
Congress of Radiology and Mt. Sinai Medical Center, Miami, FL, April 1988.

"Interventional US: Abscess Drainage". Postgraduate Course of the Interamerican
Congress of Radiology and Mt. Sinai Medical Center, Miami, FL, April 1988.

"The Radiologistas a Consultant”". T Venezuelan Congress of Radiology, Maracaibo,
Venezela, Qctober 1987, '

"Renal Interventions®. [ Veuezuelan Congress of Radlology, Mar aca1b0 Venezuela,
Qctober 1987.

"CT of the GI Tract”. [ Venezuelan Congress of Radiology, Maracaibo, Venezuela,
Qctober 1987. .

. "Abscess Drainage". VIII Congress of Gastroenterology, Pto. Ordaz, Venezuela,
October 1987.

"Linear and Computed Tomography in Pulmonary Diseases". Review Course in
Diagnostic Imaging, Tucuman, Argentina, May 1987.

"Interventional G.I. Radiology". Review Course in Diagnostic maging, Tucuman,
" Argentina, May 1987. '

“CT of the GI Tract”. Review Course in Diagnostic Imaging, Tucuman, Argentina,
May 1987. :

"Mediastinal CT". Review Comse n Dlagnostlc Imaging, Tucuman, Argentina, May
1987.
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"Complications in Biliary Interventions". Refresher Course of the American
Roentgen Ray Somety 87th Annual Meetmg ARRS, Miami, FL, May 1937.

~“Complications in Interventional Radiology”. Postgraduate Coulse of Interamerican
College of Radiology and Mt. Sinai Medical Center, Miami, FI, April 1987.

“G.I. Tnterventions”. Postg;‘aduate Course_ of Interamerican College of Radiology
and Mt. Sinai Medical Center, Miami, Fl,’ April 1987.

"CT of the GI Tract". Postgraduate Course of Interamerican College of Radiology
and M. Sinai Medical Center, Miami, FL, April 1987.

"Transthoracic Guided Biopsies”. Pan-American Congress of Chest Diseascs,
Caracas, Venezuela, Jannary 1987.

"Transthoracic Guided Biopsies”. Pan-American Congress of Chest Diseases,
‘Caracas, Venezuela January 1987. .

"The Work Up of Renal Masses” XI Congress of Urology, Barquisimeto,
Venezuela, November 1986

"Interventional Ultrasound". XIV Interamerican College of Radiology Congress,
Buenos Aires, Argentina October 1986.

"SeIected Topics in G.L Interventions". XIV Interamerican College of Rad1010cry
Cong;ess Buenos Aires, A1 gentina, October 1986

"G.]. Bleeding: D1ag110315 and Management" XV Interameucan College of
Radiology Congress, Buenos Aires, Arcrentma October 1986

"Transrenal Interventions". XIV Interamerican College of Radiology Congless
Buenos Aires, Argentina, October 1986.

"Diagnosis and Management of Pancreatic Fluid Collections, Radiology of
Hepatobiliary Discases: Imaging and Intervention”. University of Miami School of
‘Medicine, Miami, FL April 1986.

" "Interventional Ultrasound”. HI Congress of Ultrason'ography, Caracas, Venezuela,
March 1986.

"Gallbladder Imaging”. Postgraduate Course of the Interamerican College of
Radiology and Mt. Sinai Medical Center, Miami, FL, March 1986.
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"Refresher Course: Diagnosis and Mdnagement of Abdominal Fluid Collections".
Postgraduate Course of the Interamerican College of Radiology and Mt. Sinai
Medical Center, Miami, FL, March 1986.

"Interventional Radiology of the G.U. Tx act”, Postgraduate Course of the
Interamerican College of Radmlogy and Mt. Sinai Medical Center, Mlaml FL,
March 1986.

"Imaging Guided Biopsies”. Radiological Society of Dominican Republié,
Dom_inican Repuinc March 1986.

"Hepatic Imaging". Radiological Society of Dormmcan Republie, Domlmcan
Republic, March 1986, -

" "CT of the Mediastinum". Radiological Society of Dominican Repubhc Dominican
Rapubllc March 1986.

"Interventional Radiology of the G.U. Tract". Radiology Update: 1986. Tulane
University School of Medicine, New Orleans, LA February 1986:

”Radiological Management of Abscesses". Quito, Ecuador, September 1985.

~ "CT and US in Space Occupymg Lesions of the Liver". Quito, Ecuador, September,
1985. ' :

"Percutancous Guided Biopsy International Course of Dlagnostlc Imagmg" Quito,
* Ecuador, September 1985.

_ ”Abdominal Biopsies Guided by CT and US Radiology". 1985 Postgraduate Course
of the Colombian Radiological Society, Cartagena, Colombia, May 1985.

"G.U. Interventions". Postgraduate Course of the Colomb1a11 Radiological Society,
Cartagena, Colombia, May 1985

"Radiology of Hepatlc Disease". Radiology Board Review Course of the University
of Miami School of Medicine, Miami, ¥L., May 1985. '

"Percutaneous Manacvelhent of Abdominal Masses and Fluid Collections".
Postgraduate Course of the Interamerican College of Radiology and Mt. Sinai
Medical CenteL Miami, FL, April 1985.

"Radiclogy of Abdominal Trauma”. Postgraduate Course of the Interamerican
College of Radiology and Mt. Sinai Medical Center, Miami, FL, April 1985.
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"The Radiologist's Role in Endourologic Procedures”. Adult and Pediatric
Postgraduate Course of the Department of Urology, Umvel sity of Miami School of
Medicine, Miami, FL, January 1985.

"Renal CT". Pbstgl'aduate Coﬁi‘se of the Interamerican Corllege of Radiology; -
Mexico, September 1983.

- "Lymphoma: Radiological Spectrum". Postgraduate Course of the Interamerican
College of Radiology and Mt. Sinai Medical Center, Miami Beach, FL, April 1983.

"Radiologia del Pancreas”. Postgraduate Course of the XVI Congwso Nacional de
‘Radiologia, Madrid, Spain, Septembel 1982.

"CT and- Biopsy in Pancreatic Carcinoma. Postgraduate Course of the Interamerican
- College of Radiology and Mt. Sinai Medical Center, Miami Beach, FL, April 1982.

"Pancreatitis". Postgraduate Course of the Intérsimerican College of Radiology and
Mt. Sinai Medical Center, Miami Beach, F1., April 1982

Scientific Papers:

“Computed Tomography and Fluoroscopy-guided sacroplasty for pain relief in
patients with sacral insufficiency fractures”

Weissman A, Berkmen T, Genzalez Aldo, Nunez Jr. D. Presented at RSNA
Chicago 11, Dec 2005

“Renal Ultrasound in the BR for acute renal failure™ Hﬂchey SD, Ledbetier MS,
Benson C33, Nunez Jr. D

Presented at 12 Annual Meeting-American Soc1ety of Ememency RadmIogy, San
Francisco CA, March 2001 ‘

“Thyroid dose estiniates in routine screening for suspected cervical spine injury: a
compatison between helical CT of the entire cervical spine and a radiographic tlauma"
series” Rybicki FJ, Nawfel RD, Ledbetter MS, Nunez JrD

Piesented at RSNA, Chicago, IL. November 2000

“Are the trauma cervical spihe rédiographs necessary when helical CT is rouiine?”
Rybicki FJ, Knoll B, McKenney K, Nunez Jr D
Presented at American Scociety of Emergency Radiology, Orlando, FL. April 2000

-



“An ultrasound hemoperitoneum score predicts the need for laparotomy in blunt
trayma?”. McKenney KL, McKenney MG, Nufiez Jr. D. Presented at American

‘Society of Emergency Radiology, Las Vegas, Nevada, March 1999.

“The feasibility of non-enhanced Helical Computed Tomography in the assessment
- of acute flank plain”. Broder J, Nuiiez Jr D. Presented at Resident Day University
of Miami School of Medicine, Miami, Florida, June 20™, 1998.

“Initial imaging assessment of the traumatized cervical spine: do we need
anterior/posterior and atlanto axial views with routine use of Helical CT. Knoll B,
Nuiiez D. Presented at Fellows Week, University of Miami School of Medicine,
Miami, Flouda June 1998.

“Direct versus Indnect Slgns of Traumatic Aortic Injury Revealed by Hehcal CT:
Performance characteristics and interobserver agreement’. Fishman JE, Nufez D,
Kane A, Rivas LA, Jacobs WE. Presented at the American Roentgen Society
Meeting, May 1998. '

““Helical CT of vascular injuries”. Whittick W, Nuiiez Jr. D. Presented at the 20th
Annual Radlology Remdence day meeting, Miami, Florida, June 1997.

“Helical CT angiography in penctrating injuries to the neck”. LeBlang SD Nufiez
Jr. D. Presented at the 20™ Annual Radmlogy Residence day meetmg, M1a1111
Florida, June 1997.

“Helical CT'angiogmphy in penetrating neck injuries”. LeBlang SD. Nuiiez Jr. D.
Presented at the Annual Meeting American Society of Emergency Radiology, New
Olleans LA, March 1997.

“Spiral CT of ureteral pelvic _]HHCtlDll obstruction”. Amendeola MA, Lebeille R,
Nufiez Jr. . Presented at the RSNA 82" Annual Meeting, Chicago, Illinois,
November 1996.

“Ultrasound as the primary screening modahty in blunt abdominal trauma”.

- McKenney K1, McKennedy MG, Nuiiez Jr. D. PLesented at the RSNA 82“d Annual

Meeting, Chicago, lllinois, November 1996

“CT cystography in the diagnosis of bladder ruptured”. Ruiz G, Rivas L, Nuiiez J ¥

D. Presented at the Annual Fellows day meeting, Miarni, Florida, May, 1996.

“The value hepatic angiography and embolization in the treatment of liver injury”.

Youngman V, Nuiiez Jr. D. Presented at the Annuval Fellows day meeting, Miami,

Florida, May 1996.

93




94

“Helical CT of the cervical spine: how many fractures are we missing”. Presented at
the Annual Meeting of the American Society of Emergency Radiology, Orlando,
Florida, April 1996.

‘;Cost reduction using Ulirasound in blunt abdominal trauma”. McKenney KL,
McKenney MG, Nuiiez Jr. D. Presented at the Annual Meeting of the American
- Society of Emergency Radiology, Orlando, Florida, April 1996.

“Helical CT in penetrating neck trauma” Franca E, Nuiiez Jr. B. Presented at the
18th Annual Radiology Residents Day Meeting, Miami FIL., June 1995

“Helical CT in the evaluation of blunt Thoracic Trauma” Jacobs W, Fishman T,
Nuiiez Jr. D. Presented at the 18th Annual Radmlocry Residents Day Meetmg,
Miami FL, June 1995

“Color doppler imaging in penetrating neck frauma”. LeBlang S, Montaivo_ B,
Nufiez Jr. D, Kochan J, Becerra JL, Ginzburg E. Presented at the American Society
of Emergency Radiology in Scottsdale, Arizona, March 1995.

“Ultrasound: Test of choice in blunt abdominal trauma”. McKenney M, Najjar.R,
Lentz KA, Martin L, Sleeman D, Lopez C, Sosa J, Kirton O, Nufiez Jr. D. Presented
at the 8th Scientific Assembly of the Eastern Association for the Surgery of Trauma.
Sanibel, Florida January, 1995.

“Contribution of CT in penetrating neck trauma?. LeBlang S, Nufiez Jr. D, Scrafini
A, Post J, Montalvo B, Becerra JL. Presented at the ASER, Scottsdale, Auzona
March 19495,

“Initial sonographib assessment of blunt abdominal trauma”. McKenney M, Lentz
KA, Nuiiez Jr. D, Sosa JL, Martin L, Axelrod A, Kirten O, Sleeman I, Oldham C:
Presented at the Western Trauma Association, Crested Butte, Colorado, March 1994,

“Helical CI' of the abdomen: Proposed scanning protocol for trauma patienis”.
Nuifiez Jr. D, Wester J, Lentz KA, Alvarez RT. Presented at the ASER Arizona,
March 1995

“Interpreting the trauma ultrasound: Observations in 62 positive cases”. Lentz KA,
MceKenney M, McDowell L, Nufiez Jr. P, Presented at the ASER in Scoitsdale,
Arizona, March 19935.

“A new approach for the diagnostic work-up of penetrating neck trauma”. IeBlang
S, Nuitez Fr. D, Montalvo B. Presented at the 17t11 Annual Radiology Residents Day,
December 1994,



-

“Plain films versus spiral CT in evaluation of cervical spinal injuries”. Ahmad A,
Nunez Jr. D, Coin CG. Presented at the 17th Annual Radiology Remdents Day,
December 1994.

"CT of the neck in penetrating trauma: predictive value for vascular injury.”
LeBlang SD, Nuiiez Jr. D, Post JD, Serafini A, Montalvo BM, et. al. presented at the
RSNA 80th Annual Meeting, Chicago, IL, November 1594.

"Cervical spine injury in multiple frauma victims: value of spiral CT as a screening
modality." Nuiiez Jr. D, Ahmad A, Coin CG, Becerra JL, Lentz KA, Quencer RM
presented at the ASNR. Annual Meeting, Nashville, TN, May 1994.

"Color doppler imaging in penetrating néck trauma." Montalvo B, LeBlang sSD,
Nufiez Jr. D, Becerra JL, Kochan J, et. al. plesented at the ASNR Annual Meeung,
Nashville, TN, May 1994,

"Clearing the celwcal spine injury in multiple trauma victims: a time effective
protocol using spiral CT." Nuiiez Jr. D, Ahmad A, Coin CG, Becerra JL, Henry R

presented at the 5th annual Meeting of the ASER, Orlando, FL, April 1994

"Color doppler imaging in traumatic neck injuries." Montalvo B, LeBlang SD,
Nuiiez Jr. D, Becerra JL, Kochan J, et. al. presented at the American Institute of

Ultrasound in Medicine 38t Annual Convention, Baltimore, MD, March 1994

"Can ultrasound replace diagnostic peritoneal Iavagé in blunt abdominal trauma."

Lentz K, McKenney M, Nuitez Jr. D, Axeltod A, Kirton MO, et. al. presented at _the

RSNA 79t Annual meeting, Chicago, I, November 1993.

"Scoutview digital radiogTaphy of pelvic fractures." Coin CG, LeBlang S, Nujiez Jr.

D, Becerra JL, Henry R, et. al. presented at the RSNA 79th Annual meeting,

Chicago, IL, November 1993.

"Plain films versus spiral computed tomography in the evaluation of cervical spine
injuries." Coin CG, Ahmad AA, Becerra J1., Nuitez Jr. D, Soto RF, ct. al. presented

at the RSNA 79th Annual Meeting, Chicago, IL., November 1993.

"Spiral CT of the cervical spine: primary role in multiple trauma patients." Nuiiez
Jr. D, Ahmad AA, Coin CG, Becerra JI, Quencer R presented at the RSNA 79th.
Annual meeting, Chicago, IL, November 1993.

"Neurointerventional therapy of the vertebral artery afier traumatic occlusion™. '
Becerra JL, Kochan J, Nufiez Jr. D, DePrima S, Coin CG, et. al. presented at the

ASER 4th Anpual Meeting. San Diego, CA, March 1993. ASNR Annual Meetmg,
Vancouver, CA, May 1993.

©a
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“Scoutview digital radiography in evaluation of trauma patients." Coin CG, LeBlang

S, Becerra JL, Nuifiez Jr. D, Henry R presented at the ASER 4th Annual Meetln
San Diego, CA, Malch 1993

"Proposals for post 1esLdency trammg in emergency radiology”. Nuitez Jr. D

Oldham SA Quencer R presented at the ASER. 4th Annual Meeting, San Diego, CA,
March 1993.

?

" "Trauma patients: are plain films sufficient to clear the cervical spine?" Coin CG,

Ahmad A, Becerra JL, Nufiez Jr. D, Henry R presented at the ASER 4?11 Annual
Meeting, San Diego, CA, March 1993.

"Ulirasound FEvaluation of the Traumatized Abdomen". Lentz K,' Nuiiez Jr. D
_ presented at the Radiology Residents' Day Scientific Program, University of Miami
School of Medicine, Miami, FL, December 1992. “Best Paper Award”.

"Interventional 1'adi610gy in retroperitoneal trauma. Nufiez Jr. D presented at the
Interamerican College of Radiology Congress, Rio de Janeiro, Brazil, November 4-7,
1992. ' ‘ '

"Imaging guided drainage of abdominal post traumatic hematomas". Mendez K,

Casillas VJ, Montalvo BM, Yrizarry JM, Nufiez Jr. D presented at the 'thh

Scientific Assembly RSNA, Chlcago Nlinois, November 1992.

"The radiologist in the emergency depal’tment” Nunez Jr. D p1esented at the
" Tnteramerican College of Radiology Congress, Rio de Janeiro, Brazil, November 4-7,
1992,

"Percutaneous méﬁagement of appendiceé.l abscesses". Nufiez Jr. D, Yrizarry JM,
Casillas V7J presented at the International Congress of Radiology, Paris, France, July -
1989.

"Liver abscesses: surgical or radiological managemeni?”. Al-Refai ¥, Nufiez Jr. D,

Yrizarry JM, Russell E presented at the 715t Annual Scientific Assembly of the
Radiological Society of North America, Chicago, IL, November 17-22, 1985.

"Percutancous transjejunal biliary dilatation: alternate management for benign
strictures". Russell E, Nufiez Jr. D, Huber JS, Yrizarry JM, Hutson DG, Williams A

presented at the 715t Annual Scientific Assembly of the Radlologlcal Society of
North America, Chicago, IL., November 17-22, 1985.
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"Percutaneous management of upper abdominal fluid collection”. Nufiez Jr. D,
Yrizarry JM presented at the International Congress of Radiology”. Hawaii, July
1985.

"Percutancous nephrostomy: technical considerations and redefinition’s for current
applications". Marti A, Nuiiez Jr. 1), Lynne C presented at the Seventh Annual
Residents Day, University of Miami/Jackson Memorial Medical Center, Miami, FL,
May 1984. *“Best Paper Award”.

"Computed tomography of the psoas muscle". Nufiez Jr. D, Malave S, Leon E
presented at the International Course and Symposium of Computed Fomography,

Harvard Medical School, Las Vegas, NV, April 1980

"Pediatric angiography”. Nuiiez Jr. D presented at the Radiolc')gical-Speeial

Procedures Seminar, Un1ve151ty of Miami School of Medlcme Miami, FL, March

1977.

"Retrieval techniques". Nufiez Jr. D presented at the Radielogical Special
Procedures Seminar, University of Miami School of Medicine, Mlaml FL, March
1977.

“Tcpeltechnetate vs. Tc DTPA in cerebral scintigraphy”. Nufiez Jr.D, Shapiro R
presented at the Interamerican Congress of Neu101ad1010gy, Caracas, Venezuela
- October 1975.

Scientific Exhjbits:

Gonzalez-Beicos A, Fung AW, Sanchez M, Nufiez Jr D. Trauma io the ankylofic
" spine: Imagmg spectrum of vertebral and soft tissue injuries. Exhibited at
the Radiological Society of North America, Chicago 11, Dec 2005

Rao, S, Wasyliw C, Nunez Jr. D. Spectruin of linaging findings in Hyperextension
Injuries of the Neck. Exhibited at the Rachologwal Soclety of North America,
Chicago 1L, Dec 2003

Torres-Leon M, Munera F, Nanez Jr. D Vascular injuries of the neck
and thoracic inlei: Helical CT/angiographic correlations. Exhibited at
the Radiological Society of North America, Chicago.IL, Dec. 2002

Broder JD, Nufiez Jr. D. Spiral CT in trauma, indications and contributions to

case management. Exhibited at the Radiological Society of North America Annual

Meeting, Chicago, IL, November 1996.

La
[¥1

97




Zuluaga A, Nufiez Jr. D, Fuentes D, Rivas L. Cervical Spine trauma series: How
much do we learn by routinely using helical CT?. Exhibited at ihe Radiological
Society of North America Annual Meeting, Chicago IL, November 1995.

Schill S, Kiszonas R- Nujiez Jr. D T hé widened dense mediastinum. Exhibited at
the Rad101001cal Society of North America Annual Meetm Chicago IL,
November 1995. : '

Fuentes—Bernardo DA, Nufiez Jr. D. Evaluation of intestinal and mesenteric injury
following abdominal trauma: Usefulness and findings in CT. Exhibited at the
American Roentgen Ray Soclety, Washington DC, May 1995.

Chustoph CL, Posos G, Mata M Kane-Takenfeld A, Nugiez Jr. D. Computed
tomography of pediatric abdominal trauma. Exhibited at the American Roentgen
~ Ray Society, Washington DC May 1995.

Gomez'—Jorge J, Nufiez Jr. D, Lentz KA, Becerra JL, Henry RP.: "Trauma related
abscesses and fluid collections: the value of imaging guided percutancous
interventions". Exhibited at the 80th Annual Meeting of the RSNA Chlcago IL,
November 1994 :

LeBlang SD Serafini A Nuiiez Jr. D, Montalvo BM, Post JD, et. al.: "The
contribution of CT in penetrating neck injuries”. Exhibited at the 80th Annual
Meeting of the RSNA, Chicago, IL, November 1994.

Jacobs WE, Ahmad AA, Rivas L, Nuiiez Jr. D: "The role of helical CT in the
evaluation of traumatic vascular injury”. Exhibited at 80th Annuval Meeting of the
RSNA, Chicago, IL, November 1994.

Nufiez Jr. D, Gomez-Jorge JT, Mendez KR, Leniz KA, Becerra JL, et. al.;

"Positrauinatic angiography:. spectrum of lesions treated with - transcatheter
interventions”. Exbibited at the 80th Annual Meetlng of the RSNA Chicago, IL,
November 1994,

Wester DJ, Nufiez Jr. D, Lentz KA, Martin LC "Non operative management of

tiver lacerations: CT observations". Exhibited at the 80th Annual Meeting of the
~ RSNA, Chicago, TL, November 1994.

LeBlang, Montalvo B, Nufiez Jr. D, Becerra JL, Kochan J, et. al.: Color doppler
imaging in penetrating neck trauma. Exhibited at the ASNR 1994 Annual Meeting,
Nashville, TN, May 1994.

. LeBlang SD, Montalvo B, Nuifiez Jr. D, Becerra JL, Kochan J, et. al.: "Color
Doppler Imaging in Traumatic Neck Injuries.” Exhibited at the Radiological
Society of North Amerlca Chicago, 11, 1993. Certificate of Merit Award RSNA
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1993 Selected  Scientific Winning Bxhibit as a CD-ROM Supplement to
Radiographics. ' ‘

~ Almad AA, Nuiiez Jr. D, Soto R, .Echnique A, Montalvo B: "Spiral CT in the

Evaluation of Blunt Abdominal Trauma."” Exhibited at the Radtological 8001ety of

~ North America. Chicago, IL, 1993.

LeBlang S, Nuﬁez Jr. D, Mont'alvo B, Lentz K, Bece'rra'JL, et. al.: "Trauma
center ultrasonography: newer applications impacting on case management.”

_ Exhibited at the Radiological Society of North America. Chicago, IL, 1993.

Ahmad AA, Coin CG, Soto RF, Echnique A, Nuilez Jr. D, et. al.: "Evaluation of
Cervical Spine Injuries in Trauma Patients: Usefulness and Limitations of Plain
Films, Conventional and Spiral Computed Tomography. Exhibited at the
Radiologlcal Society of North America. Chlcago 1., 1993,

Beerman R, Nusiez Jr. D: "Radio graphic Evaluation of the Cocaine Smuggler.”
Eixhibited at the Annual Roentgen Ray Society Meeting. Boston, MA, 1985.

Russell E, Nujiez Jr. D, Yrizarry J: "The Anatomical Aspecis of Knee
. Arthrography." Exhibited at the Radiological Society of North America. Clncago
1L, 1978.

Nufiez Jr. D, Russell E, Yrizacry J: "Portosystemic Collaterals." Exhibited at the
Special Procedures Seminar, Department of Radiology, University of Miami '
School of Medicine. Miami, FL, 1977.

- VI. TEACHING

27. Teaching Awards Received:

.- 28.

“Best Teacher Award” Depariment of Radiology, Universidad Central de
Venezuela Medical School - 1987,
“Best Teacher Award” Department of Radiology Hospital of St Raphael, Yale
Medical School, 2005 - '

Teaching Specialization:

1. | Undergraduate:

a) Emergency Radiology Course to Junior Medical Students: 1 weel/year
consistent of plenary lectures and practical sessions (1992-1999).
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b) Trauma Radiology Course - to Senior Medical Students on weekly sessions
of L 1/2 hours in the Department of Radlology at University of Mlann
(1996 1999). '

2. Graduate:

Daily Emergency Radiology and NeuroRadiology case review and discussion
with Radiology Residents at University of Miami (1992-1999), Brigham- &
Women Hospital (1999-2001) and Hospital of St Rapahel (2001 to present)

3. Housestaff®

Daily reviews and case dlscussmns in Nemmadmlogy, Head and Neck and -

FEmergency Radiology
Thesis and Dissertation Advising:

Adv1501 to senior smentlﬁc projects of graduating Radlology ReSIdents and
Fellows

Lectures series.in Neuroradiology and Head and Neck Radiology to Residents and
Fellows of ’[he Yale afﬁliated,ﬂadiology Programs (2001 to present)

Advisees and trainees at HOSp?tal of St Raphael: Mario Torres Leon Sameet Rao,
Christopher Wasyliw, Charles Lesh (2003-2005)

Advisees and trainees at Brigham and Women'’s Hospital: Brian Hu, Peter Halt,
Sean Hilchey and Frank Rybicki (1959-2001})

Advisees and trainees at University of Miami Medical Center:

Steve Christie- Routine Subdural Windows in Brain CT examinations: Are they
necessary? June 1999.

Al Rivera- Angiographic management of liver injuties, June 1999
Jon Broder — Helical CT in the Evaluation of Renal Colic, June 1998.

Barbara Knoll — Do we need the AP views to clear the cervical spine when using
helical CT routinely? June 1998

Wendy Whittick, MD, “Helical CT of vascular injuries” June 1997.
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Suzanne D. LeBlang, MD, “Helical CT angiograi)hy in penetrating neck injuries”

June 1997.

© Graciela Ruiz, MD, “CT Cystography in the Evaluation of Bladder Rupture” June

1996.

Sergio L. Selva, MD, “Transcatheter Embolization in Splenic Trauma”
June 1996

Vicky Youngman, DO, “Transcatheter Embohzatlon of Traumatic Hepaﬁc Artenal
Injuries” May,:19%96.

Felipe Munera, MD “Low Susplcnon Gun Shot Wound to the Abdomen Is there a
Role for CT7” May, 1996. :

‘Wayne Jacobs, M.D., “Helical CT in the evaluation of aortic injur'ies”

June, 1995.

d Franca, M.D., “Helical CT angiogr aphy in the evaluation of penetl atmg neck
injuries” June, 1995 :

Susan LeBlang, M.D., “A new approach for the diagn.ostic work-up of penetrating
neck trauma” 1994. (Best paper award)

Adel Ahmad, M.D., “Plain film versus spiral CT in the evalua‘non of cervical ste
injuries’” 1994.

John Wester, M.D. “No110pe1at1ve management of liver injuries: CT observations”
1994.

Kimberley Lentz, M.ID., “Ultrasound evaluation of the traumatized abdc_nnen”

1993, (Best paper award)

. Alex Marti, M.D., “Percutaneous nephrostomy: technical considerations and re-

definitions for current applications™ 1984. (Best paper award)

~ VIL SERVICE

30.

University Committee and
Administrative ResponSIbIhtles

Capital Budget Committee Co-Chair, Hospltal of St Raphael, 2003 to present

Graduate Medical Education Committee, Hospital of St Raphael.
Yan 2003 to present.
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Emergency Department Physician Adviscry Committee.
Hospital of St. Raphael. 2002-2004

PACS and Radiology Informatics Committee. Hospital of St Raphael. 2002

Emergency Medicine Chair Search Comumittee. Hospital of St Raphael 2004

Director of Postgraduate Education- Department of Radiology Brigham and
Women’s Hospital, Feb- Sept. 2001

Technical Operations Committee Department of Radiology Bllgham and Women’s
Hospital, 1999

Trauma Quallty Management Committee- Brigham and Women ]
Hospital, 1999

Emergency Services Steering Committee, Jackson Memorial Hospital, 1998

Resident Selection Committee. Department of Rachology, University of Miami
School of Medicine, 1992, 1994, 1996. '

- Meimber - Medical School Curriculum Commitiee, 1996-1999.
Coordinator - Educational Programs and Fellowships for Visiting Radiologists

Department of Radiology University of Miami/Jackson Memorial Medical Center,
1994-1998 : - ;

International Health Center University of Miami/MH 1996

United States Department of Transportation Multidiseiplinary Crash Study
Committee Ryder Trauma Center - Jackson Memorial Medical Center, 1993

Coordinator of Radloloo‘y Grand Rounds University of Miami School of Medwme
1993-1999.

Emergency Care Center Quality Assurance Comunittee. Jaekson Memoual Medxcal
Center, 1992-1999.

Trauma Quality Management Committee. Ryder Trauma Center - Jackson Menmual
Medical Center, 1992-1999.
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CURRICULUM VITAE
Nane: William B. Zuc¢coni, D.O.
Proposed for Appointment to: Assistant Clinical Professor, Department of Radiology
School: _ | Yale University School of Medicine
‘Edueation: BA. Studio Ast, Stafe University of NY at Geneseo, 1995

D.0.. New York College of Osteopathic Medicine, 2001

Career/Academic Appoinimenis:

1998-2002 Fellow, Dept of Anatony, New York College of Osteopatluc Medicine

- 2000-2001 Instructor, Dept. of Anatomy, NY Institute of Technology, School of Allied Health
2001-2002 Tlausmonal Year Intern, New York Hospital Queens, Flushing NY
2002-2006 Resident, Dept. of Radiology, Stony Brook Universify Hospital, Stony Brook NY
2005-2006 Chief Resident, Radiology, Stony Brook University Hospital, Stony Brook NY
2006-2007 Neuroradiology Fellow, Mount Sinai Medical Center, New York NY’
2007- present Radiologist, New Haven Radiology Associates,; New Haven CT '
2010~ present Assistant Clinical Professor of Radiology, Yale Medical School, Voluntary Faculty

Administrative Pnsiﬁons:

1968-1999 Student Representative to Curriculum committee, NYCOM

2004-2006 Resident representative to Radiology IT, QA and resident selection committees.
2005-2006 ~ Chief Resident, Radiology, Stony Brook University Hospital, Stony Brook NY
2007-present Institutional Review Board, Hospital of St. Raphael Ncw Haven CT
2010-present Secretary, New Haven Radiology Associates. :
2010-present Member, Executive Commiitee, New Haven Radlology Associates.

Board Certification:

2000 American Board of Radiology, Diagnosﬁc Radiology '

2008 American Board of Radiology, Subspecialty Cetification in Neurcradiology

Professional Honors & Recognition

A) International/National/Regional,

2011: Teacher of the Year Award, Dept. of Radiology, I—Iosp1ta1 of St. Raphael
2006: RENA Resident Research Award '

B) University :
2006: Resident Teacher of the Year Award, Dept. of Radiology, Stony Brook UH
2006: Unknown Case of the Week Award, Dept. of Radiology, Stony Brook UH
2005: Chief Resident, Radiology, Stony Brook University Hospital

1995: First Place Award, 3D artwoik, SUNY at Geneseo Student Ari Exhibit



Lectures, Courses, Web-based Education:

2011 and 2012: - Sinonasal Imaging, Rhinology curriculum, Yale Otolatyngology Residency Program
2011 and 2012: YDR Resident Neuroradiology ABR board review and lectures
2011: Hospital of St. Raphael Spine Symposium on Spinal Tumors, “Imagmg Neoplastic
‘ Disease of the Spine”, Sept 2011

2010: Resident ABR hoard reviews St. Vincent’s Medical Center, Budcrepmt CT
2007-2010: - Monthly lectures, varied topics Hosp of St. Raphael resident Neuroradiology

: curriculum, :
2003-06: ) 3 year medical student radiology lectures, Dept of Radiology SUNY Stony Brook.
2004-05: Radiologic anatomy lectures fo studenis of SUNY Stony Brook School of

Radiclogic Technology. -

2000: Anatomy Instructor, New York Institute of Technology, School of Allied Health.

Professional Organizations

2000-2001 American Association of Clinical Anatomists -

2002-present American College of Radiclogy
2010-present - Senior Member, American Society of Nenroradiology
BIBLIOGRAPHY:

Peer-Reviewed Manuscripts

Greenwald R, Tom S, Zucconi WB, et al. Carbon tin vibrational frequencies in substituted
trimethylvinylstannanes, Main Group Metal Chemistry. 1994; 17(6); 435-8.

Zucconi WB Guelfguat M, Solounias N. Approach to the Educational Opportuniiies Provided by Variant
Anatomy, Illustrated by Discussion of a Duplicated Inferior Vena Cava. Clinical Anatomy 2002, 15(2):
165-163.

Cohen HL, Blummnier SL, Zucconi WB. The sonographic double-track sign, not pathognomonic for
hypertrophic pyloric stenosis; can be seen in pylorospasm. I Ultrasound Med 2004; 23:641-646.

Case Reports. Abstracts, Technical Notes. Letters. Exhibits. Tlustrations

Abstract: Guelfguaf M, Zueconi WB. Anomalous peroneus brevis mnscle: anatomical and clinical
significance (abstract). Clinical Anatomy 2000; 14(1). Also an Exhibit presented at Joined meeting of the
American and British Associations of Clinical Anatomists, Cambridge University, UK 7/21/00.

Zucconi WB, Guelfzuat M, Solounjas N. Approach to the Educational Opportunities Provided by Variant
Anatomy, Illnstrated by Discussion of a Duplicated Inferior Vena Cava. Exhibit: Joined meefing of the
American and British Associations of Clinical Anatomists, Cambridge University, UK 7/21/00.
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Zucconi WB, Cohen HL, Newman J. et al. Tethered cord secondary to spinal lipoma. Ultrasound case of
the day exhibit, RSNA 2004, November 28 —~December 3.

Dougherty D, Cohen HL, Zncconi WB. Normal ovary simulating pericecal méss. Ulirasound case of the
day exhibit, RSNA 2004. November 28 —December 3.

Brandman S, Gafton AR, Zucconi' W, Nuuez D. Did It Cross The Border? Limited and Aggressive Neck
Infectmns Poster Pxesentatlon ASHNR 2008

Weinreb DB, Zucconi W, Aiken A, Gean AD, CT Perfusion imaging in acute siroke — basic concepis.
Poster presentation ASNR, 2009.

- Duify P, Cameron SF, Dinaver P, Zucconi W. Femoroacetabular Impmgement A Resident-Oriented
Rev1ew Educational Exhibii, ARRS, 2010.

"

a.

Ilusirations;

Cover Ilustration: Encyclopedia of Paleontology, Singér R (Editor) 1999, Volume 2,

Eugene IR, Iccochea R, Miglietta M, et al. The Pollack procedure, a one-stage treatment for
hidradenitis suppurativa of the axilla, discase review. Contemporary Sutgery 2000; 56(4): 226-

. 7~35

Greenfield M, Icochea R, Hoffinan C, et al. Double lip: an unusual presentation. ClltlS 2000
66(4): 253-56.

- Meyer GK, Del.aMora PA. Last Minute Pediatrics. New Youk, NY, McGraw Hill, 2004.

Cohen HL, Blummer SL, Zucconi WB. The sonographic double-track sign, not pathognomonic
for hyperirophic pylouc stenosis; can be seen In pylorospasm. J Ultrasound Med 2004: 23:641-
64a.

Cohen HL, Kravets F, Zucconi WB, et al. Congenital abnormalities of the gemtourmaw system

Seminars i in Roentgenology ?004 39(23: 282-303.

Blummer SL, Zucconi WZ, Cohen HC, et al. The vomiting neonate: a review of the ACR.
appropriateness criteria and ultrasound's role in the wor laup of such patients. Ultrasound
Quartel Ly 2004; 20(3):79-85. .

Contributar (Selected Illustratlons): ACR. Professional Self Evatuation Series (PSE); Vol. 49
Gastrointestinal Disease VI, Fall, 2004

Compufer animation: Femoroacetabular Impingement: A Resident-Oriented Review. Educational
Exhibit, ARRS, 2010.

Revi ews'. Chapters. Books
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STATE OF CONNECTICUT -
Department of Public Health
LICENSE
| License No. 0044
General Hospital

Tn accordance with the provisions of the General Statutes of Connscticut Section 19a-493:
Yale-New Haven [Tospital, Inc, of New Haven, CT d/b/a Yale-New Haven Hospital, Inc. is
hereby licensed to maintain and operate a General Hospital.

Yale-New Haven Hospital, Inc, is located at 20 York Street, New Haven; CT 06504.

The maximum mumber of beds shall not exceed at any time:
134 Bassinets '
1407 General Hospital Beds

This Heense expires September 30, 2013 and may be revoked for cause at any time,
Dated ai Hartford, Connectiont, October 1. 2011.

SATELLITES

Hill Regional Career High School, 140 Legion Avenve, Mew Haven, CT
Branford High School Based Health Center, 185 East Main Styeet, Branford, CT
Walsh Middle School, 185 Damascus Road, Branford, CT
James Hillhouse High School Based Health Center, 480 Shermaa Parkway, Naw Haven, CT -
Wetler Building, 425 George Street, New Haven, CT
Yale-New Haven Psychiatric Hospital, 184 Liberty Street, New Haven, CT
" Yale-New Haven Shoreline Medical Center, £11 Goose Lane, Guilford, CT
Pediafric Dentistry Cenfer, 860 Howard Avemne, New Haven, CT -
YNHASC Temple Surgical Centee, 60 Temple Strect, New Haven, CT
YMNHASC Womien's Surgical Cenfer, 40 Temple Street, New Haven, CT
Maurc-Sheridan Scheol Based Healith Center, 191 Fowntain Street, New Haven, €T
Yale-New Haven: Hospital Dental Center, 2560 Dixwel] Avenme, Hamden, CT
Murphy School Based Health Center, 14 Biushy Plaia Road, Branford, CT
P.T. Barmum Pediattic Cenier, 226 Mill Hill Avenue, Bridgeport, CT )
Yale-New Havert Hospital-Saint Raphael Campus, 1450 Chapel Street, New Haven, CT - -
Adolescent Day Hospital, 646 George Strest, New Haven, CT .
Psychiairic Day Hospital, 1294 Chapel Street, New Haven, CT
Children's Psychiatric Day Hospital, 1450 Chapel Street, New Haven, CT
Elder Care Clinic, Atwater Clinse, 26 Atwater Steeet, New Haven, CT
Elder Care Clinic/Tower One, 18 Tower Lane, New Haven, CT
Elder Care Clinic/Casa Oional, 135 Sylvan Avenne, New Haven, CT
Elder Care Clinic/Edith Johnsen Tower, 114 Bristol Street, New Haven, CT
Evening Chemical Pependeacy Program, 1294 Chapel Street, Mevr Haven, CT
Elder Care Clinje/Surtside, 200 Oak Street, West Haven, CT
Troup Magnet Academy School-Based Health Center, Naw Haven, CT
Adult PAR, 110 Shemman Avenue, Hamden, CT
Wheat, 674 Washington Avenuc, West Haven, CT
Barnard Environmental Studies Magnet School, 173 Derhy Aveang, New Haven, CT

Center for Women's Heatth/Midwifery & Chapal Pediatrics, 2 Ivy Brook Road, Suits 111, Shelton, CT

“Smiles 2 Go™ Dental Mobile Van, 60 Commerce Styeet, East Faveo, CT.

Project Eldercare, 2080 Whitney Avenue, Suite 150, Bamden, CT

Chape=l Pediatrics, 2080 Whitney Avenue, Scite 150, Hemden, CT

Shorelina Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services, 21 Business Park Drive, Branford, CT

License Revised to Reflect
* Haospital of Saint Raphael merged with Yale-New Haven Hospital, Inc. effsctive 5/12/12

2@&6 fhod Zewt?
Jewel Mullen, MD, MPH, MPA
Commissiones
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Report of Independent Auditors

Board of Trustees
Yale-New Haven Hospital, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Yale-New Haven Hospital,

Tne. and . Subsidiaries (the “Hospital™) as of September 30, 2012 and 2011, and the related

consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets and cash flows for the years then
ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Hospital’s management. Our

responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial staiements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally aécepted_in the United

- States and the standard applicable to financial audits contained in Govermment Auditing

Standards, issued by the Comptrolier General of the United States. Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. We were not engaged to perform an audit of the
Hospital’s internal control over financial reporting. Our audits included consideration of internal

" control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are approptiate in

the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectivenéss of the
Hospital’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An
audit also includes examining, on a fest basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statemeiits, assessing the accounting principles used and significani estimates

made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe

that our audits provide a reasdnable‘basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the comsolidated financial position of Yale-New Haven Hospital, Inc. and Subsidiaries at
September 30, 2012 and 2011, and the consolidated results of its operations and changes in its
net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles in the U.S. '

As discussed in Notes | and 9 to the accompanying consolidated financial statements, in 2012

. the Hospital changed its method of accounting for estimated insurance claims receivable and

insurance claims liabilities with the adoption of Accounting Standards Update 2010-24,
Presentation of Insurance Claims and Related Insuravice Recoveries.

émﬂtf LLP

December 21, 2012

A mermber firm of Ernst & Young Glebal Limited
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-Yale-New Haven Hospital, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Cdnsolidafed Balance Sheets

Assets
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Short-term investments.

Accounts receivable f01 services to patlents Iess allowance for
uncollectible accounts, charity and fiee care of approximately
$59,610,000 in 2012 and- $43 206,000 in 2011

Other receivables

Professional liabilities insurance recoveries lecelvable -
cuirent portion

© Other current assets
Amounts on deposit with trustee in debt service fund
Total current assets

Assets limited as to use -

Long-term investmenis

Deferred financing costs, less accumulated amortization

Professional liabilities insurance recoveries receivable —
non-current ‘ '

© Goodwill

Other assets

Property, plant, and equipment:
Land and land improvements
Buildings and fixtures
Equipment

~ Less accumulated depreciation

- ‘Construction in progress .

Total assets

September 30

2012 2011
(In Thousands)
$ 64557 § 65883
613,360 402,559
202,909 167,383
48,641 562201
15,739 13,514
47,394 24,630
6,619 6,320
~ 999,219 736,490
105,688 129,997
164,238 141,525
5,182 5,488
40271 50,081
35,685 _
177,199 129,845
33,191 19,467
1,068,530 952,346 -
426,413 419,565
1,528,134 1,391,378
601,670 566,850
926,464 824,528
63,603 43207
990,067 867,735

$2,517,549  $2,061,161
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Liabilities and pet assets

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses

" Professional liabilities- current portion
Current portion of long-term debt
Current portion of capital lease obligation
Other current liahilities

Total current liabilities .

Long-term debt, net of current portion
Capital lease obligation, net of current portion
. Accrued pension and postretivement benefit abligations
Professional liabilities ' ‘
. Other long-term liabilities
Deferred revenue
Total liabilities

Commitments and contingencies
Net assets:

Unrestricted

Temporarily restricted

Permanently restricted
Total net assets

. Total liabilities and et assets

See accompanying notes.

~ September 30
2012 2011
(In Thousands)
$ 134,051 $ 99381
168,508 120,959
15,739 13,514
45,198 10,185
55,292 2,862
2,926 3,848
421,714 250,749
674,969 509,022
52,237 107,529
280,718 240,901
105,313 75,533
180,195 155,019
53,625 48,321
1,768,771 1,387,074
676,008 604,617
46,026 43,9047
26,744 25,523
748,778 674,087
$2,517,549 $2,061,161
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Yale-New Haven Hospital, Inc. and Subsidiarics

Consolidated Statements of Operations and Changes in Net Assets

Operating revenue:
Net patient service revenue
Other revenue ,
Total operating revenue

Operating expenses:
Salaries and benefits
Supplies and other expenses
Depreciation
Insurance
- Bad debts
Interest
Total operating expenses
Income from operations

Non-operating gains and losses, net
Excess of revenue over expenses

-(Continued on next page.)'

Year Ended September 30

2012 2011

(In Thousands)
$ 1,713,271 § 1,442,057
' 47,684 46,640
1,760,955 1,488,697
757,263 690,314
758,058 620,912
73,101 67,948
15,680 13,376
32,622 . - 26,390
17,720 16,867
1,654,444 1,435,807
106,511 52,890
24,098 14,272
130,609

67,162
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Yale-New Haven Hospital, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Operations' and Changes in Net Assets (continued)

Unrestricied net assets:
Other changes in net assets
Transfer to Yale-New Haven Health Services Corporation —
Clinical Development Fund
Transfer from Yale-New Haven Health Services Corporation
Nei transfer from Yale-New Haven Network Corporation
Net assets released from restrictions for purchases of fixed
assets
Pension and other postretirement liability adjustments
Tncrease in unrestricted net assets

Temporarily restricted net assets:

Income from investments

Net realized gains on investments

Change in net unrealized gains and losses on investments

Bequests, contributions, and grants :

Net assets released from restrictions for purchases of

fixed assets ,

Net assets released from restrictions for fiee care

Net assets released from resfrictions for operations

Net assets released from restrictions for clinical programs
Increase (decrease) in temporarily restricted net assets

Permanently restricted net assets:

Change in beneficial interest in perpetual trusts
- Increase (decrease) in permanently restricted net assets
Increase in net assets '

Net assets at beginning of year
Net assets at end of year

See accompanying nofes.

Year Ended September 30

2012 2011
{In Thousands)
S . M2 3 @273y
" (9,000) (12,000)
2,900 2,900
436 6,250
258 1,774
(54,174) (28,727)
71,391 37,086
280 512
41 3,065
6,394 319
11,847 15,280
(258) (1,774)
(889) (782)
(2,962) (5,003)
(12,804) (16,195)
2,079 (4,578)
1,221 (733)
1,221 (733)
74,691 31,775
674,087 642,312
$ 748,778 $ 674,087
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Yale-New Haven Hospital, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

See accompanying riofes.

Year Ended September 30

-2072 2011
(In Thousands)
Cash flows from operating activities
Inerease in net assets 74691 § 31,775
Adjustmenis to reconcile increase in net assets to net cash provided by
cperating activities:
Depreciation . 73,101 67,948
Net realized and change in net unrealized gains and [osses on investments {60,465) (21,801
Change in fair value of interest rate swap agreements : 7,318 - 4421
Amortization of lang-term debi premium (854) (8853)
Amortization of deferred financing costs . 300 317
Bad debis ’ 32,622 26,390
Change in perpetual tusts (1,221) 33
Transfer to Yale-New Haven Health Services Corporation — :
Clinical Development Fund 2,000 12,060
Transfer from Yale-New Haven Health Services Corporation (2,900) (2,500)
Transfer from YNH- Netwerk Corporation . (456) C(6,250)
Bequests, confributions and grants, net of restricted pledges (14,807) (16,941)
Pension and other postretirement liability adjustments 54,174 28,727
Changes in operating assets and liabilities; C ’
Accounts receivable, net (68,148) (58,328}
Other receivables 14,960 (20,132}
Other assets 7,593 (56,621)
Accounts payable 34,670 (1,597
Accrued expenses 1,130 12574
Professional insurance recoveries and liabilities 39,590 2,103
Other cuirent liabilities, accrued pension and postretirement benefit . _
obligations, other long-term liabilities, and deferred revenue {32,351 27,019
Net cash provided by operating activities 167,453 28,532
Cash flows from investing activities
Net acquisitions of property, plant, and equipment 97.254) (79,667)
Capitalized interest 1,977 3,054 .
Cash paid for acquisition, net of cash acquired (133,800) -
_Net change in investments (173,049) (27,18%)
Inerease in debt service fund (299 (1,696) -
Assets whose use is [imited ) ) 25,530 (63,079) -
Transfer to Yale-New Haven Heaith Services Corporation — Clinical Development Fund (9,000) (12,000}
Transfer from YNH Nebwork Coiporation . 456 6,250
Transfer from Yale-New Haven Health Services Corporation 2,900 2,900
Net cash used in investing activities (382,539) (173,427
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of debt — 105,436
Proczeds from note payable 212,000 40,000
Payments on capital lease obligation (2,862) (2,622}
Repayments of long-term debt (10,185} (13,577
Deferred financing costs - (1.956)
Bequests, contributions and grants, net of pledges 14,807 16,911
Net cash provided by financing activities 213,760 144222
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (1,326) (673)
Cash and cash équivalents at beginning of year 65,883 66,536
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 8 64,357 % 65,883

117




~ Yale-New Haven Hos.,pital,.Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements -

September 30, 2012

1. Organization and Significant Accounting Policies
Organization

Yale-New Haven Hospital, Inc. (the “Hospital”) is a voluntary association incorporated under the
General Statutes of the State of Connecticut. YNH Network Corporation (“YNHNC™), a
Connecticut not-for-profit corporation, is the sole member of the Hospital, and serves as the sole
member/parent for a delivery network of regional healthcare providers and related entities.

Yale-New Haven Health Services Corporation (“YNHHSC”) is the sole member of YNHNC and
two similar organizations. Each of these three tax-exempt organizations serves as the sole
member/parent for its respective delivery network of regional healthcare providers and related
entities. The Hospital continues to operate with a separate Board of Trustees, management staff
~ and medical staff; however, YNHNC approves the Hospital’s strategic plans, ope1at1nﬁ and
capital budgets, and Board of Trustees appointments.

Acquisition

On September 12, 2012, the Hospital, Yale-New Haven Ambulatory Services Corporétion '
(“ASC”™), a wholly-owned subsidiary of YNHNC, Yale-New Haven Care Confinuum

Corporation (“YNHCCC”), a wholly owned subsidiary of YNHNC, and Medical Center
Pharmacy and Home Care Center, Inc., a subsidiary of York Enterprise, Inc. (*York”) which is a
- wholly owned subsidiary of YNHNC, acquired substantially all of the business, assets, and

operations and assumed certain liabilities of the Saint Raphael Healthcare System, Imc. -

(“SRHS™), mcludmg substantially all of the assets of its wholly-owned subsidiary, the Hospital
of Saint Raphael ("HSR™), a 511-bed acute care hospital located in New Haven, CT. Other
affiliates of SRHS whose assets were acquired in comnection with the transaction 1nclude the
following:

« Saint Regis Health Center, Inc. d/b/a Sister Anne Virginie Grimes Health Center
(“Grimes”), a tax-exempt, skilled nursing facility that operated with 120 licensed beds
which was a- wholly-owned subsidiary of SRHS. In connection with the transaction,
YNHCCC acquired substantially all of the land, buildings, equipment and bed licenses
associated with Grimes.

« Caritas Insurance Company, Lid. (“Cariias™) a Vermont-domiciled, captive insurance
company licensed under Chapter 141 of Title 8 of the Vermont Statutes Annotated.
Caritas is a tax-exempt supporting organization having the Hospital as its sole
shareholder. Caritas provides excess professional liability coverage and general liability
coverage. Caritas was a wholly-owned subsidiary of TISR.
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YaIe—Néw Haven Hospital, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

1. Organization and Significant Accopnting Policies (cbnﬁnued) '

*  Lukan Indemnity Company; Ltd. (“Lukan”) a Bermuda-domiciled captive insurance
company that provides primary professional liability coverage. Lukan was a' wholly-
owned subsidiary of HSR. In connection with the transaction, the Hospital acquired
100% of the stock of Lukan. :

= DePaul Health ServicesrCO‘rpdi‘ation (“DePaul™) a Connecticut nonstock corporation
- which held interests in joint ventures and cther assets on behalf of HSR. In connection

with the transaction, ASC acquired certain interests in investments from DePaul.

= Saint Raphael Foundation, Inc. (the “Foundation™) a tax-exempt fundraising foundation

of HSR which was a subsidiary of SRHS. In connection with the fransaction, certain .

assets of the Foundation were acqﬁi_rred by the Hospital.

The total consideration transferred by the Hospital, ASC, YNHCCC and York was
approximately $237.9 million, including $160.0 million in cash and an instaliment payable plus
the assumption of habllltles totaling $77.9 million, as follows (in thousands).

Cash conmderation _ ' ‘ . o $ 150,000
Installment payments ' ‘ 10,000
Assumption of liabilities . _ " 77,927
Total consideration transferred : ' : $ 237,927

The acquisition of substantially all of the business, assets, and operations and assumption of
liabilities of TISR included installment payments in the amount. of $10 million payable in two
equal installments in October 2012 and March 2013. The first installmeni payment of $3 million
was made on October 12, 2012,

The Hospital and its affiliates have accounted for the business combination applying the
acquisition method of accounting in accordance with Accounting Standards Codification Topic
805, Business Combinations.
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Yale-New Haven Hospital, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemenis (continued)

1. Organization and Significant Account_ing Policies (continued)

The following table summarizes the estimated fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities
assumed at the acquisition date. Determining the fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities
assumed requires judgment and involves the use of significant accounting estimates and
assumptions, including assumptions with respect to future cash inflows and outﬂows and
discount rates, among others.

Assets acquired:

Hospital ASC___ YNHCCC York  Total -

Cash ‘ § 16200 $ - % - % — $ 16,200
Other current assets 7 7,240 ‘ - - 187 7.427
Other receivables 7,400 - - - 7,400
Goodwill - . . 35,685 — — ~ 35,685
Other long-term assets 53,771 12,500 700 - 66,971
Property, plant and equipment 100,156 = 4,075 13 104,244
. ) : 220,452, 12,500 4,775 200 237,927
Liabilities assumed: . - '
Accrued expenses 36,419 - 775 — 37,194
Other long-term liabilities 40,733 — = — 40,733
Total _ : 77,152 - 773 — 71,927
Assets and liabilities acquired $ 143,300 $ 12,500 $ 4,000 $ 200 $ 160,000
Cash paid for acquisition ‘$ 150,000 3 - 3 - $ - '8 150,000
Installment payments $ 10000 $ . - § - % - 10,000
Change in net assets - $ —

The Hospital recorded goodwill in the amount of $35.7 million. In determining the amount of
goodwill, all assets acquired and liabilities assumed were measured at fair value as of the
acquisition date. Factors coniributing to goodwill that resulted from the acquisition include, but
are not limited to, the efficiencies that will result from the combination of the campuses and their
proximity.

YNHCCC, ASC and York each respectively paid amounts equal to the fair values for assets
acquired, net of liabilities assumed, with cash provided by the Hospital.

The results of the business, assets, and-operations acquired for the period September 12, 2012

through September 30, 2012 have been combined with the Hospital and included in the
consolidated financial statements.
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Yale-New Haven Hospital, Inc.:and-Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

1. Organizﬁﬁon and Significant Accoﬁnﬁng Policies (continued)

The following table summarizes amounts attributed to HRS since the acquisition date that are
included in the accompanying consolidated financial statements (in thousands):.

Period From
September 12, 2012 to

September 30, 2012
Total operating revenue o ' ¥ 22260
Total operating expense : - 23,532
Loss from operations . - (1L,272)
Non-operating gains and losses, net : 71

Deficiency of revenue over expenses ~$ (1,201)

Change in net assets: .
Unrestricted net assets P (1,200
Temporarily restricted net assets ‘ - : -
Permanently restricted net assets ' - —
Total change in net assets ‘ $ (1,201

The following table represents pro forma financial information, assuming the acquisition of HRS
had taken place October 1, 2010. The pro forma information includes adjustments for the
amortization of intangible assets. The pro forma financial information is not necessarily
indicative of the results of operations as they would have been had the transaction been effected
on the acquisition date (in thousands). :

Year Ended September 30

2012 2011
Total operating revenus $ 2,257,918 $ 1,993,214
Total operating expense 2,162,129 1,937,853
Gain from operations : : 95,780 35,361
Non-operating gains and losses, net . 25,465 14,665
Excess of revenue over expenses $ 121,254  § 70,026
- Change in net assets: _

Unrestricted net assets 3 74,034 § (1,610)

Temporarily restricted net assets (2,389) (2,507

Permanently restricted net assets 921 {2,712)
Total change in net assets : $ 73,166 3 {(6,835)

10
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Yale—NéW Haven Hospital, Inc. and Subsidiaries |

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continucd)

1. Organization and Significant Aceounting Policies (coﬁtinued)
Principles of Conselidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statenients present the accounts and transactions of the
Hospital and its wholly-owned subsidiaries Caritas and Lukan. All significant i11te1company
revenue and expenses amd infercompany balance sheet accounts have been climinated in
consolidation. -

- Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets, including estimated uncollectibles for accounts receivable for services to
patients, and liabilities, including estimated net settlements with third-party payors and

professional liabilities, and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the

financial statements. Estimates also affect the amounts of revenue and expenses reported during
the period. There is at least a reasonable possibility that certain estimates will change by material
amounts in the near term. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Duriﬁg.ﬁscal 2012 and 2011, the Hospital recorded a change in estimate of approximately $10.2
million and $10.6 million, respectively. Included in the change are amounts related to favorable
third-party payor settlements at September 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Tem'porz-lrily and Permanenily Restricted Net Assets

Temporarily restricted net assets are those whose use by the Hospital has been limited by donors
to a specific time period or purpose and appreciation on permanently resiricted net assets.
Permanently restricted net assets have been restricted by donors to be maintained by the Hospital
in perpetuity. The Hospital is a partial beneficiary to various perpetual trust agreeiments. Assets
recorded under these agreements are recognized at fair value. The investment income generated
from these trusts is unrestricted and the assets are classified as permanently restricted.

The restricted funds investments are pooled with unrestricted investments to facilitate their
management. Investment income is allocated to the restricted funds using the market value unit
method. The Board of Trustees approves spending for certain pooled funds based on total return.
Realized gains and losses from the sale of securiiies are computed using the ave1age cost
method.

11
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Yale-New Haven Hospital, Inc. and Subsidiaries -

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

1. Oxganization and Significant Accounting Polieies (coﬂtinued) '

Coniributions, including unconditional promises to give, are recognized as revenue in the period
received. Conditional promises to glve are not recognlzed untll the condltlons on which they
depend are substantla]ly met.

Contributions receivable to be received after one year are discounted at a discount rate
commensurate with the risks involved. Amortization of the discount is recognized as revenue and
s classified as either unrestricted or temporarily restricted in accordance with d0n01 imposed
restrictions, if any, on the contributions. -

Contributions receivable, included in-other receivables and other assets in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheets at September 30, 2012 and 2011, are expected to be received as
follows (in thousands) -

September 30}
2012 2011
Less than one year ‘ ‘ . $1,5% | $ 1,187
Omne to five years S 2,054 1,662

‘ ‘ _ 3,650 2,849
Less unamortized discount on contributions receivable

(0.2% to 4.2%) - o , (108)° (174)
_ : 3,542 2,675
Allowance for uncollectible contributions (106) (80)

8 3436 $ 2,595

Donor Restricted Gifts

Unconditional promises to give cash and other assets are reported at fair value at the date the
promise is received. All gifis are reported as either temporarily or permanently restricted support
if they are received with donor stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets. When a donor
restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is
accomplished, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassitied as unvestricted net assets.

12



Yale-New Haven Hospital, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements {(continued)

1. Organization and Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include investments in highly liquid financial instruments with
original maturities of three months or less when purchased, which are not classified as assets
limited" as to use and which are not maintained in the short-term or long-term investment
portiolios.. o

Cash and cash equivalents are maintained with domestic financial institutions with deposits that
exceed federally insured limits. It is the Hospital’s policy to monitor the financial strength of
these institutions. o

Accounts Receivable

Patient accounts receivable result from the health care services provided by the Hospital.
Additions to the allowance for doubtful accounts vesult from the provision for bad debts.
Accounts written off as uncollectible are deducted from the allowance for doubtful accounts. ‘

The amount of the aflowance for doubtful accounts is based upon management’s assessment of
_historical and expected net collections, business and economic conditions, trends in Medicare
and Medicaid health care coverage and other collection indicators. See Note 2 for additional
information relative to third-party payor programs,

Invesiments

The Hospital has designated its investment portfolio as trading. Investment income or loss
(including realized gains and losses on investments, interest and dividendsy and the change in net

unrealized gains and losses are included in the excess of revenue over expenses unless the

income or loss is restricted by donor or law.

Investments in equity securities with readily determinable fair values and investments in debt
securities are measured at fair value (quoted marlet prices) in the accompanying consolidating
~ balance shéets. '
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Yale-New Haven Hospital, Inc. and Subsidiarics

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) -

1. Organization and Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

The Hospital participates in the Yale New Haven Health System Investment Trust (the “Trust”),
a unitized Delaware Investment Trust created to pool assets for investment by the Health System
‘non-profit entities. The Trust is comprised of two pools: the Long-Term Tnvestment Pool (“L-
TIP”) and the Intermediate-Term Investment Pool (“I-TIP”). Governance of the Trust is
performed by the Yale New Haven Health System Investment Committee. '

Under the terms of the investment management agreement with the Trust, withdrawals of the
Hospital’s investment in the L-TIP can be made annuvally by the Hospital on July 1. Amounts
* withdrawn are subject to a schedule that allows larger withdrawals with longer notice periods. As

- of September 30, 2012, the Hospital can withdraw 100% of its investment in the L-TIP on July 1,

2013, Withdrawals of the Hospital’s investment in the I-TIP in any amount can be made
quarter ly with 30 days advance notice. : :

Cel’tain alternative investments (non-traditional, not-readily-marketable assets) are structured
such that the Hospital holds limited partnership interests or pooled units aud are accounted for
under the equity method and utlhzmg Yale University’s (the “University”) reported net asset
value per unit for measurement of the units’ fair value for the Yale University investment.

Individual investment holdings within the alternative investments may, in turn, include
investments in both non-marketable and market-traded securities. Valuations of those
invesiments and, therefore, the Hospital’s holdings may be determined by -the investment

 manager or general partner. Fund of funds investments are primarily based on financial data

supplied by the underlying investee funds. Values may be based on historical cost, appraisals, or
other estimates that require varying degrees of judgment. The equity methed reflects net
contributions to the investee and an ownership share of realized and unrealized investment
income and-expenses. The investments may indirectly expose the Hospital to securities lending,
~ short sales of securities, and trading in futures and forwards contracts, options, swap contracts
and other derivative products. While these financial instruments may contain varying degrees of
risk, the Hospital’s risk with respect to such transactions is limited to its capital balance in each
~investment. The financial statements of the investees are audited annually by independent
auditors. The Hospital has made investorent commitments of approximately $80.9 million in
these alternative investments, of which approximately $77.4 million has been funded as of
September 30, 2012.
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Yale-New Haven Hospital, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

1. Organizaﬁbn aud'Signiﬁcant Accounting Policies (continue‘d)

The Trust has an agreement with the University’s invesiment office (the “Investment
Management Agreement™) which allows the University to manage a portion of the Trust’s

investments' as part of the University’s Endowment Pool (the “Pool”). Under the terms of the

agreement for the years ended September 30, 2012 and 2011, the Trust transferred $30.0 million

and $100.0 million, respectively, to the University in exch&nge tor uniis in the Pool. The Trust’s

interest in the Pool is reported at fair value based on the net asset value per units held. The Pool

invests in domestic equity, foreign equity, absolute Teturn, pr ivate equity, real estate, fixed
ircome and cash.

Under the tenns of the investment management agreement with the University, withdrawals of

the Trust’s investment in the Pool can be made annually by the Trust on July 1. For withdrawals
~of amounts less than $150.0 million or 75% of the Trust’s investment in the Pool, $100.0 million

or 50% of the Trust’s investiment in the Pool, and $50.0 million or 25% of the Trust’s investment

in the Pool, the advance notice period is set to a maximum of 180 days, 90 days, and 30 days,

respectively, prior to the University’s fiscal year ending June 30. For withdrawals greater thian
~ $150.0 million or more than 75% of the Trust’s investment in the Pool, the advance notice period
is set to a maximum of 270 days prior to the University’s fiscal year end of June 30.

- In March 2006, the Hospital entered into an arrangement with the University whereby the
University will manage certain Board-designated assets of the Hospital. These Board-designated
assets are commingled in the University’s endowment pool. At September 30, 2012 and 2011,
the cawrying value of assets managed by the University under this arrangement was

approximately $8.5 million and $8.6 million, respectively. Because of the limitations on their -

use, the assefs are separately classified from assets invested under the Investment Management
Agreement. :

In 2011, the investment management agreement between the Trust and the University was

modified to allow the Trust to obtain a cash advance, up to a maximum of $75 million, on a
monthly basis. For these advances interest of U.S. Prime rate, plus two percent (2%) will be paid
by the Trust. Repayments on the advances are made by the Trust by way of redemptions of a
sufficient number of Trust’s units in the Endowment using the June 30th unit valuation. No
advances have been requested or taken by the Trust.

Short-term investments represent those securities that are available for the Hospital’s operations and
can be converted to cash within one year.
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Yale-New Haven Hospital, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

1. Organization and Signiﬁcant Accounting Policies (continued)

Inventories

Tnventories are stated at the lower of cost or market. The Hospital values its inventories using the
first-in, first-out method with the exception of pharmacy inventories, which are valued at average

cost.

Assets Limited as to Use

Assets so classified represent assets held by trustees under indenture agreements, beneficial inferest

in perpetual trusts and designated assets set aside by the Board of Tiustees for future capital
improvements and other Board approved uses. The Board of Trustees retains confrol and, at its
discretion, may use for other purposes assets limited as to use for plant improvements and expansion.
Amounts required to meet current liabilities are reported as current assets. These funds primarily
consist of U.S. government securities, mutual funds, and money market funds.-

Perpétual Trusis

The Hospital is the beneficiary of certain perpetual trusts held and administered by others. The
present values of the estimated future cash receipfs, which are measured based on the fair value
of the assets held by the trust, are recognized as assets and contribution revenues at the dates the

trusts are established. Distributions from the trusts related to earnings and investment income are-

recorded as contributions and the carrying value of the assets is adjusted for changes in the fair
- value. '

Interest Rate Swap Agreements

The Hospital utilizes interest rate swap agreements to reduce risks associated with changes in
interest rates. luterest rate swap agreements are reported at fair value. The Hospital is exposed to
credit loss in the event of non-performance by the counterparties to its interest rate swap
agreements. The Hospital is also exposed to the risk that the swap receipts may not offset its
variable rate debt service. To the extent these variable rate payments do not equal variable
interest payments on the bonds, there will be a net loss or net benefit to the Hospital.

i
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Yale-New Haven Hospifal, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)‘

1. Organizziﬁon and Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Benefits and Insurancé

The Hospital is effectively self-insured- for medical, hospitalization, and prescription drug

benefits provided to employees. The Hospital makes annual contributions to the YNHHSC

Voluntary Employee Beneficiary Association (“VEBA™) plan to fund medical, dental,

hospitalization, group term life insurance and prescription drug benefits. Annually, premiums are

set to reflect the estimated cost of benefits. During the years ended September 30, 2012 and

2011, the Hospital made actuarially determined contributions, net of premium adjustments, to the
VEBA plan of approximately $102.4 million and $89.3 million, respectively.

The Hospital is self-insured for workers’ compensation claims. Estimated amounts are accrued

for claims, including claims incurred but not reported (“IBNR™) and are based on Hospital-
specific experience. At September 30, 2012 and 2011, the estimated discounted liabilities for
self-insured workers’ compensation claims and IBNR aggregated approximately $13.3 million,
“discounted at 3.0%, and $13.4 million, discounted at 3.5%, respectively, and are included in
accrued expenses in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. '

Professional Liability Insurance

The Hospital participates in the YNHHSC coordinated professionél 1iai3ility program. Based on
the terms of the agreement with YNHHSC, the Hospital records the actuarially determined

liabilities.for IBNR professional and general liabilities and has recorded a deposit (asset) for

. liabilities transferred in the year ended September 30, 1998.
Property, Plant, and Equipment

Property, plant, and equipment purchased are carried at cost and those acquired by gifts and
bequests are carried at fair value established at date of contribution. The carrying amounts of
assets and the related accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts when such assets
are disposed of and any resulting gain or loss is included in income from operations.
Depreciation of property, plant, and equipment is computed by the straight-line method in
amounts sufficient to depreciate the cost of the assets over their estimated useful lives ranging
from 3 to 50 years. The cost of additions and improvements are capitalized and expenditures for
répairs and maintenance, including the cost of replacing miner items not considered substantial
enhancements, are expensed as incurred.
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Yale-New Haven Hospital, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continucd)

1. Organization and S'ignificant Accounting Policies (continued)

The Hospital and the Housing Authority of New Haven (“HANH”) have entered into an
agreement to swap parcels of land on the Legion/Howard/Sylvan/Ward block located in New
Haven, Comnecticut. As part of the key terms of the agreement, HANH has pledged an account
to the Hospital in the amount of $5.7 million. The pledged account was established at the time
the Hospital conveyed-the land to HANH in July 2010. In the event that HANH fails to meet
certain requirements of the agreement, including conveying its land parcel to the Hospital, the
Hospital has the right to withdraw from the pledged account in the amount of $5.2 million,
unless the pledged account is extended with an annual increase of approximately $180,000. As of

- September 30, 2012, no events have occurred that would require an increase to the pledged
account or that would require the Hospital to withdraw funds from the pledged account.

Goodwill

Goodwill is not amortized but instead tested at least annually for impairment or more frequently
when events. or changes in circumstances indicate that the assets might be impaired. This
impairment test is performed annvally at the reporting unit level. The Hospital evaluates
goodwill at the enfity level as management has determined that the Hospital’s operation
comprise a single reporting entity. Goodwill is considered to impaired if the carrying value of the

reporting unit, including goodwill, exceeds the reporting wnit’s fair value. Reporting unit fair .

value is estimateéd using both income (discounted cash flows) and market approaches.

The discounted cash flow approach requires the use of assumptions and judgments including
estimates of future cash flows and the selection of discount rates. The market approach relies on
comparisons to publicly traded stocks or to sales of similar companies. The Hospital has
determined that no goodwill impairment exists at September 30, 2012,

Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenue includes amounts which have been received that relate o future years.
Amounts will be reduced as revenue is earned.

Excess of Revenue Over Expenses
In the accompanying statements of operations and changes in net assets, excess of revenue over

expenses is the performance indicator. Peripheral or incidental transactions are included in
excess of revenue over expenses. Those gains and losses deemed by management to be closely
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Yale-New Haven Hospital, Inc. and Subsidiaries

“Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

1. Organiiaﬁon and Signiﬁcani Accounting Policies (continued)

related to ongoing operatious are included in other revenue; other gains and losses are classified
as non-operating gains and losses. Included in non-operating gains and losses are expenses
incurred related to the acqulsltlon of the Saint Raphael

Consistent with industry practice, contributions of, or restricted to, property, plant, and
equipment, transfers of assets to and from affiliates for other than goods and services, and
pension and other post-retirement liability adjustments are excluded from the performance
indicator but are included in the changes in net assets.

Income Taxes

The Hospital is a not-fm-pmﬁt corpcnatmn as descubed in Section 501(0)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code (the “Code”), and is exempt from Federal income taxes on related income
pursuant to Section 501(a) of the Code. The Hospital also is exempt from state income tax.

| Operaﬁug Exljenées

The Hospital records amounts received from the University, area htospitals and other local
healthcare providers for costs incurred on behalf of those organizations as reductions to
expenses. For the years ended September 30, 2012 and 2011, the Hospital recorded
approximately $52.9 million as reductions to expenses. :

Deferred Financing Costs

The Hospital capitalizes costs incurred in connection with the issuance of long-term debt and
amortizes these costs over the life of the respective obligations using the effective interest
- method. : g

Impairment of Assets

The Hospital reviews property, equipment and intangible assets for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the assets may not be

recoverable. If such impairment indicators are present, the Hospltal recognizes a loss on the basis
of Whether these amounts are fully recoverable.
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Yale-N\eW' Haven Hospital, Inc. and Subsidiarics

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Cohtinued)

. 1. Organization and Signiﬁcént Agéountingf Policies (eontinued)
Change in Accounting Prineiple .
In August 2010, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB™) issued ASU 2010-24,

Presentation of Insyrance "Claims and Related Insurance Recoveries, which provides
clarification to companies in the health care industry on the accounting for and presentation of

professional and similar contingent liabilities. Under the new guidance, these liabilities should
not be presented net of insurance recoveries and an insurance recovery receivable should be

recognized on the same basis as the liabilities, subject to the need for a valuation allowance for
uncellectible accounts. The new guidance became effective for the Hospital as of October 1,
2011. The Hospital elected to retrospectively adopt the guidance as of October 1, 2010. The
adoption resulted in an increase to current assets and liabifities of approximately $13.5 million
and an increase to long-term assets and liabilities of approximately $50.1 million as of
September 30, 2011. The adoption did not affect the Hospital’s financial condition, net results of
operations, or cash flows. '

New Accounting Pronouncements

* In July 2011, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update No. 2011-07, “Presentation and

Disclosure of Patient Service Revenue, Provision for Bad Debts, and the Allowance for Doubtful

Accounts for Certain Health Care Entities” (“ASU 2011-07"). Under ASU 2011-07, provision -

for bad debis related to patient service revenue will be presented as a deduction from patient
. service revenue (net of contractual allowances and discounis) on the statement of operations with
enhanced fooinote disclosure on the policies for recognizing revenue and assessing bad debts.
The Hospital will adopt the presentation changes to the statement of operations for periods
beginning after December 15, 2011. -

In August 2010, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) 2010-23, Measuring
Charity Care for Disclosure. The new guidance requires that the level of charity care provided
be presented based on the direct and indirect costs of the charity services provided. Separate
disclosure of the amount of any cash reimbuisements received for providing charity care must
also be disclosed. The new disclosure requirements became effective for the Hospital on
October 1, 2011 and are included in the accompanying consolidated financial statements for all
pericds presented.
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Yale-New Haven Hospital, Inc. and Subsidiarics

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

1. Organization and Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Reclassifications -

Certain reclassifications have been made to the year ended September 30, 2011 balances
previously reported in the balance sheets in order to conform with the year ended September 30,

2012 presentation.

2. Accounis Receivable for Services to Patients and Net Patient Service Revenue

The Hospital has agreements with third-party payors that provide for payments to the Hospital at

amounts different from its established rates. The difference is accounted for as allowances.
Payment arrangements include prospectively determined rates per discharge, reimbursed costs,
fee-for-service, discounted charges and per diem payments. Net patient service revenue is
affected by the State of Connecticut Disproportionate Share program, includes premium revenue
and is reported at the estimated net realizable amounts due from patients, third-party payors and
others for services rendered and includes estimated retroactive revenue adjustments due to future
audits, reviews and investigations. Retroactive adjustments are considered in the recognition of

revenue on an estimated basis in the period the related services are rendered and such amounts
are adjusted in fuiure periods as adjustments become known or as years arc no longer subject to
~ such audits, reviews and investigations.

‘Third-party payor receivables included in other receivables were $28.4 million and $31.1 million
at September 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively. Third-party payor receivables included in other
long-term assets were $16.7 million and $12.3 million at September 30, 2012 and 2011,
~respectively. Third-party payor liabilities included in other current liabilitics were $2.8 1111111011
and $1.3 million at September 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively. Third-party payor liabilities
included in other long-term liabilities were $28.6 million and $28.3 million at September 30,
2012 and 2011 respectively.

~ The Hospital has established estimates based on information presently available, of amounts due

- to or from Medicare, Medicaid and third-party payors for adjustments fo current and prior year
payment rates, based on industry-wide and Hospltal-spemﬁc data Such amounts are included in
the accompanying balance sheets.

Additionally, certain payors® payment rates for various years have been appealed by the

Hospital. If the appeals are successful, additional income applicable to those years.might be
reahzed
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Yale-New Haﬁren Hospital, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

" 2. Accounts Receivable for Services to Patients and Net Patient Service .Revenue i
~ (continued) - S -

Revenue from Medicare and Medicaid programs accounted for approximately 27% and 14%,
respectively, of the Hospital’s net patient service revenue for the year ended September 30, 2012
-and approximately 29% and 14%, respectively, of the Hospital’s net patient service revenue for
the year ended September 30, 2011. Inpatient discharges relating to Medicare and Medicaid
programs accounted for approximately 30% and 29%, respectively, for the year ended
September 30, 2012 and approximately 31% and 28%, respectively, for the year ended
September 30, 2011. Laws and regulations governing the Medicare and Medicaid programs are
extremely complex and are subject to interpretation. As a result, there is at least a reasonable
possibility that recorded estimates will change by material amounts in the near term.

The Hospital believes that it is in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations and is not
aware of any pending or threatened investigations involving allegations of potential wrongdoing
except as disclosed in Note 10. Compliance with such laws and regulations can be subject to
future government review and interpretation, as well as significant regulatory action including
fines, penalties, and exclusion from the Medicare and Medicaid programs. Changes in the
Medicare and Medicaid programs and the reduction of funding levels could have an adverse
" impact on the Hospital. Cost reports for the Hospital, which serve as the basis for final settlement
with government payors, have been settled by final settlement through 2006 for Medicare and
1995 for Medicaid. Other years remain open for settlement.

- The significant concenirations of accounts receivable for services to patients include 28% from
Medicare, 11% from Medicaid, and 61% from non-governmental payors at September 30, 2012
and 30% from Medicare, 8% from Medicaid, and 62% fiom non-governmental payors at
September 30, 2011. '

_ Net patient service revenue is comprised of the following for the years ended September 30,
2012 and 2011 (in thousands):

2012 2011
Gross revenue from patients T 8 5,740,304 § 4,443,296
Deductions: | -
Contractual allewances ' ' - 3,948,050 2,939,040
Charity and free care (at charges) 78,983 61,299

Net patient service revenue § 1,713,271  $ 1,442,057
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Yale-New Haven Hospital, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

"3. Uncompensated Care and Community Benefit Expense

The Hospital’s commitment to community service is evidenced by services provided to the poor
and benefits provided to the broader community. Services provided to the poor include services
provided to persons who cannot afford healthcare because of madequate resources and/or who
are uninsured or undermsured ‘

The Hospital makes available free care programs for qualifying patients. In accordance with the

established policies of the Hospital, during the registration, billing and collection process a-

patient’s eligibility for fiee care funds is determined. For patients who were determined by the

. Hospital to have the ability to pay but did not, the uneollected amounts are classified as bad debt
expense. For patients who do not avail themselves of any fice care program and whose ability to

pay cannot be determined by the Hospltal care given but not paid fo1 is cla351ﬁed as charity
care.

Together, charity care and bad debt expense represent uncompensated care. The estimated cost
- of total uncompensated care is approximately $69.8 million and $55.9 million for the years

ended September 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively. The estimated cost of uncompensated care is

based on the ratio of cost to charges, as deternined by claims activity.

The estimated cost of charity care provided was $47.8 million and $32.3 million for the yeals
ended September 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively. The estimated cost of charity care is based on
the ratio of cost to charges. The allocatlon between bad debt and charity care is determined based
on management's analysis on the previous 12 months of hospital data, This analysis calculates

the actual percentage of accounts writlen off or designated as bad debt versus charity care while

taking into account the total costs incurred by the hospital for each account analyzed. -

For the vears ended September 30, 2012 and 2011 bad debt expense, at charges; was $32.6
million and $26.4 million, respectively. The bad debt expense is multiplied by the ratio of cost to
charges for purposes of inclusion in the total uncompensated care amount identified above.

The Connecticut Disproportionate Share Hospital Program (“CDSHP*) was established to

provide funds to hospitals for the provision of uncompensated care and is funded, in part, by a
1% assessment on hospital net inpatient service revenue. During the vears ended September 30,
2012 and 2011, the Hospital received $73.2 million and $33.0 million, respectively, in CDSHP
distributions, of which approximately $51.9 million and $23.0 million was related to charity
carc. The Hospital made payments into the CDSHP of $56.5 million and $14.1 million for the
years ended September 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively, for the 1% assessment.
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Yale-New Haven Hospital, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

3. Uncompensated Care and Community Benefit Expense (continued)

Additionally, the Hospital provides benefits for the broader community which includes services
provided to other needy populations that may not qualify as poor but need special services and
support. Benefits include the cost of health promotion and education of the general community,
interns and residents, health screenings, and medical research. The benefits are provided through
the community health centers, some of which service non-English speaking residents, disabled
children, and various community support groups. The Hospital voluntarily assists with the direct
funding of several City of New Haven programs, including an economic development program
and a youth initiative program. -

In addition to the quantifiable services defined above, the Hospital provides additional benefits to
the community through its advocacy of community service by employees. The Hospital’s
cmployees serve numerous organizations through board representation, membership in
associations and other related activities. The Hospital also solicits the assistance of other
healthcare professionals to provide their services at no charge through participation in various
community seminars and training programs. :

4, Invesiments and Assets Limited as to Use

The composition of investments, including investments held by the Trust, amounts on deposit
with trustee in debt service fund and assets limited as to use is set forth in the following table (in
thousands): ' o

2012 ) 2011

Money market funds ‘ § 156,663 $ 108,579
U.S. equity securiifes S - 28,378 11,113
1.8, equity securities —common collective trusts . - 6,331 - 33,319
International equity securities (a) 40,019 37,523
Fixed income: : .- .

U.S. government §7.329 41,719

U.S. government — common collective trusts ' 82,872 58,205

International government (b) : 43,236 31,704
Comimodities ' 676 1,010
Hedge funds: _ .

Absolute return (¢} 48,014 44,7383

Leng/short equity (d) 12,205 . 12,653
Real estate (2) 9.905 10,168
Interest in Yale University endowment pool (f) . 361,550 278,719
Perpetual trusts {(g) ’ ‘12,127 10,506
Total . § 889,905 5 680,401
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Yale-New Haven Hospital, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

4. Invesimenis and Assets Limited as to Use (continued)

{a} Investments with external international equity and bond manageis that are domiciled in the United

States. Investment managers may invest in American or Global Depository Receipts (ADR, GDR)

or in direct foreign secuu‘[les
(b) Tnvestments with' e*{ternal commodities futures manager.

{(c) Investment with external multl—stlategy fiind of funds manager investing in publicly traded equity
and credit holdings which may be long or short positions.

(d) Investment with an external long-short equity fund of funds manager with underlying portfolio
investments consisting of publicly traded equity positions.

{e) Investments with external direct real estate managets and fund of funds managers. Investment
vehicles include both closed end REITs and limifed partnerships.

() Yale Un1vers1ty Endowinent Pool maintains a diversified investment portfolio, through the use of
external investment managers operating in a variety of investment vehicles, including separate
accounts, limited partnerships and commingled funds. The pool combines an orientation to equity
investments with an allocation to non-traditional asset classes such as an absolute return, private
equ1ty, and real assets

{g) Investruents cons1st of several domesﬁc and international equity and fixed income mutual ﬁmds
REITs, commodities and money market funds. There is aIso an investment in a hedse fund of
funds.

The Hospital’s ownership percentage of the Trust was approximately 85.8% and 85.2% as of -

September 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively. The Hospital’s prorata portion of the Trust’s
investments are included above in the table

Included in assets limited as to use at September 30, 2012 are funds to be used for the various
renovations and expansion at the Hospital which was funded by the Series M bond (see Note 7).
These funds consisted of money market funds of approximately $13.3 million and $60.7 million
at September 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

5. Endowment
The Hospital’s endowment includes donor-restricted endowment funds. Net assets associated

with endowment funds are classified and reported based on the existence or absence of donor-
imposed restrictions. '
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5. Endowment (continued)

The Hospital has interpreted the Connecticut Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional

Funds Act (“CUPMIFA”) as requiring the preservation of the fair value of the original gifi as of

the gift date of the donor-restricted endowment funds absent explicit donor stipulations to the
contrary. As a result of this interpretation, the Hospital classifies as permanenily restricted net
assets (a) the original value of gifts donated to the permanent endowment, (b) the original value
of subsequent gifts to the permanent endowment, and (c) accumulations to the permanent
endowment related to the Hospital’s beneficial interest in perpetual trusis made in accordance
with the direction of the applicable donor gift instrument at the time of the accumulation is added
to the fund. The remaining portion of the donor-restricted endowment fund that is not classified
in permanently restricted net assets is classified as temporarily restricted net assets until those
amounts are appropriated for expenditure by the Hospital in a manner consistent with the
- standard of prudence prescribed by CUPMIFA. In accordance with CUPMIFA, the Hospital
considers the following factors in making a determination to appropriate or accumulate donor-
restricted endowment funds: (1) the duration and preservation of the fund; (2) the purposes of the
Hospital and the donor-restricted endowment fund; (3) general economic conditions; (4) the
-possible effect of inflation and deflation; (5) the expected total retum from income and the
appreciation of investments; (6) other resources of the Hospital; and (7) the 1nvestrnent and
: spendmg policies of the Hospital. :

Changes in endowment net assets f01 the year ended September 30, 2012 are as follows (in
* thousands):
Temporarily P_‘ermanen-tly

_ Restricted Restricted Total

Endowment net assets, beginning of year . $ 37,338 5 25523 5 62,861
Investiment return: ' '

Tnvestment income ' ' 249 - 249

Net appreciation (realized and umeahzed) 6,213 ~- 6,213
Total investment retuin 6,462 - - 8,462
Contributions o 2 : - 2
Appropriation of endowment assets for ' o

expenditure ‘ (7,124) - - (7.124)

Other changes: '

Change in value of beneficial interest trusts — 1,221 1,221
Endowment net assets, end of year 5 36,678 § 26,744 $ 03,422
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5. Endowment (continued)

Changes in endowment net assets for the year ended September 30, 2011 are as follows (111
thousands)

Tempovarily Pel'rﬁanently

Restricted Restricted Total
Endowment net assets, beginning of year $ 41,829 $ 26,256 % 68,085
Investment return: ‘ : ,
Investment income ' - 443 B 443
Net appreciation (realized and unrealized) . 3,104 — - 3,104
Total investment return N 3,547 — 3,547
Contributions ' 2 _ - 2
Appropriation of endowment assets fm -
expenditure . (8,040) - (8,040)
Other changes: o ‘ A _
_Change in value of beneficial interest trusts . — - (733) (733)
BEndowment net assets, end of year § 37,338 3 25,523 $ 62,861
September 30
2012 2011

_ ‘ (in thousands)
The portion of perpetual endowment fiunds subject to a time
restriction under CUPMIFA: -

Without purpose restrictions . $ 8297 § 8478
With purpose restrictions 28,381 28,860
Total endowment funds classified as temporarily restricted net assets § 36,078 § 37,338

Return Objectives and Risk Parameters

The Hospital has adopted investment and- spending policies for endowed assets that attempt to
provide a predictable stream of funding to programs supported by its endowment. Endowment
assets include those assets of donor-restricted funds that the organization must hold in perpetuity.

Under this policy, as approved by the Board of Trustees, the endowment assets are invested in a
manner that is intended to produce results that over time provide a rate of return that meets the
spending policy objectives adjusted for inflation. Actual returns in any given year may vary from
this amount. ‘
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" 5. Endowment (continued)

Strategies Employed for Achieving Objectives

To satisfy its long-term rate of return objectives, the Hospital refies on a total return strategy in
which investment returns are achieved through both capital appreciation (realized and
unrealized) and current yield (interest and dividends). The Hospital targets a diversitied asset
allocation that places a greater emphasis on equity-based investments to achieve its long-term
return objectives within prudent risk constraints.

Spending Policy and How the Investment Objeciives Relate to Spending Policy

The Hospital has a pohcy of appropuatmg for distribution each year based on a combination of

the weighted average of the prior year spending adjusted for inflation and the amount that would

have been spent using a predetermined percentage of the current market value of the endowment
fund. In- establishing this policy, the Hospital considered the long-term e‘{pected return on iis
-endowment.

6. Temporarily and Permanently Restricted Net Assets

Temporarily restricted net assets are available for the following purposes (in thousands):

September 30

2012 2011

Plant improvement and expansion $ 568 % 441
Specific hospital operations, teachmg, research, free o

care, and uammg : , : 45,455 43,506

$ 46,026  § 43,947

Permanently restricted net assets of approximately $26.7 million and $25.5 million at
September 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively, consist of donor restricted endowment principal and
beneficial interests in perpetual trusts. The income generated from permanently restricted funds
is expendable for purposes designated by donors, including research, free care, health care, and
other services.
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7. Debt

A summary of debt is as follows (in thousands):

~ September 30
: 2012 2011

Hospital revenue bonds financed with the State of Connecticut
- Health and Educational Facilities Authority (“CHEFA”™): A :

Series J (5.12% effective interest rate) $ 159,110 § 164,295

Series K (3.11% effective interest rate) ~ - 94955 98,305

Series L (3.68% effective interest rate) ' 107,460 107,460

Series M (5.24% effective interestrate) o 100,175 101,825
Banl line of credit payable 187,000 -
Bank line of credit payable 25,000 -
Capital lease obligation — November 2610 53,827 - 55309
Capital lease obligation — December 2010 _ 53,702 55,082
Bank note payable (0.08% effective interest rate) C o 40,800 40,000

: : 821,229 622276

Add: preminm . 6,467 7,322
Less: curtent poriion : ' (100,490) (13,047

$ 727206 $ 616,551

In September 2006, the Hospital issued Series J revenue bonds totaling approximately $280.9
million. The proceeds, including a premium of approximately $10.1 million, were used to
finance a portion of the construction costs of the Cancer Hospital, and to pay for bond issuance
costs. The bond premium was being amortized and was included in capitalized interest through
March 2010. As of the opening of the Cancer Hospital, the bond premivm was amortized in the
statement of opexrations. The Series J revenue bonds were issued in three sub-series as follows:
(1) Series J-1, approximately $174.4 million, consisting of approximately $83.7 million of serial
bonds and approximately $90.7 million in term bonds bearing interest at 5% per annum; (2)
Series J-2, approximately $40.0 miltion of revenue bonds bearing interest at 3.65% at September
30, 2007; (3) Series J-3, approximately $66.5 million of revenue bonds bearing interest 3.70% at

- September 30, 2007. Series J-2 and J-3 revenue bonds were refunded during the year ended

September 30, 2008 by the issuance of Series L revenue bonds.

In May 2008, the Hospital issued Series K and Series I. revenue bonds totaling approximately
$216.6 million. The Series K revenue bonds were issued as Variable Rate Demand Bonds
(“VRDBs”) in two sub-series, Series K-1 and K-2, approximately $54.6 million each, with an
effective rate of 1.1% in 2011 and 2010. The proceeds from the Series K issuance were-used to
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7. Debt (continued)

refund the Series I revenue bonds. The Series L revenue bonds were issued as VRDBs in two
sub-series, Series L-1 and L-2, approximately $53.7 million each, with an effective rate of 0.8%
in 2012 and 2011. The proceeds from the Series L issuance were used to refund the Series J-2
and J-3 revenue bonds. '

Both the Series K and Series L. VRIDBs are required to be supported by léttel Of credit facilities

(“LOCS”) which have been executed with two financial institutions. These LOCs are scheduled

to expire on May 2, 2016 and May 14, 2016.

In December 2010, the Hospital issued Series M revenue bonds totaling approximately $104.4
million. The proceeds, including a premium of approximately $1.0 million, are being used to
finance costs for the expansion and renovations to the Adult Emergency Department, the
purchase and installation of machinery and equipment, various rerovations and improvements to
the Hospital’s infiastructure, and to pay for bond issuance costs. The bond premium is being
amortized and is included in capitalized interest. The Series M revenue bonds were issued as one
series consisting of approximately $33.9 million of serial bonds bearing interest at 4.69%, and
approximately $17.6 million, $17.8 million, and $35.1 million in term bonds bealmg 111telest at
5.25%, 3.75%, and 5.50%, respectlvely, per annum.

On August 30, 2011, the Hospital entered into a loan agreement with Bank of America, N.A. (the
© “Bank’™) for $40.0 million. The Hospital agreed to repay the Bank the aggregate principal amount
in five equal ammual payments of $8.0 million, beginning on October 1, 2012, The loan bears
interest at a rate equal to LIBOR plus 0.50% per annum with an option fo convert to a fixed rate
loan upen formal notification to the Bank, which may include a portion of or the total
outstanding loan balance at the tIme notification is made

In July 2012, the Hospital eniered into a line of credit with the Bank in the amount of $27.0
million which was subsequently increased to $187.0 million upon the execution of the HSR asset
purchase agreement. In July 2012, the Hospital drew the unconditional loan of $27.0 million to

outfit a new facility. In September 2012, the Hospital drew the remaining $160.0-million to fund

the acquisition of HSR. The line of credit requires the Hospital to repay the Bank in 24 equal
monthly installments commencing on August 1, 2013. The full amount of the remaining balance
is due on July 12, 2015. This obligation bears interest at a rate equal to LIBOR plus 0.45% per
annum.
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7. Debt (continued)

In Septembel 2012, the Hospital drew on its $50.0 million line of credit with the .S, Bank,

established in January 2012, in the amount of $25.0 million. The U S. Bank line of credit
requires repayment of the aggregate principal amount on the 364™ day subsequent to the
advance. This obligation bears interest at a rate equal to LIBOR plus 0.50% per annum.

The terms of the various financing arrangements between CHEFA and the Hospital, the financial
institutions providing the LOCs and the Hospital, and the Bank and the Hospital provide for
financial covenants regarding the Hospital’s debt service coverage ratio, liquidity ratio, and debt
to capitalization ratio, among others. As of September 30, 2012 and 2011, the Hospital was in
compliance with these covenants.

Sinking fund installment amounts are to be made in accordance with the Series J, K, L, and M
financing agreements. Required monthly payments on the revenue bonds by the Hospital to a
trustee are in amounts sufficient to provide for the payments of principal, interest, and sinking
fund installments, in accordance w1th the terms of the agreements, and certain other annual costs
of CHEFA. '

Scheduled principal payments on all debt, including capital Iease obligations, are as follows (in

.- thousands):
Capital
Lease
Debt - Obligations
2013 .5 45198 § 58,757
2014 o 204,512 4,647
2015 ' 19,445 4.821
2016 ) ‘ _ _ 19,945 4.879
2007 _ 20,425 4. 879.
Thereafter - 404,175 63,810
. ‘ $ 713,700 141,793
Less inferest o . (34,264)
Total capital lease obligation : : $ 107,529 -

Capitalized interest at September 30, 2012 and 2011 totaled $26.9 million and $24.9 million,
respectively.
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7. Debt (continued) |

The Hospital has entered into interest rate swap agreements with financial institutions related to
the Hospital’s Series K and Series L. debt, and future obligations. The Series K and Series L
swaps were carried over as part of the refunding of the Series I and Series J debt. On September
20, 2012, the Hospital entered into a Forward Starting Interest Rate swap, a LIBOR Swap Rate
Lock and a SIFMA Rate Lock swap with two different counterparties. The agreements require
the Hospital to pay a fixed rate and receive a floating rate based on LIBOR or SIFMA. The
change in market value, as well as the net interest paid or received under the swap agreement, for
the Series J/Series L swap has been capitalized as part of the interest costs related to construction
of the Cancer Hospital until construction was complete. Once the Cancer Hospital became
- operational these amounts were recorded in the statements of operations.

The swap agreements fix the interest rate at a level viewed as desirable by the Hospital. Such
agreements expose the Hospital to credit risk in the event of non-performance by the
- counterparties, some of which is collateralized. At September 30, 2012 and 2011, the fair value
of all swap agreements based on current interest rates was approximately $39.3 million and
- $31.9 million, respectively, representing a payable to the counterparties (recorded in other long-
term liabilities). : :

For the Series K swap, there was an unfavorable change in fair value of approximately $0.9
million for the years ended September 30, 2012 and 2011 which was recorded in the excess of
revenue over expenses. As a result of the unfavorable change in market value of the Series K
swap, $4.6 million and $4.2 million has been collateralized by the Hospital and is being held by
the financial institution as of September 30, 2012 and 2011, as required by the swap agreement.

For the Series L swaps, there was an unfavorable change in fair value of approximately $2.0
million and $3.5 million for the years ended September 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively, which
was recorded in excess of revenue over expenses. No collateral was required under the Series L.
swap agreement for the years ended Septembel 30,2012 and 2011.

For the Forward Starting Interest Rate swap, the LIBOR Swap Rate Lock and the SIFMA Rate
Lock swaps, there was an unfavorable change in fair value of $1.0 million, $1.9 miilion, and $1.6
.million, respectively, for the year ended September 30, 2012, which was recorded in excess of
revenue over expenses.
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7. Debt (continued)
The following table summarizes the Hospital’s interest rate swap agreements (in thousands):

Notional Amount at

Expiration  Hospital Hospital September 30,
Swap Type Date Receives. _Pays 2012 201¢%
Series K —Fixed to Floating ~ July 1, 2025 LIBOR ~ 3.11% & 63,977 $ 66,269
Series L - Fixed to Floating July 1,2036 LIBOR 3.68% 44,505 44,505
Forward Starting Interest Rate - 67% of
Swap July 1,2053 LIBOR 2.84% 50,000 . -
LIBOR Swap Rate Lock July 1,2043 — LIBOR 273% 92,000 -

SIFMA Rate Lock - July 1,2048 SIFMA 2.66% 150,000 —
: ’ : $ 300,482 $ 110,774

“For the years ‘ended September 30, 2012 and 2011, the Hospital paid approximately $16.5
million and $15.8 million, respectively, for interest related to long-term debt, exclusive of the
swap agreements. ' '

Arbitrage rules apply for Series J-1 and Series M tax-exempt debt. The rules require that, in
specified circumstances, earnings from the invesiment of fax-exempt bond proceeds which
exceed the yield on the bonds must be remitted to the Federal government.

The Hospital has entered into a contract to lease space in a building adjacent to the Hospital. The’
~ Hospital’s réntal obligation commenced December 2009. This lease has a term of twenty years
from the commencement date with the option to extend the lease for four successive terms of ten
years. Rental payments will increase by 5% every five years. The Hospital is also subject to
additional rent for its share of expenses, as defined in the contract. The Hospital has the option to
purchase the property at the end of the fifth, tenth, or twenticth years or at the end of each of the
first three ten-year extension periods. ‘

. The Hospital has entered into an agreement to lease space in a building lecated at 2 Howe Street,
New Haven, Connecticut. The Hospital’s rental obligation commenced during the first quarter of
fiscal 2010. The Hospital will lease these spaces for three years after which the Hospital has the
obligation to purchase the property for approximately $53.6 million.

Assets recorded under the capital lease obligations totaled $115.1 million as of September 30, -

2012 and 2011. Accumulated depreciation for the capital lease obligations totaled $8.0 million
and $4.2 million at September 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively.
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8. Pensions and Postretirement Benefits

 The Hospltal has qualificd and non-qualified defined benefit pension plans covering substantta[ly
all employees and executives. The benefits provided are based on age, years of service and
compensation. The Hospital’s policy is to fund the pension benefits with at least the minimum
amounts required by the Employee Retirement Income Secm ity Act of 1974,

The employees formerly employed by SRHS will receive credit for such past service solely for
purposes of determining such employee’s eligibility to participate in the qualified defined benefit
pension plan and vesting under this plan, bui not for purposes of estabhshlng an -opening
accumulatmn account or for any other pu1 pose undel this plan.

The Hospital also sponsors a contributory 403(b) plan, covering substantiaily all employees. The -

Hospital’s contributions for the 403(b) plan are determined based on employee contributions and
years of service. The Hospital contributed approximately $11.9 million and $10.9 million for the
years ended September 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively. The Hospital maintains a Section 457
non-qualified deferred compensation plan. Centributions are made on a pre-tax basis. The
balances recorded at September 30, 2012 and 2011 in other assets and other long-term liabilities
were $21.7 million and $18.4 million, respectively. The employees founer[y employed by SRIIS
shall receive credit for such past service solely for purposes of determining such employee’s
eligibility to participate in the contributory 403(b) plan and vesting under this plan but not for
any other purpose undel th1s plan.

The Hospital also provides certain health care and life insurance benefits upon retirement fo
substantially all its employees. The Hospital’s policy is to fund these annual costs as they are
incurred from the general assets of the Hospital. The estimatéd cost of these postretirement
benefits is actuarially determined and accrued over the employees service pertods

Included in varestricied net assets at September 30, 2012 and 2011 are the follawmg amounts

that have not yet been recognized in net periedic pension cost: unrecognized prior service credit
of $0.1 million and $0.3 million, respectively, and unrecognized actuarial losses of $183.6
million and $129.7 million, respectively. The prior service credit and actuarial loss included in
unrestricted net assets and expected to be recognized in net periodic pension cost duri ing the year
ending Septembel 30, 2013 are $0.6 million and $9.6 million, respectively.
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8. Pensions and Postretirement Benefits '(continued)

' The following table sets forth the change in benefit obligation, change in plan assets, and the
reconciliation of underfinded status of the Hospital’s defi ned benefit plans as of September 30,

2012 and 2011 (in thousands):

Change in benefit abligation:
Benefit obligation at prior measureinent date
Service cost
Interest cost
Actirarial loss
Benefits paid )
Benefit obligation af current measurement date

Change in plan assets:
Fair value of assets at prior measurement dats
Actual return on plan assets
Employer contr 1but10ns
Berefits paid
Fair value of assets at current measurement date
Accrued benefit cost

Benefit Obligation and Assumptions '

Defined Benefit

Postretirement
Pension Plans Benefits Plan
2012 2011 2012 2011
$ 405,642 $ 374050 8 63,687 $ 58,103
22,106 18,385 3,442 3,002
18,803 17,407 3,183 3,014
53,111 13,409 10,588 818
(24,189) (17,609 1,270 (1,340)
475,473 405,642 79,630 63,687
225,895 228,281 - -
25,511 2,338 - -
44,735 12,885 1,270 1,340
(24,189 (17,609} (1,270) (1,340)
271,952 225,895 — -
$(203,521) § (179,747) § (79,630) $ (63,687)

The prOJected benefit obhgauon accumulated benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets for
the defined benefit plans were as follows (in thousands)

Projected benefit obligation
Accumulated benefit obligation
Fair value of plan assets

September 30
2012 2011
(475473) § (405,642)
(398,939 (342,050)
271,952 225,895
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At September 30, 2012 and 2011, the underfunded status of the qualified defined benefit pension
plan was approximately $154.1 million and $136.8 million, respectively, and that of the non-
qualified defined benefit pension plan was approximately $49.4 million and $43.0 million,
respectively. Addiﬁdnally, there are assets limifed as to use of approximately $64.7 million and
$58.4 million, which are available to satisfy the obligations of the non-qualified deﬁned benefit
pension plan at Septembel 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

‘The net periodic benefit cost for the years ended September 30, 2012 and 2011 is as follows (in -

thousands:

Pefined Benefii Postretiremnent
Pension Plans Benefits Plan

2012 2011 2012 2011

Service cost

Interest cost

Expected return on plan assets
Amortization of prior service cost
Recognized net actuarial loss

$ 22,166 $ 18385 § 3442 F 3,092

18,803 17,407 3,183 3,014 -
20,521y (19,350) - -
(462) (462) 259 264
4,738 2,711 - —

Net periodic benefit cost

$ 24,664 $ 18,691 $ 6884 $ 6370

Weighied-average assumptions and dates used to determine beneﬁt obhgations at September 30,

2012 and 2011 are as follows:

Driscount rate for determining benefit
obligations at year-end, qualified plan

Discount rate for determining benefit
obligations at year end, non-qualified
plan

Rate of compensation increase

\

Defined Benefit _ Postretirement
Pension Plans Benefits Plan
2012 2011 - 2012 - 201%
3.60% 4.80% 4,00% 5.10%
4.00 5.10 — . -

5.00 5.00 — - -

36




Yale-New Haven Hospital, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements {continued)

8. Pensions and Postretirement Benefits (cOnﬁnued)

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine net periodic benefit cost for the years ended
September 30, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

Defined Benefit Postretirement
Pension Plans Benefits Plan
2012 2011 2012 2011
" Discount rate for determining net pericdic T
benefit cost at year-end, guatified plan 4.30% 4.80% 510%  530%
Discount rate for determining net periodic ' o ' '
benefit cost at year end, non-qualified plan 510 530 — C=
Expected rate of return on plan assets . 7.75 7.75 — =
Rate of compensation increase 5.00 5.00 - —

For measurement purposes relating to the postretirement benefits plan, a 7.0% and 8.0% annual

rate of increase in the per capita cost of covered health care benefits was assumed for fiscal 2012.

and fiscal 2011, respectively. Rates are assumed to decline to 4.0% through fiscal 2014.

Assumed health care cost trend rate assuihptions have a significant effect on the amounts
reported. A 1% change in the assumed healthcare cost trend rate would have the following
eftects (in thousands):

1% 1%
Increase  Decrease
Effect on total of service and interest cost components $ 13 s (15
Effect on postretivement benefit obligation. ' 142 (144)
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8. Pensions and Postretirement Benefits (conﬁnued)

The asset allocation of the Hospital’s qﬁali:ﬁed pension plan at September 30, 2012 and 2011 was

as follows:
Target ~  Percentage of
Allocation " Plan Assets

Asset Category 2013 2012 2011
Equity securities S 36% 42% 4%
Debt securities e : 26 27 28
Real assets : . 14 11 : 12
All other assets _ 24 20 19
Total : 100% 100% 100%4.

The pension assets carried at fair value, as of September 30, 2012 and 2011 are classified in the
following tables (see Footnote 14 for description) (in thousands):

September 30,2012
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

- Money market fimds : $ 18,306 $ - 5 $ 18,306 °

U.S. equity securities 53,150 - - 53,150
International equity securifies ' 58,819 - - 58,819
" Fixed income:
U.S. government 53,392 - - 53,392
International government 12,985 - 0,425 - 19.410
‘Commodities 5,469 - 6,127 11,596
Private Equity : — — 509 509
Hedze funds: B - C
Absolute return ‘ - 32,115 - 32,115
Tong/short equity - 7,871 - 7,871
Real estate — — 16,784 16,784
Total investinents $ 202,121 8§ 46411 § 23420 3 271,952
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3. Pensions and Postretirement Benefits (continued) :

. September 30,2011

vel2 Level 3 Total

Level 1 Le

Money market funds - % 4673 % - 3 — $ 4673
U.S. equity securities 47,070 . - - 47,070
International equity securities - 45,118 — - 45,118
Fixed income: )

U.S. government . - 51,551 - — 51,551

Inter natlona] Cfovernment . ‘ 13,260 — = 13,260
Commodities 4,923 — 5,745 10,668
Private Equity : = - 331 331
Hedge funds: _

Absolute return ’ _ _ — 29,362 - 20,362

Long/short equity — 8,235 I 8,235
Real estate - - 15,627 15,627
Total investments $§ 166,595 § 37597 § 21,703 § 225895

The following is a 1011f01wa1d of the pension assets classified as level 3 of the valuation

hlelzuchy as described in Note 15;

Private ~ Real

Commodifies  Equity Estaie Total

Fair value at September 30, 2010 3 5852 % — % 14,599 3 20451
2011 Realized and unrealized gains and losses : 686 — 3,049 3,735
2011 Purchases, sales, transfers, issuances and

settlements, net ) (793) 331 (2,021) (2,483)
Fair value at September 30, 2011 5,745 331 15,627 21,703
2012 Realized and unrealized gains and losses 18 (57) 206 167
2012 Purchases, sales, transfers, issuances and 7

settlements, net 364 235 951 - 1,550
Fair value at September 30, 2012 : b 0,127 3 509 8§ 16,784 § 23,420

The Hospital’s investment strategy for its pension assets balances the liquidity needs of the
pension plan with the long-term return goals necessary to satisfy future pension obligations. The
target asset allocation seeks to capture the equity premium granted by the capltal markets over
the long-term, while ensuring security of principal to meet near-term expenses and obligations

through the fixed income allocation. The allocation of the investment pool to various sectors of -
the markets is designed to reduce volatility in the portfolio. The Hospital’s pension portfolio
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8. Pensions and Postretirement Benefits (continued)

return assumption of 7.75% is based on the targeted weighted-average return of comparative
market indices for the asset classes represented in the portfolio and discounted for pension
expenses. The actual return on assets of the pension plan for the years ended September 30, 2012
and 2011 was 11.1% and 2.7 %, respectively.

The future cash flows of the Hospital relative to refirement benefits are expected to be as follows
(in thousands): :

Defined Benefit  Posiretirement

Pension Plans Benefits Plan
Estimated benefit payments related to years

ending Septembel 30: . _ : :
2013 : _ 3 35,244 $ 2521
2014 35,199 2,832
. 2015 : 36,398 : 3,063
2016 o _ © 36570 3,316
2017 ' © . 38,078 3,646
- 2018 t02022 202,611 24,09

The Hospital expects to contrlbute apploxunately $41.6 million for pensmn benefits and $2.5
million for postretirement benefits payments in fiscal 2013.

9. Professional Liability Tnsurance

In 1978, the Hospital and a number of other academic medical centers formed the Medical
Centre Insurance Company, Ltd (the “Captive™) to insure for professional and comprehensive
general liability risks. In 1997, the Captive formed MCIC Vermont, Inc. to wiite direct insurance
for the professional and general liability risks of the shareholders. Since 1997, the Captive has
acted as a reinsurer for varying levels of per claim limit exposure. MCIC Verment, Inc. has
_ reinsurance coverage from outside reinsurers for amounts above the per claim limits. Premiums
are based on modified claims made coverage and are actuarially determined based on actual
experience of the Hospital, the Captive and MCIC Vermont, Inc.

In fiscal 1998, the Hospital entered into a purchase and sales management agreemeni with
YNHHSC that transferred the Hospital’s participation in the Captive to YNHHSC for its book
value as calculated by the Captive. Under the terms of the agreement, the Hospital retains certain
elements of control and assumnes limited risk associated with the ongoing operation of the
Captive. The Hospital pays insurance premiums to YNHHSC.
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~ Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemenis (continued)

9. Professional Liability Insurance (continued)

Additionally, becanse the purchase and sales management agreement entered into with
YNHHSC in 1998 mect criteria for deposit accounting, the Hospital recorded an actuarially
determined liability for IBNR professional and general liabilitics with an offsetting deposit
(asset) of an equal amount (approximately $11.8 million).

The estimate for modified claims-made professional liabilities and the estimate for incidents that
have been incurred but not reported aggregated approximately $84.5 million and $89.0 million at
September 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively for the Hospital. The undiscounted estimate for
incidents that have been incurred but not reported aggregated approximately $29.7 million and
$30.4 million for the Hospital at September 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively, and is included in
professional insurance liabilities in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial
position at the actuarially deterimined present value of approximately $28.5 million and $25.4
- million, respectively, based on a discount tate of 3.0% and 3.5% for the years ended
September 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

The Hospital has recorded related insurance recoveries receivable of approximately $56.0
million and $63.6 million at September 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively, in consideration of the
expected insurance recoveries for the total discounted modified claims-made insurance. The

current portion of professional liabilities and the related insurance receivable represents an

estimate of expected seitlemenis and insurance recoveries over the next 12 months.

Lukan, the Hospital sponsored professional liability program, continues to manage all incidents

and claims reported to Lukan prior to the acquisition of SRHS, as well as extending professional

liability coverage for post acquisition risks to certain affiliated community clinicians.

Prior to the acquisition of SRHS, Caritas provided excess professional liability and general
liability insurance to SRHS and their employed clinicians. Caritas continues to manage all
incidents and claims reported prior to the acquisition of SRHS.

Caritas and Lukan have recorded the undiscounted estimate for claims-made professional
liabilities and the estimate for incidents that have been incurred but not reported aggregated of
approximately $36.6 million at September 30, 2012 and are included in professional liabilities in
the accompanying consolidated statements of financial position.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

9. Professional Liability Insurance (continue-d)

The Hospital’s estimates for professional insurance liabilitics are based upon complex actuarial
calculations which utilize factors such as historical claims experience for the Hospital and related
industry factors, trending models, estimates for the payment patterns of future claims and present
value discount factors. As a result, there is at least a reasonable possibility that recorded

estimates will change by a material amount in the near term. Revisions to estimated amounts
- resulting from actual experience differing from projected expectations are recorded in the period
. the information becomes known or when changes are anticipated.

10. Commitments and Con_tihgencies

Leases

The Hospital leases certain office, clinical and parking spaces under non-cancelable operating
" leases that range in terms ending in 2013 tlnough 2024. Future minimum lease payments under

these leases are as follows (in thousands)

2013 | . . $ 12,419

2014 . ' : 10,929
2015 ' | . : 8,180
2016 ' : : ' C 7,448
2007 o . . ’ 6,350
Thereafler - - 18,018

' $ 63,344

The Hospital incurred net rent and parking expense under these leases of approximately $10.9
million .and $10.1 million for each of the years ended Septembel 30, 2012 and 2011,
- respectively.

Cancer Hospital
The Hospital has a shared facilities and services agreement with the University in conmection

with the Cancer Hospital which is recorded as deferred revenue. Deferred revenue, from this
agreement, at September 30, 2012 and 2011 was $46.6 million and $48.3 million, respectively.
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Notes to Consblida:ted Financial Statements (continued)

10. Commitments and Contingencies (éontiuued)
Litigation

Various lawsuits and claims arising in the normal course of operations are pending or are in
- progress against the Hospital. Such lawsuits and .claims arc either specifically covered by
insurance as explained in Note 9 or are deemed fo be immaterial. While the outcomes of the
lawsuits and claims cannot be determined at this time, management believes that any loss which
may arise from these will not have a material adverse effect on the financial position or changes
in net assets of the Hospital. ' : ‘

The Hospital has received requests for information from- certain governmental agencies relating
to, among other things, patient billings. These requests cover several prior years relating to
compliance with certain laws and regulations. Management is cooperating with those
governmental agencies in their information requesis and ongoing investigations. The ultimate
results of those investigations, including the impact on the Hospital, cannot be determined at this
time. ' ' '

11. Functional Expenses

The Hospital provides general acute health care services to residents within its geographic area.
Net expenses related to providing these services are as follows (in thousands):

© . Year Ended
September 30
2012 2011
Health care services - $ 1,422,822 § 1,234,794
General and administrative ' 231,622 201,013

$ 1,654,444 § 1435807
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

_ 12, Related Party Transaciions

The Hospltal provided facility 5pace and certain services to related palt[es as follows (in
thousands):

Year Ended
September 30
2012 2011
Recovery of expenses: o '
YNHIISC: _ ‘ : :
Facility rental . $ 2,883 S$ 2736
Shared services . 230 2322
Other ' : = 1,190
_ ‘ ' $ 3113 § 6248
Bridgeport Hospital: : -
Resident fees _ - o $ 2379 § 2,444
Other ) . 1,107 1,000

$ 3486 § 3444

Ambulatory Services Corporation: _
Salaries and benefits . ) $ 5054 3 4993
Other o - 336 185

= T o : $ 5990 § 5,178

YNH'HSC is the sole member of Bridgeport Hospital Healthcale Services, Inc., which is the sole
membe1 of Budgepmt Hospital.

YNHNC is the parent organization of Yale-New Haven Ambulatory Services Corporation, a
Conneciicut, non-stock taxable corporation.

The Hospital purchased certain services from YNHHSC as follows (in thousands):

Year Ended
September 30
2012 2011
Operating expenses:
Professional and general hab111ty insurance - % 20,948 § 20,654
Information systems : 37,673 18,805
System business office , ' 17,739 15,198
Other business services 67,613 47,529

$ 143,973 § 102,186
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

12. Related Party Transactions (continued)

Amounts receivable from and payable to related or Gamzatlons included in other 1ecc1vables
other assets, accounts payable and other long-term liabilities, respectively, in the accompanying
balance sheets are as follows (in thousands):

Septeruber 30
2012 2011
" Other receivables: . ‘ : '
YNHHSC . % 2283 § 2974
Bridgeport Hospital : L — 362
York Enterprises, Ine, _ N |7 133
Ambulatory Services Corporaiion ' 369 394
Greenwich, Hospital 560 23
Northeast Medical Group, Inc. : B o - 340
Other assets: . ‘ :
YNH Care Continum Cmpmat[on 4,000 -
Ambulatory Services Corporation : ' 12,500 —
$ 20,094 % 4,726
Accounts payable: _ :
YNHHSC _ _ $ 23503 % 23960
Greenwich Hospital : . : - . 51
Bridgeport Hospital i ) 1,501 —-
Y INH Network Corporation 613 =
Yorl Enterprises, Inc. - ' 16 19
Northeast Medical Group Inc. 2,912 —
YNH Care Continuum Corporation : 407 . —
Other long-term liabilities: ' '
YNHHSC _ 42,385 38,162

§ 76337 § 62,192

The Hospital mainfains certain investments for YNHHSC employees that participate in the
Hospital’s sponsored benefit plans. The costs associated with the: YNHHSC employees that
participate in benefit plans are 1'ecovered by the I-Iospital.

The Hospital finds certain capital assets purchased by YNHHSC. Included in prepaid expenses
and other assets were approximately $13.9 million and $49.8 million, respectively, ~at
September 30, 2012 and approximately $2 7 million and $307 1111111011 respectlvely, at
Septembe1 30, 2011.
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Yale-New Haven Hospital, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

12. Related Party Transactions (coniinued)

'Additionally, for the years ended September 30, 2012 and 2011, the Hospital funded YNHHSC
approximately $9.0 million and $12.0 million, respectively, as part of its participation in the New
Clinical Program Development Corporation (“NCPDC?”). The NCPDC was established for the

~ purpose of funding and supporting clinical research and clinical programs. The NCPDC Board

approves the funding of initiatives.

13. Other Revenue

~Other revenue consisted of the following (in thousands):

Year Ended
September 30
. 2012 2011
Cafeteria and vending . % 1,736 % 1,129
Coniributions ' _ o 2,960 2,667
Parking income , o ' - 4,087 3,555
Net assets released firom restrictions for operations 2,962 5,003
Net assets released from restrictions for free care - 889 . 782
* Net assets released from restrictions for medical research
and clinical programs 12,804 16,195
Grants . - ' ' 8314 7432
Electronic health records incentive payment , 2,649 - —
Other : 5,263 3,877

$ 47,684 3 46,640

The American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 included provisions for implementing
‘health information technology under the Health Information Technology for Economic and
- Clinical Health Act (“HITECH”). The provisions were designed to increase the use of electronic

health record (“EHR”) technology and establish the requirements for a Medicare and Medicaid -

incentive payment program beginning in 2011 for eligible providers that adopt and meaningfully
- use certified EHR technology. Eligibility for annual Medicare incentive payments is dependent
on providers demonstrating meaningful use of EHR technology in each period over a four-year
period. Initial Medicaid incentive payments are available to providers that adopt, implement, or
- upgrade certified EHR technology. In subsequent years, providers must demonstrate meaningful
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

13. Other Revenue (continued)

~ use of such technology to qualify for additional Medicaid incentive payments. Hospitals that do
not successfully demonstrate meaningful use of EHR technology are subject to payment
penalites or downward adjustments to their Medicare payments beginning in federal fiscal year
2015. : :

The Hospital uses a grant accounting model to recognize revenue for the Medicare and Medicaid
EHR incentive payments. Under this accounting policy, EHR incentive payment revenue is
recognized when the Hospital is reasonably assured that the EHR meaningfirl use criteria for the
required period of time were met and that the grant revenue will be received. EHR incentive
payment revenue totaling $2.6 million for Medicaid for the year ended September 30, 2012, is
included in other revenue in the accompanying 2012 consolidated statement of operations.

- Income from incentive payments is subject to retrospective adjustment upon final settlement of
the applicable cost report from which payments were calculated. Additionally, the Hospital’s
attestation of compliance with the meaningful use criteria is subject to audit by the federal
government. ' :

14. Non—'Operating_ (zains and Losses, Net

Non-operating gains and losses consisted of the following (in thousands) |

Year Ended
September 30
2012 2011

Income from investments, donations and other, net ‘ $ 5959 § 21,138
Change in unrealized gains and losses on investments © 47,932 (1,949
Change in fair value of swaps, including counterparty payments (12,610) (9,781
Acquisition costs related to Saint Raphael Healthcare System {22,103) (6,051)
Medical residents FICA tax refund : 4,920 10,915

§ 24,098 § 14272

15. Fair Value Measurements
In determining fair value, the Hospital utilizes valvation techniques that maximize the use of

observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. The Hospltal also considers
nonperformance risk in the overall assessment of fair value.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

15. Fair Value Measurements (continued) -

ASC 820-10, Fair Valwe Measurements, establishes a three tier valuation hierarchy for fair value

disclosure purposes. This hierarchy is based on the transparency of the inputs utilized for the
valuation. The three levels are deﬁned as follows:

» Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets that are accessible at the measurement date for

identical assets or liabilities. This established hierarchy assigns the highest priority to
Level 1 assets. '

* Level 2: Observable 111puts that are based on data not quoted.in active markets, but
carroborated by market data.

= Level 3: Unobservable inputs that are used when liitle or no market data is available. The
Level 3 inputs are assigned the lowest pnouty

Financial assets carried at fair value as of September 30,2012 are classified in the following
 table in two of the three categories described above (in thousands):

September 30, 2012

Level 1 Fevel 2 Level 3 Total

Cash and cash equivalents $ 64,557 § - 5 - % 64,557
Money market finds 7 136,663 - - 156,663
U.S. equity securities 28,378 - - 28,378
International equity securities 40,019 — - 40,012
“Fixed income ;

U.S. government ) : 87,329 . - - 87,329

International government 26,227 17,009 - ‘ 43,236
Interest in Yale University endowinent pool - — 361,550 361,550
Investments at fair value $ 403,173 § 17009 § 361,550 781,732
Commen collective trusts ) £9,203
Alternative investienis : 71,400
Perpetual trusts _ 12,127
Investments not at fair value ‘ 172,730
Total investments 3 954,462
Liabilities:

Inferest rate swaps . 3 - 539,269 3 $ (39.269)
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

15. Fair Value Measurements (continued)

Financial assets carried at fajr value as of 2011 are classified in the following table in two of the

three categories described above (in thousands):

September 30, 2011 :
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Cash and cash equivalenis o 0§ 65883 % - % — 5§ 65883
Money market funds : . 108,579 - — — 108,579
U.S. equity securities : 11,113 - — - 11,113
International equity securities - 37,523 B - 37,523
Fixed income '

U.S. government - - B 41,719 - — 41,719

International government 31,704 — — 31,704

Intersst in Yale University endowiment podl .

278719 278,719 .

Investments at fair value $ 296,521 3

Common collective trusts 91,524

Alternative investments 68,614

Perpetuzal trusts ) . : 10,906

- Investments not at fair value : _ ' 171,044

Total investments © % 746,284
Liabilities: .

Interest Tate swaps $  — 8 (31951) % - % (31,951

$ 278,719 575,240

The following is a roliforwaid of assets classified as level 3 of the valuation hierarchy:

Interest in Yale University Endowment Pool:

Fair value at September 30,2010 ) : $ 175,332
2011 Unrealized gains - : . 15,641
2011 Purchases ' 87,746
Fair value at September 30, 2011 ’ 278,719
2012 Unrealized gains 38,570
2012 Purchases 44761
Fair value at September 30, 2012 $ 361,550

- The fair value of debt was approximately $741.7 million and $528.9 million at September 30,
2012 and 2011, respectively. The fair value of the capital leases was approximately $112.6

million and $118.7 million at September 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively.
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- Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

* 15. Fair Value Measurements (continued)

The amounts reported in the table as detailed above do not _indudé assets invested in the
Hospital’s defined benefit pension plan (see Note 8). In addition, included in the table above are
investments at September 30, 2012 and 2011 in commeon collective trusts fotaling approximately

$89.2 million and $91.5 million, respectively, other alternative investments totaling

approximately $71.2 million and $68.6 million, respectively, and perpetual trusts totaling
approximately $12.1 million and $10.9 million, respectively, that are accounted for under the
equity methad of accounting (see Note 1). The interest rate swaps listed above are classified in
the accompanying balance sheets as other long-term liabilities at September 30, 2012 and 2011.

The following is a summary of total investments as of September 30, 2012 with resirictions to
redeem the investments at the measurement date, any unfunded capital commitments and
investment strategies of the investees (in thousands):

Carrying Unfunded Redemption Notice Fands
Description of Investment Value Commitment Frequency Period Availability
Hedge funds: . o : .
Long/short equity § 12,205 $ o= _Annually 100 days  December 31
Absalute refurn 48,614 — " Annually . 100 days December 31
Real estate 9,905 3,507 - N/A N/A N/A

Commodities 676 9,963 N/A N/A T N/A
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

" 16. Medical Residents FICA Tax Refund

In March 2010, the Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”™) announced that, for periods ending before
April 1, 2005, medical residents would be eligible for student exception of Federal Insurance
Contributions Act (“FICA”) taxes. Under the student exception, FICA taxes do not apply to
wages for services performed by students employed by a school, college, or university where the
student is pursuing a course of study. As a result, the IRS will allow refunds for institutions that
file timely FICA refund claims and provide certain information to meet the requirements of
perfection, established by the IRS, for their claims applicable to periods prior to April 1, 2005.
Institutions are potentially eligible for medical resident FICA refunds for both the employer and
employee portions of FICA taxes paid, plus statutory interest. For the year ended September 30,
2012 and 2011, the Hospital has recorded estimated net revenue of approximately $4.9 million
and $10.9 million, respectively, in non-operating gains and losses, related to FICA medical
resident refunds claims that have met the IRS refund requirements. At September 30, 2012 and
2011, the Hospital recorded a net receivable of approximately $18.2 million and $24.7 million,

respectively included in other assets and a payable of approximately $13.8 million at .

September 30, 2012 and 2011 included in other long-term labilities. The Hospital has
established its estimate based on information presently available and this estimate is subject to
change as the IRS adjudicates the claims.

17. Subsequént Events

Subsequent events have been evaluated through December 21, 2012, which is the date the

financial statements were available to be issued. No events have occurred that require disclosure

or adjustment of the financial statements.
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225 Asylum Street
Hartford, CT 05103-1508

Tel: +1 860 247 3100
-+ Faxc +1 860 725 6040
www.ey.com

Report of Independent Auditors
- on Supplementary Tnformation

Board of Trustees

Yale-New Haven Hospital, Inc. and Subsidiaries

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Y_aie-NeW Haven Hospital, Inc. énd
Subsidiaries as of and for the years ended September 30, 2012 and 2011, and have issued our

report thereon dated December 21, 2012 which contained an unqualified opinion on those

financial statements. Our audits were performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements as a whole. The accompanying conselidating balance sheets

~‘consolidating statement of operations and change in net assets are presented for purposes of

additional analysis and are not a required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such

~ information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the

underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements.
The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements and certain additicnal procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly fo the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements
themselves and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material
respects in relation to the consolidated financial statement as a whole. -

Ganet ¥ Y - _LLPl

December 21, 2012
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Ernst & Young LLP

Assurance | Tax | Transactions | Advisory

About Eriist & Youny |

Ernst & Young is a global leader i assurance,

tax, transaction and adviscry services.

Worldwide, our 167,000 peaple are united by

cur shared values and an unwavering commitment to
quality. We make a difference by helping our f)eopre, our
clients and our wider communities achieve their poteniial.

For more information, please visit www.ey.com

Ernst & Young refers to ihe global organization

of member firms of Ernst & Young Global Limited,
each of which is a separate legal entity,

Ernst & Young Global Limited, a UK company
fimited [y guarantee, does not provide servicss
to clients. This Report has been prepared by
Crnst & Young LLE, a client serving member firm
located In the United States.
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'/ ParenteBeard

Independent Auditors’ Report

- Tothe Pariners of
Saint Raphael Magnetic Resonance Center

We have audited the accompanying statement of financial pesition of Saint Raphael Magnetic
Resonance Center {the “Center’) as of September 30, 2012, and the relaied statemenis of
operations, changes in partners' equity and cash flows for the year ended. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Center's Management. Our responsmb[llty is to express an
oplnlon on thesa financial sfatements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance W|th auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. Those standards. require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and

- significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement

_presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasanable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in afl material respects,
the financial position of Saint Raphael Magnetic Resonance Center at September 30, 2012, and
the resulis of their operations, changes in partners’ equity and cash flows for the year ended, in
canformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

?nga

New York, New York
December 14, 2012 -
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Saint Raphael Magnetic Resonance Center

Statement of Financial Position
September 30, 2012

"~ Assets
Current Assetis
Cash : : : : ' ‘ $ 1,194,766
- Accounts receivable (net of allowance for doubtfuf accounts 7
of $1,063,076 in 2012) 1,017,978
Prepaid expenses _ o 52,886
Total current assets o . : , 2,265,630
Capital Reserve Fund (Resfricted Cash} . ' 1,008,539
Property, Equipment and Improvements:
Equipment : ' - 6,729,340
Furnifure and fixiures o _ 61,470
Building fmprovements ' R o - 818,972
Total _ . - 7,609,782
l.ess: accumulated depreciation - A ' : 6,917,927
Property, equipment and improvements, net ! 691,855
- Total- asséts S , . $ 3,966,024

Liabilities and Partners' Equity

Current Liabilities

Accounts payable $ 22,030
Accrued physcians' fees : 247200
Accrued taxes and expenses _ : -80,551
Notes payable ‘ ‘ _ 66,000

Total current liabilities C415,781
Partners' Equity | : : - h 3,550,243
Total liabilities and partners' equity ” $ 3,966,024

See notas to financial statements

2



Saint Raphael Magnetic Resonance Center
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Statement of Operations
Year Ended September 30, 2012

Operating Revanues
Net patient servica revenue -

Operating Expenses
Payroll

" Physician fees
General and administrative
Maintenance and repairs
‘Billing service
Rent
[nsurance
Property tax
Power requirements
Pension _
Confrast agents
Supplies and other
Provision for bad debt
Inferast

. Depreciation

Total expenses

Income from operations-
Non-Operating Income
Non-operating revenue

Interest

Net Income

See notes fo financial statfements

3

6,524,140

1,023,107

1,046,600
250,412
402,080
251,321
153,054
200,821
59,556
89,436
27,476
164,844
100,808
559,428

. 6,563
191,067

4,548,573

1,977,567

248 636
6,447

$

2,232,850
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- Saint Raphael Magnetic Resonance Center

Statement of Cash Flows _
Year Ended September 30, 2012

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Net Income
Adjustmenis fo reconcile net income to net cash
provided by operating activities: '
Depreciation
Changes in assets and liabilities;
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses
- Accounts payable
Accrued physcians' fees
Accrued taxes and expenses

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Capital reserve fund (restricted cash)

~ Cash Flows from Financing Activities
- Repayment of noie payable
Withdrawls and distributions
Net cash used in financirig activities
Decrease in cash

Cash, Beginning

Cash, Ending

- Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information

Interest paid

See notes to financial statements

5

2,232,650

191,067

 (379,694)

(1,030)
(21,522)
(14.406)

6,428

2,013,493

(136,141)

(72,000)
(2,770,000)

(2.842,000)

- (964,648)

2,159,414

1,194,766

6,563
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Saint Raphael Magnetic Resonance Center

Notes to Financial Statements
. September 30, 2012

1. Organization and Nature of Operations

Saint Raphael Magnetic Resonance Center (the “Center”) is a partnership formed in 1987. The
Center operates under a partnership agreement dated September 29, 1987 hetween Medical
Imaging Associates, P.C. (“MIA”) and DePaul Health Services Corporation (“‘DePaul”. DePaul
“held its partnership interest on behaif of the Hospital of Saint Raphael ("HSR”). The Centeris a
magnetic resonance imaging facility which provides rnpatlent and outpatient ser\nces for
patients in the New Haven, Connecticut area. -

On September- 12, 2012, Yale-New Haven Hospital, Inc., Yale-New Haven Ambulatory Sarvices

~ Corporation ("AS(C"), Yale-New Haven Care Continuum Corporation and Medical Center
Pharmacy and Home Care Center, Inc. acquired substantially all of the business, assefs and
operations and assumed certain liabilities of the Saint Raphael Healthcare System, Inc.,
including substantially all of the assets of its wholly-owned subsidiary, HSR.

In connection with the acquisition, the DePaul interest was assigned to ASC. As of September
30, 2012, the Center is owned 50% by MIA and 50% by ASC. As of that date, carrylng value of
the Center's assets and liabilities approximate fair value.

On September 11, 2012, ASC entered into a Partnership Interest Purchase Agreament with MIA
to purchase the 50% interest owned by MIA. The closing date of the transaction will be no
-earlier than one year from the anniversary date of the purchase agreement and no later than
thirty days following such anniversary date.

2, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accouniing principles generally
accepied in the United States of America requires management {o make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reporfed amounis of assets and liabiliies and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements. Estimates also affect
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting pericd. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.

- Accounts Receivable-

Patient accounis receivable result from the health care services provided by the Cenfer.
Additions to the allowance for doubtful accounts result from the provision for bad debts.
Accounts written off as uncollectible are deducted from the allowance for doubtful accounts.
The amount of the allowance for doubiful accounts is based upon management's
‘assessment of historical and expected net collections, business and econormic conditions,
trends in third party health care coverage and other collection indicators.
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Saint Raphael Magnetic Resonance Center

Notes to Financial Stat-ements
September 30, 2012

tNet Patient Service Revenues -

Net patient service revenues is reported at the estimated net realizable amounis from
patients, third-party payors and others for services rendered. Self-pay revenue is recorded
at published charges with charitable allowances deducted to arrive at net seif-pay revenue.
All other patient services revenue is recorded at published charges with contractual
allowances deducted to arrive at patient services, net. Reimbursement rates are subject to
revisions under the provisions of rermbursement regulatlons Adjustments for such revisions
are recogmzed in the fiscal year incurred.

Non-Operating 7Revenue

In 2004 the Center enfered info an agreament with the HSR {a related party) fo have access
* to their film storage system. In 2012, the Center and HSR negotiated a new monthly access
fee that was retroactively applied to prior years. As a result of the new monthly access fee
the Center received a retroactive setilement for $248,636 in 2012.

Income Taxes

The Center is exempt from income tax as it-is a parinership and as such is considered a

pass-through entity for tax purposes. On such basis, the Center will not incur any liability for
income iaxes.

Property, Equipment and Improvements-

Property, equipment and improvements is recorded at cost. Expenditures for additions to
propery and equipment or expenditures which extend the useful lives of the assets are
capitalized. Expenditures for maintenance and repairs are charged to operations as
“incurred. When items. are disposed of, the cost and related accumulated depreciation are
eliminated from the accounts and any gain or loss is reflected in nef income. Depreciation is
computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of. the assels
ranging from 51039 years

Charity Care

The Center provides care to patients who meet ceriain criteria under its charity care policy
without charge or at amounts less than iis established rates. Because the Center does not
pursue collection of amounts determined to qualily as charliy care, they are not reporied as
revenues.

The Center maintains records to ideniify and monitor the [evel of charity care that it provides.
The costs associated with the charitable care services provided -are estimated by applying
the cost-to-charge ratio from the most recently filed cost report, to the amount of gross
uncompensated charges for the patients receiving charity care. Total charity care costs were:
approximately $9,384 for the year ended September 30, 2012.
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Saint Raphael Magnetic Resonance Center

Notes to Financial Statements -
September 30, 2012

New A'ccouriting Pronouhcements
Charity Care

In August 2010, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued amesnded
disclosure guidance relating io the measurement of charity care provided. The guidance
requires that direct and indirect costs be used as the basis of measurement for charity
care disclosure purposes. The guidance was also amended to require disclosure of the

. method used to identify or determine such costs. The adoption of the amended guidance
revised the disclosure in the notes to the Center’s financial statements but did not impact
amounts reported in the primary financial statements ‘

Patient Serv:ce Revenue, Prowsmn for Bad Debts and Allowance for Doubiful
Accounis

In July 2011, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update No. 2011-07, Presentation

“and Disclosure of Patient Service Revenue, Provision for Bad Debts, and the Allowance
for Doubtful Accounts (“ASU 2011-07"} to amend and expand existing authoritative
accounting guidance. The guidance requires the provision for bad debts to be reported
as a deduction from patient service revenues and includes enhanced disclosures for
patient service revenue and the allowance for doubtful accounts. The guidance is
effective for the first annual period ending aiter December 15, 2012. Adoption of the
guidance will required the Center io repori the provision for bad debis as a deduction
from revenue and included additional disclosure in the notes to the financial statements.

Subseduent evenis

The Center -evaluated subsequent evenis for recognition or disclosure through
December 14, 2012, the daie ihe financial statemenis were available to be issued.

- 3. Concentrations of Credit Risk

The Center maintains its cash accounts in commercial hanks. Non-interest bearing accounts are
fully insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation threugh December 31, 2012 Interast
- bearing accounts are msured up to $250,0C0 permanently

The Center's primary operations and service area include the communities of New Haven,
Connecticut. The Center grants credit withoui collateral to its patients, who are insuréd under-
third-party payor arrangements, with Medicare, Medicaid, and various commercial insurance
compan[es

The significant concentrations of accounts receivable for services to patients include
approximately 15% from Medicare and Medicaid, 9% self pay, and 75% from commerciat
insurarice and other payors ai September 30, 2012, :

The significant concentrations of net patient service revenue include approximately 18% from
Medicare and Medicaid, 2% self pay, and 75% from commercial insurance and other payors at
September 30, 2012.
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Saint Raphael Magnetic Resonance Center

.Notes to Financial Statemenis
September 30, 2012

4. Capital Reserve Fund (Restricted Cash)

Restricted cash includes designated asseis set aside by the Board of Directors and
management for fuiure use. The Board designated funds are set aside for capital improvements
over which the Board retains control and may. at its discretion subsequenily use for other
purposes. ' '

5. Note Payable

Under a Loan Agreement the Cenier has a bank ferm loan with an original loan amount of
$360,000. The monthly principal payment is $6,000 and the loan is collateralized by the bank
deposits of the Center as defined in the Loan Agreement. Interest is payable monthly at a rate
of 6.18%. The term note matures in August 2013. The outstandmg balance at September 30,
2012 is $66,000. ‘

Under the Loan Agreement, the Center is required fo comply with certain covenants. At
"September 30, 2012, the Center is in compliance with these covenants.

8. Retirement Plan

The Center sponsors a simplified employee pension plan (the “Plan”} which covers substantially
all of its employees meeting minimum age and service requiremenis. Under the terms of the
Plan, the Center funds discretionary contributions (3% in 2012) of eligible compensation. The
Center's contribution to the Plan for the year ended September 30, 2012, was $27,476.

7. Conimi_tments

The Center has a billing services agreement with a third party that will terminate on the earlier of
the closing of the ASC purchase of MIA (see Note 1) or Cctober 12, 2013. The billing service
expense for the year endad September 30, 2012 was $251,321. '

The Company leases facility space from HSR (a related party) under an operating lease. The

- lease will terminate on the earlier of the closing of the ASC purchase of MIA (see Note 1) or
Qctober 12, 2013. The rent expense for the year ended September 30, 2012 was $153, 054 for
the facility space.

8. Gontingencies

The heaith care indusfry is subject to numerous laws and regulations of federal, state, and local
governments. Compliance with these laws and rzgulations is subject to future government
review and interpretation as well as regulatory actions unknown or unasserted at this time.
Government activity continues to increase with respect to investigations and allegations
concerning possible viclations by health care providers of fraud and abuse statutes and
regulations, which could result in the imposition of significant fines and penalties as well as
significant repaymenis for patient services previously billed. Management is not aware of any
material incidents of noncompliance; however, the possible future financial effects of this matter
on the Center, if any, are not presently determinable.



Saint Raphael Magnetic Resonance Center

Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2012

9. Functional Expenses

The Center provides healih care related services to individuals within its geographic location.
Expenses related to providing these services in 2012 approximate the following:

Healthcare services : . $ 4,256,161

General and administrative © 250,412
Total ' ©§ 4,546,573

10
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" OHCA FINANCIAL ASSUMPTIONS



A

B.

YALE-NEW HAVEN HOSPITAL

Proposal for the Transfer of Ownership of St Raphael MRI
Imaging Center to Yale-New Haven Hospital

186

Assumptions
Net Reveﬁ ue Rate Increases FY 2[}1 3 FY 2014 FY 2015 FY 2016
1) éovernment 0.0-2.8% 0.0-2.8% 0.0-28% 0.0 - 2.8%
2) Nen-Government 5.0-8.0% 50-6.0% 45-6.0% 4.0-6.0%
FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2016 0 FY 2016
EXPENSES : : :
Salaries and Fringe Benefits , 5.0% 5.0% 5.0% 5.0%
Non-Salary
" 1) Medical and Surgical Supplies | 3.5% 3.5% 3.5% 3.5%
© 2) Pharmacy and S:o[utions : : ’ 6.0% - 6.0% 5.0% 6.0%
3) Malpractice Insurance _ 3.0% 3.0% 3.0% 3.0%
4) Professional and Contracted Services ' - 25% - 2.5% 2.5% 2.5%
5} All ther Expenses : a . 3-4% 3-4% 3- d;ﬂ/o 3-4%
FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2015 FY 2016
FTEs
1) Total estimafed FTEs g 10,861.5 10,937.5 11,014.5 11,092.8

Note - The above increase projections reflect all changes relating to Medicare and Medicaid refmbursement

regulations.




STATE OF CONNECTICUT

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH
Office of Health Care Access

February 22, 2013 VIA FAX

Nancy Rosenthal Mz, Zenon Protopapas

Senior Vice President/Health Systems Development Medical Director, SRMRC
Department of Planning & Business Development Medical Imaging Associates
Yale-New Haven Hospital 330 Orchard Street, Suite 10B
20 Howe Street New Haven, CT 06511

New Haven, CT 06510

RE:  Certificate of Need Application; Docket Number: 13-31819-CON
Proposal to Transfer the Ownership of Saint Raphael Magnetic Resonance Center to
Yale-New Haven Hospital

Dear Ms. Rosenthal and Mr. Protopapas,

On January 25, 2013, the Office of Health Care Access (“OHCA™) received vour initial
Certificate of Need (“CON™) application for transfer of ownership of Saint Raphael Magnetic
Resonance Center to Yale-New Haven Hospital, at 2 total capital expenditure of 4,200,000.

OHCA has reviewed the CON application and requests additional information pursuant to
General Statutes § 1%a-639a(c):

1. On page 18 of the CON application, it states that during the past four years the total
volume for both scanners has ranged between 8,500 and 9,000 annually. Provide the
historical, current and projected volume for each scanner in the table below. Please
reconcile the historical volume to schedule 450 (HRS).

Historical Volume Estimated Projected Volume
MRI scans (First 3 Full Operational FYs)
FY 2010 | FY 2011 | FY 2012 FY 2013 | FY 2014 [ FY 2015 | FY 2016
Inpatient
Outpatient
ED
Total

An Equal Opportunity Provider
(If vou require aid/accommodation to participate fully and fairly, contact us either by phone, fax or email)
410 Capitol Ave., MS#13HCA, P.0.Box 340308, Hartford, CT 06134-0308
Telephone: (860} 418-7001 Fax: (860) 418-7053 Email: OHCA{@ct.gov




Yale-New Haven Hospital February 6, 2013
Docket Number: 13-31815-CON Page 2 of 2

1. Please identify the current primary and secondary service area towns that are served 'by
SRMRC and identify how they were determined.

In responding to the questions contained in this letter, please repeat each question before
providing your response. Paginate and date your response (i.e., each page in its entirety).
Information filed after the initial CON application submission (i.e. completeness response letter,
prefile testimony, late file submissions and the like) must be numbered sequentially from the
Applicants’ document preceding it. Please reference “Docket Number: 13-31819-CON.” Submit
one (1) original and five (5) hard copies of your response. In addition, please submit a scanned
copy of your response including all attachments on CD in an Adobe format (.pdf) and in an MS
Word format.

If you have any questions concerning this letter, please feel free to contact me at (860) 418-7007.

Sincerely,

ez %@ém%_.,

Alla Veyberman
Health Care Analyst
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YALE NEw HAVEN
HEALTH

March 21, 2013

Alla Veyberman
Health Care Analyst S
Ofifice of Healthcare Access S MAR 21 2@%3
410 Capitol Avenue

-MS #13HCA vn TR T
P.O. Box 340308 , G R e
Hartford, CT 06106 '

Re:  Docket Number 13-31819-CON :
Proposal to Transfer the Ownership of Saint Raphael Magnetic Resonance Center to Yale-New
Haven Hospital '

Dear Ms. Veyberman:

Enclosed please find the original, five (5) hard copies and an electronic copy on CD of responses to
OHCA’s February 6, 2013 completeness questions for the above referenced CON application.

Please do not hesitate to contact me with any questions or concerns. I can be reached at (203) 863-3908.
Thank you for your time and support of this important project.
Sincerely,

ancy Rosenz 4]

A
Senior Vice President.— Health Systems Development

Enclosures

789 Hdward Avenus
New Haven, CT 06519
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Yale-New Haven Hospital
Saint Raphael Magnetic Resonance Center

Transfer of Ownership of Saint Raphael Magnetic Resonance Center to
Yale-New Haven Hospital

- Docket Number: 13-31819-CON

Responses to Completeness Questions

March 21, 2013
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Yale-New Haven Hospital (YNHH)
Saint Raphael Magnetic Resonance Center (SRMRC)

Certificate of Need Application
Docket Number: 13-31819-CON

Transter of Ownership of Saint Raphael Magnetic Resonance Center
to Yale-New Haven Hospital

Responses to Completeness Questions

1. On page 18 of the CON application, it states that during the past four years the total volume for
both scanners has ranged between 8,500 and 9,000 annually. Provide the historical, current and
nrojected volume for each scanner in the table below. Please reconcile the historical volume to
schedule 450 (HSR).

SRMRC volumes are not tracked by scanner and therefore the historical volumes
provided below are for both MRI scanners operated by SRMRC, SRMRC also does not
track ED volume separately and any ED volume which occurred was included in

- outpatient volumes.

Projected volumes are based on the transfer of ownership to YNHH and include a
conservative volume increase in conjunction with increased activity at the Saint Raphael
campus. Projected ED scan volume is assumed to be 1% of the outpatient volume which is
consistent with historical levels at SR campus.

MRI Scans Historical Volume Estimated (First 3¥Efleg;gr:221?f FYsy
FY 2010 | FY 2011 FY 2012 FY 2013 FY 2014 | FY 2015 | FY 2016 :
Inpatient 2,133 2,114 2,047 2,047 2,114 2,118 2,120 |
Qutpatient 7,257 7,008 6,531 6.531 6,714 7,041 7,153 ,
ED* - 68 71 72
Total 9,390 9,122 8,578 8,578 8.89¢6 9,230 9,345
Notes:

ED volume is not tracked by SRMRC and is included in outpatient volume.
FY 2013 volumes are assumed to remain flat from FY 2012 due to YNHH acquisition of HSR and
transitional year. FY 2014-2016 volumes assumed to increase conservatively (4%, 4% and 1%)
building volume back to FY 2010 levels by 2016. Volume increases are expected as a result of

increased patient activity on the Saint Raphael campus by YNHH. Projected ED volume is assumed
to equal 1% of outpatient volume based on historical HSR volumes.

It is difficult to reconcile SRMRC historical volumes to HSR’s Schedule 450 since SRMRC
is a separate entity and provided MRI services to HSR as well as the community at large.
SRMRC has its own database and billing system, separate from what was used by HSR.
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Schedule 450 for FY 2010 and 2011 was prepared several years ago by HSR and YNHH is
not aware of the specific methodology that was used by HSR to record and report the MRI
scan volume,

. Please 1dentify the current primary and secondary service area towns that are served by SRMRC
and identify how they were determined :

SRMRC’s primary and secondary service area towns closely mirror those that were served
by HSR. The primary service area towns include those which comprise approximately 60-
70% of the volume and secondary service area towns comprise the next 20-25% of the
volume. The towns are listed below:

Primary Towns:
East Haven, Hamden, New Haven, North Haven, West Haven

Secondary Towns:
Ansonia, Bethany, Branford, Derby, Guilford, Huntington, Madison, Meriden, Milford,
North Branford, Northford, Orange, Oxford, Seymour, Wallingford, and Woodbridge.




STATE OF CONNECTICUT

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH
Office of Health Care Access

April 19, 2013 VIA FAX

Nancy Rosenthal Mzr. Zenon Protopapas

Senior Vice President/Health Systems Development Medical Director, SRMRC
Department of Planning & Business Development Medical lmaging Associates
Yale-New Haven Hospital 330 Orchard Street, Suite 10B
20 Howe Street New Haven, CT 06511

New Haven, CT 06510

RE:  Certificate of Need Application; Docket Number: 13-31819-CON
Proposal to Transfer the Ownership of Saint Raphael Magnetic Resonance Center to
Yale-New Haven Hospital

Dear Ms. Rosenthal and Mr. Protopapas,

On March 21, 2013, the Office of Health Care Access (“OHCA™) received completeness
responses to the Certificate of Need (“CON™) application for transfer of ownership of Saint
Raphael Magnetic Resonance Center to Yale-New Haven Hospital, at a total capital expenditure
of 4,200,000.

OHCA has reviewed the responses and requests the following additional information pursuant to
General Statutes §19a-639a(c).

1. Based on your current pnimary and secondary service area towns, there are limited
provider-based imaging centers in the service area. On page of 17 of the application it
is stated that after the purchase, Yale-New Haven Hospital will operate SRMRC as a
provider-based center. Based on the above, please provide information on the
following:

a. How current SRMRC charges will be affected by going to a provider base setting?

b. Provide a copy of the current SRMRC’s chargemaster and a copy of one it will
have after SRMRC will be incorporated into YHNN’s Radiology department?

c. How will the proposed transfer impact the billing model?

2. Please provide information about how the Applicants plan to notify current and future
SRMRC’s patients about the transfer if approved.

Arn Equal Opportunity Provider
(I vou require aid/accommodation (o participate fully and fairly, contact us either by phone, fix or email)
410 Capitol Ave., MS#13HCA, P.O.Box 340308, Hartford, CT 06134-0308
Telephone: (860) 418-70¢1  Fax: (860) 418-7053 Email: OHCA@ct.gov



Yale-New Haven Hospital and Medical Imaging Associates April 19, 2013
Docket Number: 13-31819-CON Page 2 of 2

In responding to the questions contained in this letter, please repeat each question before
providing your response. Paginate and date your response (i.e., each page in its entirety).
Information filed after the initial CON application submission (i.e. completeness response letter,
prefile testimony, late file submissions and the like) must be numbered sequentially from the
Applicants’ document preceding it. Please reference “Docket Number: 13-31819-CON.” Submit
one (1) original and five (5) hard copies of your response. In addition, please submit a scanned
copy of your response including all attachments on CD in an Adobe format (.pdf) and in an MS
Word format.

If you have any questions concerning this letter, please feel free to contact me at (860) 418-7007.

Smcerely,

U Ve~

Alla Veyberman
Health Care Analyst
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" YALE NEw HAVEN
HEALTH

May 17,2013

Alla Veyberman

Health Care Analyst

Office of Healthcare Access
410 Capitol Avenue

MS #13HCA

P.O. Box 340308

Hartford, CT 06106

Re:  Docket Number 13-31819-CON
Proposal to Transfer the Ownership of Saint Raphael Magnetic Resonance Center to
Yale-New Haven Hospital '

Dear Ms. Veyberman:

Enclosed please find the original, five (5) hard copies and an electronic copy on CD of responses
to OHCA’s April 19, 2013 completeness questions for the above referenced CON application.

Please do not hesitate to contact me with any questions or concerns. I can be reached at (203)
863-3908. ' '

Thank you for your time and support of this important project.

Sincerely, P |
NaZyRm |

Senior Vice President — Health Systems Development

Enclosures

789 Howard Avenue
- New Haven, CT 06519
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Yale-New Haven Hospital
Saint Raphael Magnetic Resonance Center

Transfer of Ownership of Saint Raphael Magnetic Resonance Center to
Yale-New Haven Hospital

Docket Number: 13-31819-CON

Responses to Completeness Questions (#2)

May 28, 2013
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Yale-New Haven Hospital (YNHH)
Saint Raphael Magnetic Resonance Center (SRMRC)

Certificate of Need Application
Docket Number: 13-31819-CON

Transfer of Ownership of Saint Raphael Magnetic Resonance Center
to Yale-New Haven Hospital

Responses to Completeness Questions #2

a. Based on your current primary and secondary service area towns, there are limited provider-
based imaging centers in the service area. On page 17 of the application it is stated that after the
purchase, Yale-New Haven Hospital will operate SRMRC as a provider-based center. Based on
the above, please provide information on the following:

a. How current SRMRC charges will be affected by going to a provider base setting?

b. Provide a copy of the current SRMRC’s charge master and a copy of one it will have
after SRMRC will be incorporated into YNHH’s Radiology department.

c. How will the proposed transfer impact the billing model?

Responses
a. SRMRC’s current charges will no longer apply following the change of ownership to

YNHH. YNHH’s MRI charges will apply for MRI scans provided on the Saint Raphael
campus following the change in ownership. Because the MRIs are on YNHH’s Saint
Raphael campus, they will be integrated fully with the services of YNHH and billed
consistent with all hospital MRI services.

b. Copies of the current SRMRC and YNHH MRI charge masters have been included in
Appendix I. As stated above, YNHH’s charges for an MRI will apply to the MRIs on the
Saint Raphacl (SR) campus following the change of ownership. :

It should be emphasized that the chargemaster has little relevance to actual revenue for
MRI services. For more than §9% of MRI scan volume (all payors), YNHH is paid for
MRI services according to a predetermined fee schedule or contracted fee schedules. On
average, outpatient MRI payments for all payors are more than 60% less than charges.
YNHH conducts an in-depth review of the chargemaster on a regular basis.

¢. The billing model will be the same model as all other YNHH MRI services. Prevailing
fee schedules (e.g. Medicare/Medicaid) or YNHH managed care and commercial payor
contracts will include the Saint Raphael campus MRIs. All billing practices at the Saint
Raphael campus will be consistent with all other MRI locations at YNHH. :

It should be noted that Yale-New Haven Hospital has some of the most progressive free
care and charity care policies in the United States. All patients who do not qualify for
State of Connecticut Medicaid are offered financial assistance for services provided by
the hospital. If a patient falls under 250% of the Federal Poverty Level (FPL), hospital
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care is provided at no charge. Patients who fall between 250% and 400% of FPL receive
hospital care at cost, almost an 80% discount off charges. Patient above 400% are also
offered discounts, in some cases in excess of 50%. Upon the acquisition of the Hospital
of Saint Raphael, free and charity care policies were extended to the Saint Raphael
campus. As part of YNHH, these policies will be extended to the MRI services provided
at the Saint Raphael campus and with all other hospital-based services provided there.
These financial assistance policies are the most progressive policies in the State of
Connecticut. '

b. Please provide information about how the Applicants plan to notify current and future SRMRC
patients about the transfer if approved.

Response
Patients will be notified about the change of ownership in a variety of ways, including:

When a patient or referring physician calls to schedule an MRI at the SR campus, they
will be told about the change of ownership.

Any patient already scheduled for an MRI at the SR campus will be notified of the
change in ownership at the time of their pre-appointment telephone reminder call.
Signage in the facility will be changed to YNHEH signage.
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APPENDIX I
YNHH AND SRMRC MRI CHARGES




YNHH Charges

MRI Services
May 3zd, 2013

70335 |MR] - Tesporamandi s Joint 2,885
70540IMRT - Orbl, face and neck w/ o contrast 2,296
FOBAZIMEL - Orbl, face and neck with contrast 2,737
70543 MR - Osbl, face and neck w/ ¢ and with contrast 4,326
70544|MRA - Head w/ o contrast 3126
70545 MRA - Head with contrast 2,140
70546|MRA - Head w/ o0 and with contrast 5,534
70547\ MRA - Neck w/o contrast 3,635
70548 | MRA - Nack with contrast 4,213
705481 MRA, - Neck w/o and with contrast 4,993
70351 [MRI - Brain w/o contrast 3,113
70552 | MR] - Brain with contrast 3,542
7553 |MRI - Brain w/o and with condrast 4,697
70554 {MRI - Brain, functinocal . 3,542
70535 MR - Brain, funicinoal requiring physician administration 3824
Zi550IMEI - Chest w /o contrast 2,652
71551 [MRI - Chest with contragt 2,738
71552|MRI - Chest w/ o and with conirast 4,466
71555|MRA, - Chest w/ 0 and with contrask 4,782
72147 IMRI - cervical spine w/o contrast 3,406
72142 |MRI ~ cervical spisie with contrast 3,723
72146|MRI - thoracic spine w/o contrast 3,321
72147 {MRI - thoracic spine with contrist. 3,743
72148]MRI - lumbar spine w/o condrast 3,375
72 4A9IMBI - lumbar spine with contrast 3,623
72156]MRI - cervical spine w/ o and with contrast 4,703
72157 MR - thoracic spine w/ o and wifh conirast 4,874
72158 MR - lumbar spine w/oand with contrast 4,957
FA59{MRA. - Spinal Canal _ 5032
72195 MRI - Pebvis w/o confrast 3,102
FZ196{MRI - Pelvis with contrast- 3,045
72197 MRI - Pelvis w/ o aiud with cortrast 4,994
72195FMRA - Pelvis w/ 0 or with contrast . 4,296
73218IMRI - Upper extremity other than joint w /6 contrast 2,986
73219IMRI - Upper extrémity: other than joint with contrast . 3,011
73220IMRI - Upper: extremity other than joint w/o and with contrast 3,471
734221 [MRI - Upper extremity joint w,/ o contrast 4,257
73222\ MRI - Upper exirerity joint with coritrast 4,014
73223 | MRI < Upper extrenity joint w/ o and with conirast 5,051
732251 MRA - Upper exdremity w/o or with contrast ) 4,983
73718 MR - Lower extremtity oiher than joint w/ o contrast 3467
73719{MRI - Lower extremity other than joint with conirast 3,823
73720 |MRI - Lowet extremity other than joint w/o and with contrast 4,981
73721 [MEI - Lower extremity joint w/ o contrast 2438
73722 IMRI - Lower extremity joint with contrast 2,948
73723 |MRI - Lower exirermily joint w/ ¢ and with contzast 3444
73725 |MRA - Lower exiremity w/o or with cortrast 3,894
74181 [MRI - Abdomen w/o contrast 2,926
7E182IMRT = Abdoimen will contrast 332
74183 IMRI ~ Abdomen w/o and with contrast 4,993
74185 [MRA < Abdomen w/o and with contrast 5,200
_ 75557 |Cardisc MRI for morphology w/ o conirast

75b58|Cardiac MRI for marpholosy with street fiiiaging

75561 |Cardiac MRI for morphology w/ o contrast and w/ condrast 4982
75563 |Cardiac MRI for morpholosy w/ o contrast and w/ contrast w 2,273
76376|3D Rendering w/inferpretation, independent staHon 616
76377 (3D Rendering w/interpretation, independent station req 015
77021 |Magnetic resonance guidance for needle placement 3495
77058 MRI Breast with and/or with contrast unilateral 2,442
77059]Bilateral 2073
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SRMRC Charge Listing
CPT DECRIPTION Charge
70336|MRI - TEMIPOROMANDIBULAR JOINT 5 1,440.00
70540 | MRI-Orbi, face and neck w/o contrast S 1.420.00
70542 with contrast S 1,795.00
70543 w/o and with contrast 135 221500
70544 MRA-Head wio contrast. 5 1,395.00
70545 with contrast S 172500
70545 wfo and with contrast 4§ 2,160.00
70547 I MRA-MNeck w/o contrast $  1,385.00
70548 with contrast S 1,725.00
70549 w/n and with contrast 5 2,160.00
70551 MR1-Brain w/o contrast 5 1,34D.00
70552 with contrast 5 1,820.60
70553 w/o and w/eontrast S 2,250.00
70554} MRi-Brain , functional ‘ $  1,980.00
~ 70555] requiring physictan administration $  2,270.00
71550|MRI-Chest, without contrast ' $  1,440.00
71551 .  with conirast $ 181000
71852 ' w/fo and w/contrast S 2,23500
71555| MRA-Chest with or w/o contrast S 1,930.00
72141 |MRi-Cervical spine w/fo contrast. $  1,460.0D
72142 o with contrast S 1,840.00
72146|NiRI-Thoracie spine without contrast S, 1,460.00
F2147 with contrast 5 1,825.00
72148|MR)-Lumbar spine w/fo contrast 5 1445001
72149 N " with contrast 5 1,820.00
72156} MiRI-Cervical spine w/o and w/contrast S 2,985.00
731571 MRI-Thoracic spine w/fc and w/contrast 5 2,28500
72158} MRI-Lumbiar spine wfo contrast and w/contrast S £255.00
72155 IMRA-Spinal canal S 2,135.00
72195 [MR1-Pelvis w/o contrast. _ $ 144000
72196 with contrast. 5 1,810.00
72197 w/o and w/contrast 5 2,23500
72198| MEA-Pelvis with ar without contrast 5 1,920.00
73218|MRI-Ugper extremity other than joint w/o contrast. $§ 1,420.00
73219 . withcontrast ] $  1,795.00
73270} ' wfo and-w/contrast. 4 222000 |
73221 MRI-Upper extremity joint w/g contrast $ 142500
73222 with contrast 5 1,795.00 }
73223| wfo and w/contrast S 2,215.00
73225|MRA-Upper extremity with or without contrast 3 2,100.00
73718 MRl-Lower extremity other than joint w/o conirasi S L42000
73719 with contrast S 1,795.00
73720 w/e and wfcontrast S 2,215.00
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SRMRC Charge Listing
73721 MRI-Lower extremity, joint, without contrast S 142500
73722 |MR\4ower extremity, joint, with contrast S 1,795.00
73723 wfo and w/contrast . S 221500
73725 MRA-Lower extremity with or witheut contrast 5 1,925.00
74181{MRI-Abdomen without contrast S 1,440.6G0
74182 ‘with contrast $ 1,810.00
74183 w/o and w/conirast $ 223500
74185 MRA-Abdomen with or without S 1,915.00
75557 Cardiac MRI for morphology wio contrast S 1,545.00
75559 with street imaging $ 1,685.00
75561 Cardiac MRI for morphoelogy w/o and w/contrast $  2,095.00
75563 with stress imaging S 237500
76376|3D Rendering w/interpretation, independent station S 250.00
76377 requiring image postprocessing S 32000
77021 Miagnetic resonance guidance for needle placement S 1,505.00
F70581MRL-Breast, with and/or with contéast unifatersl S 213500
77059|Bilateral 5 2,135.00

g




STATE OF CONNECTICUT

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH
Office of Health Care Access

June 5, 2013 VIA FACISIMILE ONLY
Nancy Rosenthal Mzr. Zenon Protopapas

Senior Vice President Medical Director, SRMRC
Yale-New Haven Hospital Medical Imaging Associates
20 Howe Street 330 Orchard Street, Suite 10B
New Haven, CT 06510 New Haven, CT 06511

RE:  Certificate of Need Application; Docket Number: 13-31819-CON
Yale-New Haven Hospital and Saint Raphael Magnetic Resonance Center
Proposal to Transfer the Ownership of Saint Raphael Magnetic Resonance Center to
Yale-New Haven Hospital

Dear Ms. Rosenthal and Mr. Protopapas,

This letter is to inform you that, pursnant to Section 19a-639a (d) of the Connecticut General
Statutes, the Office of Health Care Access has deemed the above-referenced application
complete as of June 5, 2013.

If you have any questions regarding this matter, please feel free to contact me at (860) 418-7007.

Sincerely,

(L Vshooma—

Alla Veyberman
OHCA Health Care Analyst

An Equal Opportunity Provider
(If you require aid/accommodation to participate fully and fairly, contact us either by phone, fox or email)
410 Capitol Ave., MS#13HCA, P.O.Box 340308, Hartford, CT 06134-0308
Telephone: (860) 418-7001 Fax: (860) 418-7053 Email: OHCA@ct.gov
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